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ENABLING A MICROELECTRONIC WORLD®

Ambkor is one of the world’s largest providers of contract semiconductor assembly and
test services. Founded in 1968, Amkor pioneered the concept of having a highly focused
third party provide assembly and test to semiconductor manufacturers. By capitalizing on
strong outsourcing trends and consistently meeting customer needs, Amkor has enjoyed
significant growth over its nearly 40-year history.

Today we are a strategic manufacturing partner for many of the world’s leading semicon-
ductor companies and electronics OEMs, providing our customers with a broad array of
package design, assembly and test solutions. Amkor’s operational base encompasses more
than 5 million square feet of manufacturing facilities, product development centers, and
sales and support offices located in key electronics manufacturing regions in Asia, Europe
and the United States.
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Semiconductor manufacturing is generally defined in two stages. In the first stage, called
the “front end”, complex electronic circuitry is deposited onto silicon wafers through a
process called wafer fabrication. In the “back end”, also known as packaging (or assembly)
and test, the silicon wafer is cut into individual chips, and each chip is placed in a protec-
tive housing that provides a proper electrical connection between the chip and the system
board. For most advanced semiconductor devices, these packages are custom designed for
specific applications. The packages are then tested to ensure that they meet appropriate
performance criteria.

If you look inside a microelectronic product you won’t see Amkor’s name on the actual
packages, but you will see the names of our customers - more than 175 of the world’s
leading semiconductor suppliers.
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All references in this Annual Report to “Amkor,” “we,” “us,” “our” or the “company” are to Amkor
Technology, Inc. and its subsidiaries. We refer to the Republic of Korea, which is also commonly known as
South Korea, as “Korea.” CSP NL™, PowerQuad®, SuperBGA ®, ChipArray ®, MicroLeadFrame ®, TapeArray®,
SuperFC ®, FusionQuad™, Unitive ®, Amkor ® and Amkor Technology ® are either trademarks or registered
trademarks of Amkor Technology, Inc. All other trademarks appearing herein are held by their respective owners.
Subsequent use of the above trademarks in this report may occur without the respective superscript symbols
(TM or ®) in order to facilitate the readability of the report and are not a waiver of any rights that may be associated
with the relevant trademarks.
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Item 1. Business

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This business section contains forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking
statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans, ;e
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anticipates,” “believes,” “esti-
mates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” “intend” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology.
These statements are only predictions. Actual events or results may differ materially. In evaluating these statements,
you should specifically consider various factors, including the risks outlined under “Risk Factors ” in Item 1A of
this Annual Report. These factors may cause our actual results to differ materially from any forward-looking
statement.

OVERVIEW

Amkor is one of the world’s largest subcontractors of semiconductor packaging (sometimes referred to as
assembly) and test services. Amkor pioneered the outsourcing of semiconductor packaging and test services
through a predecessor in 1968 and over the years we have built a leading position by:

* Designing and developing new package and test technologies;
« Offering a broad portfolio of packaging and test technologies and services;

« Cultivating long-standing relationships with our customers, which include many of the world’s leading
semiconductor companies;

* Building strategic relationships with leading electronics companies who buy packaged chips from our
customers {also known as original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs™));

» Developing expertise in high-volume manufacturing processes; and

« Having a diversified operational scope, with production capabilities in China, Japan, Korea, the Philippines,
Singapore, Taiwan and the United States (*'U.S.”}.

Packaging and test are integral steps in the process of manufacturing semiconductor devices. The manufac-
turing process begins with silicon wafers and involves the fabrication of electronic circuitry into complex patterns,
thus creating large numbers of individual chips on the wafers. The fabricated wafers are then probe tested to ensure
the individual devices meet electrical specifications. The packaging process creates an electrical interconnect
between the semiconductor chip and the system board. In packaging, fabricated semiconductor wafers are separated
into individual chips. These chips are typically attached through’wire bond or wafer bump technologies to a
substrate or leadframe and then encased in a protective material. In the case of an advanced wafer level package, the
package is assembled on the surface of a wafer.

Our packages are designed for application specific body size and electrical connection requirements to provide
optimat electrical connectivity and thermal performance. The packaged chips are then tested using sophisticated
equipment to ensure that each packaged chip meets its design and performance specifications. Increasingly,
packages are custom designed for specific chips and specific end-market applications. We are able to provide
turnkey packaging and test solutions including semiconductor wafer bump, wafer probe, wafer backgrind, package
design, assembly, test and drop shipment services.

Our customers include, among others: Altera Corporation; Atmel Corporation; Infineon Technologies AG;
Intel Corporation; International Business Machines Corporation (*IBM”}; LSI Corporation; ST Microelectronics,
N.V.; Texas Instruments, Inc.; Toshiba Corporation and Qualcomm Incorporated. The outsourced semiconductor
packaging and test market is very competitive. We also compete with the internal semiconductor packaging and test
capabilities of many of our customers.




AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Amkor files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). You may read and copy any document we file at the
SEC’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330
for information on the Public Reference Room. The SEC maintains a web site that contains annual, quarterly and
current reports, proxy statements and other information that 1ssuers (including Amkor) file electronically with the
SEC. The SEC’s web site is hntp://mww.sec.gov.

Amkor’s web site is http://www.amkor.com. Amkor makes available free of charge through its web site, our
annual reports on Form 10-K; quarterly reports on Form 10-Q; current reports on Form 8-K; Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed
on behalf of directors and executive officers; and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or
furnished to, the SEC. We also make available, free of charge, through our web site, our Corporate Governance
Guidetines, charters of committees of our Board of Directors, code of business conduct and ethical guidelines and
other information and materials, including information about how to contact our Board of Directors, their
committees and their members. The information on Amkor’s web site is not incorporated by reference into this
report.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

Semiconductor devices are the essential building blocks used in most electronic products. As semiconductor
devices have evolved, there have been several important consequences, including: (1) an increase in demand for
computers and consumer electronics; (2) the proliferation of semiconductor devices into diverse end products such
as consumer electronics, wireless communications equipment and automotive systems; and (3} an increase in the
semiconductor content within electronic products in order to provide greater functionality and higher levels of
performance. These consequences have fueled the growth of the overall semiconductor industry, as well as the
market for outsourced semiconductor packaging and test services.

Historical trends indicate that semiconductor industry growth appears te be increasingly driven by global
consumer spending. There has been a strong correlation between world-wide gross domestic product growth and
semiconductor industry cycles. In recent years, outsourced semiconductor manufacturing services has grown faster
than that of the semiconductor industry, partially due to an increase in “fabless™ and “fab-lite” semiconductor
companies, and the increasing value of packaging technoiogies developed and offered by subcontract providers.

Semiconductor companies have increasingly outsourced their packaging and test to subcontract providers,
such as Amkor, for the following reasons:

Subcontract providers have developed expertise in advanced packaging and test technologies.

Semiconductor companies face increasing demands for miniaturization, increased functionality and improved
thermal and electrical performance in semiconductor devices. This trend, along with greater complexity in the
design of semiconductor devices and the increased customization of interconnect packages, has led many
semiconductor companies to view packaging and test as an enabling technology requiring sophisticated expertise
and technological innovation. As packaging and test technology becomes more advanced, many semiconductor
companies are relying on subcontract providers of packaging and test services as a key source of new package
design and production.

Subcontract providers offer a cost effective solution in a highly cyclical, capital intensive industry.

Semiconductor packaging is a complex process requiring substantial investment in specialized equipment and
factories. As a result of the large capital investment required, this manufacturing equipment must operate at a high
capacity level for an extended period of time to be cost effective. Shorter product life cycles, coupled with the need
to update or replace packaging equipment to accommodate new package types, makes it more difficult for
semiconductor companies to maintain cost effective utilization of their packaging and test assets throughout
semiconductor industry cycles. Subcontract providers of packaging and test services, on the other hand, can
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typically use their equipment to support a broad range of customers, potentially generating more efficient use of
their production assets and a more cost effective solution.

Subcontract providers can facilitate a more efficient supply chain and thus help shorten time-to-market
Jor new products.

We believe that semiconductor companies, together with their customers, are seeking to shorten the time-to-
market for their new products, and that having an effective supply chain is a critical factor in facilitating timely and
successful product introductions. Semiconductor companies frequently do not have sufficient time to develop their
packaging and test capabilities or deploy the equipment and expertise to implement new packaging technology in
volume. For this reason, semiconductor companies are leveraging the resources and capabilities of subcontract
packaging and test companies to deliver their new products to market more quickly.

The availability of high quality packaging and test services from subcontractors allows semiconductor
manufacturers to focus their resources on semiconductor design and wafer fabrication.

As semiconductor process technotogy migrates to larger wafers and smaller feature size, the cost of building a
state-of-the-art wafer fabrication factory has risen significantly, and can be several billions of dollars. The high cost
of investing in next generation silicon technology and equipment is causing many semiconductor companies to
adopt a “fabless™ or “fab-lite” strategy in which they reduce or eliminate their investment in wafer fabrication and
assoctated packaging and test assets, thus increasing the reliance on outsourced providers of semiconductor
manufacturing services, including packaging and test. “Fabless” semiconductor companies do not have factories
and focus exclusively on the semiconductor design process and outsource virtually every step of the manufacturing
process.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS AND STRATEGY

We believe we are well-positioned in the outsourced packaging and test market. To build upon our industry
position and 1o remain one of the preferred subcontractors of semiconductor packaging and test services, we are
pursuing the following strategies:

Leading Technology Innevator

We have been a leader in developing advanced semiconductor packaging and test solutions. We have designed
and developed several state-of-the-art package formats including our MicroLeadFrame (“MLF’), PowerQuad,
Package-on-Package packages and our new FusionQuad package. FusionQuad represents the latest packaging
innovation combining exposed pad quad flat package (“QFP”") and MLF technologies. In addition, we believe that
as semiconductor technology continues to achieve smaller device geometries with higher levels of speed and
performance, packages will increasingly require flip chip and wafer bump-based interconnect solutions. We intend
to continue investing in our technology leadership in electroplated wafer bump and wafer leve! processing. We have
also been a leader in developing environmentally friendly (“Green”) integrated circuit packaging, which involves
the elimination of lead and certain other materials.

We also provide a complete range of test engineering services for radio frequency (“RF”} mixed signal, logic
and memory devices, from test program development to full product characterization. Amkor is a major provider of
RF test services and a leader in strip test, an innovative parallel test solution that offers customers low cost, faster
index time and improved yields.

We have 300 employees engaged in research and development focusing on the design and development of new
semiconductor packaging and test technologies.
Long-Standing Relationships and C;ollaboration with Prominent Semiconductor Companies
(LA

Our customers include most of the world's largest semiconductor companies and over the last three decades,
Amkor has developed long-standing relationships with many of these companies. We believe that our production
excellence has been a key factor in our success in attracting and retaining customers. We have worked with our
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customers and our suppliers to develop proprietary process technologies to enhance our existing capabilities, reduce
time-to-market, increase quality and lower our costs.

We believe that our focus on research and product development will enable us to enter new markets early,
capture market share and promote the adoption of our new package designs as industry standards. We collaborate
with customers and leading OEMs to develop comprehensive package solutions that make it easier for next-
generation semiconductors to be designed into next-generation end products. By collaborating with leading
semiconductor and electronics companies, we gain access to technology roadmaps for next generation semicon-
ductor designs and obtain the opportunity to develop new packages that satisfy their future requirements. For
example, we have partnered with IBM, Chartered and Samsung in the development of Common Platform
technology as part of their efforts to create an open and flexible design and manufacturing environment for
leading edge semiconductor technologies. We also have worked with other leading electronics companies such as
Toshiba, Sony Ericsson Corporation and Nokia to design packages that function well with the next generation of
electronic products.

Broad Offering of Package Design, Packaging and Test Services

Creating successful interconnect solutions for advanced semiconductor devices often poses unique thermal
electrical and other design challenges, and Amkor employs a large number of package design engineers to solve
these challenges. Amkor produces hundreds of package types which encompass more than },000 unique products,
representing one of the broadest package offerings in the semiconductor industry. These package solutions are
driven by our customer’s needs for more electrical connections, enhanced electrical or thermal performance,
smaller package size and lower cost.

We provide customers with a wide array of packaging solutions including leadframe and laminate packages,
using wire bond and flip chip formats. We are a leading subcontract provider of;

* Flip chip and wafer level packages, in which the semiconductor die is connected directly to the package
substrate or system board, which delivers improved electrical performance used in high-power and high-
speed applications such as graphics processors and microprocessors; ~

« Three dimensional (“3D™) such as package-on-package and stacked chip scale packages, in which the
individual chips or individual packages are stacked vertically to provide integration of logic and memory,
while preserving space on the system board,

« Advanced leadframe packages such as MicroLeadFrame which are thinner and smaller packages and have
the ability to accommodate more leads and have better thermal and electrical characteristics than traditional
leadframe packages;

* Multi-chip or system-in-package (“SiP”) modules used in mobile phones and other handheld end-
products; and

+» Packages for micro-electromechanical system devices, which are used in a variety of end markets including
automotive, industrial and personal entertainment.

We also offer an extensive line of advanced probe and final test services for analog, digital, logic, mixed signal
and radio frequency semiconductor devices, We believe that the breadth of our design, packaging and test services is
important to customers seeking to reduce the number of their suppliers.

Geographically Diversified Operational Base

We have a broad geographical base of more than five million square feet of manufacturing space in sixteen
sites strategically located in seven countries in many of the world’s important electronics manufacturing regions.
Qur customers benefit from one of the industry’s most extensive operational footprint. We believe that our scale and
scope allow us to provide cost effective solutions to our customers by offering:

» Capacity to absorb large orders and accommodate quick turn-around times;

» Favorable pricing on materials and equipment, where possible, by using our size and industry position;
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« Dual site qualifications and capabilities and solutions for specific loading requirements; and

« Broad range of packaging and test services so that we can provide turnkey solutions for all packaging needs,
including semiconductor wafer bump, wafer probe, wafer backgrind, package design, assembly, test and
drop shipment services.

Competitive Cost Structure

We believe that a competitive cost structure and disciplined capital investment decisions are key factors for
achieving profitability and generating free cash flow. There has been a continuous push throughout the entire
semiconductor supply chain for lower cost solutions. Some of our cost control efforts have included 1) increasing
strip densities to drive higher throughput on a single substrate strip, 2) developing smaller gold wire diameter
solutions and 3) increasing labor productivity.

PACKAGING AND TEST SERVICES

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the amount of packaging and test net sales in millions
of dollars and the percentage of such net sales:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Packaging services
Wire bond — leadframe ... ................. .. 3 893 32.6% $1,015 37.2% $ 834 39.7%
Wire bond — laminate ..................... 1,071 39.1% 1,032 37.8% 851 40.5%
Flip chip and wafer level processing ........... 466 17.0% 401 147% 218 10.4%
Total packaging services . . .................... 2,430 88.7% 2,448 89.7% 1,903 90.6%
Test ServIiCes. . ..o v e e 309 11.3% 281 10.3% 197 9.4%
Total netsales ......... ... i, $2,739  1000% $2,729 100.0% $2,100  100.0%

Packaging Services

We offer a broad range of package formats and services designed to provide our customers with a full array of
packaging solutions. Our package services are divided into three families: wire bond — leadframe; wire bond —
laminate; and flip chip and wafer level processing services.

In response to the increasing demands of today’s high-performance electronic products, semiconductor
packages have evolved and are designed based on application specific requirements. The differentiating charac-
teristics of package formats include (1) the size of the package, (2) the number of electrical connections the package
can support, (3) the thermal and electrical characteristics of the package and (4) in the case of our system-in-pack-
age family of laminate packages, the integration of multiple active and passive components in a single package.

As semiconductor devices increase in complexity, they often require a larger number of electrical connections.
Leadframe packages are so named because they connect the electronic circuitry on the semiconductor device to the
system board through metal leads on the perimeter of the package. Our laminate products, many typically called
ball grid array (“BGA™), use balls on the bottom of the package to support larger numbers of electrical connections.
A wafer level package is nearly the same size as the silicon die and integrates more technology in a smaller space.

Evolving semiconductor technology and the development of smaller package sizes has allowed designers to
increase the level of performance and functionality in portable and handheld electronics products. In some leading-
edge packages, the size of the package is reduced 10 approximately the size of the individual chip itself in a process
known as chip scale packaging.

R
Wire bond — Leadframe Packages l

Leadframe-based packages are the most widely used package family in the semiconductor industry. These are
typically characterized by a chip encapsulated in a plastic mold compound with copper metal leads on the perimeter.

7




Traditional leadframe-based packages support a wide variety of device types and applications. Two of our most
popular traditional leadframe package types are SOIC and QFP, commonly known as “dual” or *quad” products,
respectively, based upon the number of sides from which the leads extend. The traditional leadframe package family
has evolved from “through hole design,” where the leads are plugged into holes on the circuit board to “surface
mount design,” where the leads are soldered to the surface of the circuit board. We offer a wide range of lead counts
and body sizes to satisfy variations in the size of customers’ semiconductor devices.

Through a process of continuous engineering and customization, we have designed several advanced
leadframe package types that are thinner and smaller than traditional leadframe packages, with the ability to
accommodate more leads on the perimeter of the package. These advanced leadframe packages typically have
superior thermal and electrical characteristics, which allow them to dissipate heat generated by high-powered
semiconductor devices while providing enhanced electrical connectivity. We plan to continue to develop increas-
ingly smaller versions of these packages to keep pace with continually shrinking semiconductor device sizes and
demand for miniaturization of portable electronic products. Two of these advanced leadframe packages are
described as follows:

* One of our most successful advanced leadframe package offerings is the MicroLeadFrame family of QFN, or
quad flat no lead packages. This package family is particularly well suited for RF and wireless applications.

» Our new FusionQuad package represents our latest innovation in leadframe packaging. FusionQuad
integrates both bottom leads and peripheral leads which significantly reduces the package size. The
package targets applications for mobile hard disk drives, notebook computers and consumer electronics
such as digital televisicns and set top boxes.

Wire bond — Laminate Packages

The laminate family typically employs the ball grid array design, which utilizes a laminate substrate rather
than a leadframe substrate, and places the electrical connections on the bottom of the package rather than around the
perimeter.

We have also designed a variety of packages, commonly referred to as chip scale packages (““CSP”), which are
not much larger than the chip itself. CSPs are becoming widely adopted as designers and manufacturers of
consumer electronics seek to achieve higher levels of performance while shrinking the product size. Some of our
CSPs include ChipArray and TapeArray, in which the package is only slightly larger than the chip itself.

Advanees in packaging technology now allow the placing of two or more chips on top of each other within an
individual package. This concept, known as 3D packaging, permits a higher level of semiconductor density and
more functionality. In addition, advanced wafer thinning technology has fostered the creation of extremely thin
packages that can be placed on top of each other within standard height restrictions used in microelectronic system
boards. Some of our 3D packages include:

s Stacked CSP, which is similar to our ChipAtrray, except that Stacked CSP contains two or more chips placed
on top of each other, and sometimes up to eight or more, which are ideal for stacking solid state memory for
handheld applications such as MP3 players; and :

» Package-on-Package, which are extremely thin CSPs that can be stacked on top of each other, enabling the
integration of logic and memory in a single package, supporting mobile phone, digital camera or other
wireless applications.

Our laminate package service offering also includes system-in-package (“SiP”) modules. SiP modules
integrate various system elements into a single-function block, thus enabling space and power efficiency, high
performance and lower production costs. Our SiP technology is being used to produce a variety of devices including
power amplifiers for mobile phones and other portable communication devices, wireless local area network
(*WLAN") modules for networking applications, camera modules, sensors, such as fingerprint recognition devices
and memory cards. Our memory cards are used for a variety of detachable non-volatile memory applications.

The ball grid array format typically utilized in our laminate packaging was developed to address the need for
higher lead counts required by many advanced semiconductor devices. As the number of leads on leadframe
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packages increased, leads were placed closer to one another in order to maintain the small size of the package. The
increased lead density resulted in shorting and other electrical challenges, and required the development of
increasingly sophisticated and expensive techniques for producing circuit boards to accommodate the high number
of leads.

The ball grid array format solved this problem by effectively creating leads on the bottom of the package in the
form of small bumps or balls that can be evenly distributed across the entire bottom surface of the package, allowing
greater distance between the individual leads. One example of a package in this family is the plastic ball grid array
{“PBGA"). We also offer other ball grid array package formats that have superior performance characteristics and
features that enable low-cost, high-volume manufacturing.

Flip Chip and Wafer Level Processing

Flip chip is an advanced package technology offered to help our customers create smaller and more powerful
versions of semiconductor devices. Flip chip technology packages use solder bumps instead of gold wire to form the
electrical interconnect between the device and the package. In order to create the best solutions for our customers,
we work cotlaboratively during the silicon design to enable high performance flip chip solutions. Flip chip packages
provide a higher density interconnection capability than wire bond. These packages enable silicon with interconnect
requirements from several hundred, to many thousands of electrical connections located in an array on the face of
the silicon die. Flip chip packaging can usvally create a higher performance electrical connection between the
silicon and substrate and enables additional miniaturization of portable electronic products, higher performance
applications and converging functionality for advanced silicon geometries. Amkor offers several different flip chip
package families including: FcBGA |, SuperFC,, FcCSP, FcSiP and FeMCM. Amkor provides flip chip packages
into many markets including: computing, mobile phone, gaming, network infrastructure, PC graphics and wireless
networking. Flip chip is a turnkey solution for our customers including: design services, wafer bump, wafer probe,
package assembly and test.

With wafer bumping, inter-connections are formed on an entire wafer prior to dicing, rather than the traditional
method of forming the interconnections on a separated die. Wafer bumping has technical and economic advantages
over traditional wire bonding. Wafer bumping consists of preparing the wafer for bumping and forming or placing
the bumps. Preparation may include cleaning, removing insulating oxides, and providing a pad metallurgy that will
protect the interconnections while making a good mechanical and electrical connection to the bump and the board.
Bumps may be formed or placed on the wafer in many ways, including sputtering, electroplating, stud bumping and
direct placement. Wafer bumping is a precursor to flip chip assembly, the direct electrical connection of face-down
(“flipped”) electronic components onto substrates, by means of conductive bumps on the chip bond pads. In certain
instances, packages are created on the surface of a wafer, for example wafer level chip scale packages, which are
used for space constrained applications with low power and low lead count requirements. The process is completed
by applying a non-conductive underfill joining the surface of the chip to the substrate.

An increasing number of devices use wafer level packaging. A wafer level package is nearly the same size as
the silicon die. A majority of these devices are small in size, with a few thousand to over thirty thousand fabricated
on each wafer. Our wafer level chip scale packaging technology allows chip designers to integrate more technology
at the wafer level, on a smallest possible footprint, with exceptionat performance and reliability. Amkor wafer level
package offerings include turnkey packages such as CSP and individual wafer processing services including;
various types of burnping, creation of interconnect redistribution layer and wafer or die separation services.

Test Services

We are a leading subcontract provider of a broad range of semiconductor integrated circuit test services
including wafer probe, final test, strip test, system level test and other test-related services. Our test development
centers provide complete test engineering services from test program development to full product functionality. The
integrated circuit devices we test encompass nearly all technologies produced in the semiconductor industry today
including digital, linear, mixed signal, memory, radio frequency and integrated combinations of these technologies.
In 2007, we tested over 4.2 billion units. We tested 48%, 44% and 40% of the units that we packaged in 2007, 2006
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and 20035, respectively. Our test operations complement traditional wire bond as well as wafer level chip scale
packages, multi-chip 5iP modules and flip chip packaging technologies.

We invest in advanced test equipment to continue to provide leading edge test capability. Our test facilities are often
co-located with wafer bump and packaging services for fast feedback, lower costs, streamlined logistics and faster cycle
time. We have test facilities in China, Japan, Korea, the Philippines, Singapore and Taiwan. Our testing services include:

Wafer Probe

Our wafer probe testing services provide for the visual inspection and electrical testing of the wafer for defects
prior to packaging. Wafer probe includes wafer mapping, a method to identify the location and characteristics of
each die on the wafer. We offer thermal controlled probe, bumped wafer probe, single and double pass probe and
multi-site probe among others,

Test Development and Engineering

We assist our customers with the development of required testing for their products. Our engineering services
include software and hardware conversion of single-site (one device at a time) to multi-site (multiple devices in
parallel), test program development, test hardware development and test program conversion to lower cost test
systems. We have test development centers in Korea, the Philippines and the United States, as well as teams of
highly skilled engineers in each test facility.

Strip Test

Using our strip test process, electronically isolated packaged units are tested in parallel while still in a
leadframe strip form prior to separation. This process results in faster handler times and higher throughput rates,
thus reducing test cost and increasing test yield.

Final Test

Final test is the process of testing each device after it has been packaged. Final test analyzes the attributes of each
device and determines if it meets criteria specified by the customer. We offer test services for many devices including
simple digital logic, complex ASIC, high speed digital, memory, mixed signal and RF and wireless devices.

For packaging and test segment information, see Note 17 to our Consclidated Financial Statements in Part II,
Item 8 of this Annual Report.
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our research efforts focus on developing new package products, test services and improving the efficiency and
capabilities of our existing production processes. We believe that technology development is one of the key success
differentiators in the semiconductor packaging and test markets. By concentrating our research and development on
our customers’ needs for new and innovative packages, increased performance and lower cost, we gain oppor-
tunities to enter markets early, capture market share and promote our new package offerings as industry standards.
In addition, we license our leading edge technology, such as MicrolLeadFrame, to customers and competitors.

Our key areas for research and development are:

* Wafer level processing;

¢ Advanced flip chip packaging;

* 3D packaging;

* Laminate and leadframe packaging; 1t
¢ Advanced substrate technology; and

* Engineering and characterization tools.
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Amkor has several key development partners within its customer and supplier base, such as IBM, Toshiba
Corporation and Sony Ericsson Corporation. We work with our partners and allocate our resources to develop
applications that have promising potential for a profitable return on investment.

As of December 31, 2007, we had 300 employees in research and development activities. In 2007, 2006 and
2005, we spent $41.6 million, $38.7 million and $37.3 million, respectively, on research and development.
MARKETING AND SALES

Our marketing and sales offices are located throughout the world. Our support personnel manage and promote
our packaging and test services and provide key customer and technical support.

To provide comprehensive sales and customer service, we typically assign our customers a direct support team
consisting of an account manager, technical program manager, test program manager and both field and factory
customer support representatives. We also support our largest multinational customers from multiple office
locations 1o ensure that we are aligned with their global operational and business requirements.

Qur direct support teams are further supported by an extended staff of product, process, quality and reliability
engineers, as well as marketing and advertising specialists, information systems technicians and factory personnel.
Together, these direct and extended support teams deliver an array of services to our customers. These services
include:

+ Managing and coordinating ongoing manufacturing activity;

» Providing information and expert advice on our portfolio of packaging and test solutions and related trends;

» Managing the start-up of specific packaging and test programs to improve our customers’ time-to-market;

+ Providing a continuous flow of information to our customers regarding products and programs in process;

* Partnering with customers on concurrent design solutions;

« Researching and assisting in the resolution of technical and logistical issues;

« Aligning our technologies and research and development activities with the needs of our customers and
OEMs;

« Providing guidance and solutions to customers in managing their supply chains;
* Driving industry standards;

* Providing design and simulation services to ensure package reliability; and

Collaborating with our customers on continuous quality improvement initiatives.

Further, we implement direct electronic links with our customers to:

* Achieve near real time and automated communications of order fulfillment information, such as inventory
control, production schedules and engineering data, including production yields, device specifications and
quality indices, and

* Connect our customers to our sales and marketing personnel world-wide and to our factories.
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SEASONALITY

Our sales have generally been higher in the second half of the year than in the first half as consumer spending
has been typically higher during that time due to the combined effect of holidays in the U.S., Europe and Asia. In
addition, semiconductor companies in the U.S. generally reduce their production during the holidays at the end of
December which results in a decrease in orders for packaging and test services during the first quarter. However,
there can be no assurance that this seasonal trend will continue.

CUSTOMERS

As of December 31, 2007, we had more than 300 customers, including many of the largest semiconductor
companies in the world. The table below lists our top 25 customers in 2007 based on net sales:

Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. Marvell Technology Group, Ltd.
Altera Corporation Mediatek, Inc.

Analog Devices, Inc. NEC Corporation

Atheros Communication, Inc. NXP Semiconductors

Atmel Corporation RF Micro Devices, Inc.

Avago Technologies, Pte Samsung Electronics Corporation, Ltd.
Broadcom Corporation Sony Semiconductor Corporation
Conexant Systems, [nc. ST Microelectronics, N V.

Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. Texas Instruments, Inc.

International Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”) Toshiba Corporation
Infineon Technologies AG Qualcomm Incorporated
Intel Corporation Xilinx, Inc.

LSI Corporation

Our top 25 customers accounted for 73.8% of our net sales in 2007 and our ten largest customers together
accounted for approximately 47.0%, 43.6% and 40.7% of our net sales for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. No customer accounted for more than 10% of our net sales in 2007, 2006 or 2005.

For segment information, see Note 17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 1, Item 8 of this Annual
Report.

MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT
Materials

Our materials are used primarily for packaging activities. Our packaging operations depend upon obtaining
adequate supplies of materials on a timely basis. The principal materials used in our packaging process are
leadframe or laminate substrates, gold wire, mold compound, epoxy, tubes and trays. The silicon wafer is generally
consigned from the customer and therefore we do not incur inventory costs relating to this material. Test materials
constitute a very small portion of our total test cost. We purchase materials based on customer forecasts and our
customers are generally responsible for any unused materials which we purchased based on such forecasts.

We work closely with our primary material suppliers to ensure that materials are available and delivered on
time. Moreover, utilizing commodity managers to globally manage specific commodities, we also negotiate world-
wide pricing agreements with our major suppliers to take advantage of the scale of our operations. We are not
dependent on any one supplier for a substantial portion of our material requirements.
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Equipment

Our ability to meet the changing demand of our customers for manufacturing capacity requirements depends
upon obtaining packaging and test equipment in a timely manner. We work closely with our main equipment
suppliers to coordinate the ordering and delivery of equipment to meet our expected capacity needs.

Packaging Equipment

The primary equipment used in the packaging of products is wire bonders and die bonders. In addition, we
maintain a variety of other packaging equipment, including wafer saw, die attach, heat slug attach, chip attach, ball
attach and molding equipment, as well as other types of manufacturing equipment, Wire bond packaging equipment
can generally be used and adapted to support the manufacture of a variety of integrated circuits through the use of
relatively low cost tooling and other equipment.

We purchase bump equipment to facilitate the manufacture of our flip chip and wafer level processing lines.
Bump equipment tends to have longer lead times for order and installation and is soid in relatively larger increments
of capacity.

Test Equipment

The primary equipment used in the testing process includes tester, handler and probe equipment. Handlers are
used to transfer individual or small groups of packaged integrated circuits to a tester. Testers are generally the most
capital intensive portion of the process and tend to have longer delivery lead times than most other types of
packaging equipment. As part of our ongoing capital program, we have been moving toward standardized tester
platforms in order to maximize test equipment utilization.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The semiconductor packaging process uses chemicals, materials and gases and generates byproducts that are
subject to extensive governmental regulations. For example, we produce liquid waste when semiconductor wafers
are diced into chips with the aid of diamond saws, then cooled with running water. [n addition, semiconductor
packages have historically utilized metallic alloys containing lead (Pb) within the interconnect terminals typically
referred to as leads, pins or bails. The usage of lead (Pb) has decreased over the past few years, as we have ramped
volume production of alternative lead (Pb)-free processes. Federal, state and local regulations in the U.S., as well as
environmental regulations internationally, impose various controls on the storage, handiing, discharge and disposal
of chemicals and materials used in our manufacturing processes and in the factories we occupy.

We are engaged in a continuing program to assure compliance with federal, state and local environmental laws
and regulations. We currently do not expect that capital expenditures or other costs attributable to compliance with
environmental laws and regulations will have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows.

COMPETITION

The subcontracted semiconductor packaging and test market is very competitive. We face substantial
competition from established packaging and test service providers primarily located in Asia, including companies
with significant manufacturing capacity, financial resources, research and development operations, marketing and
other capabilities. These companies include:

* Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc.,

* Siliconware Precision Industries Co., Ltd. and
» STATS ChipPAC Ltd. o
Such companies also have developed relationships with most of the world’s largest semiconductor companies,

including current or potential customers of Amkor. We also compete with the internal semiconductor packaging and
test capabilities of many of our customers.
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The principal elements of competition in the subcontracted semiconductor packaging market include:

* technical competence;

* quality;

* price;

* available capacity;

» breadth of package offering;

* new package design and implementation;
* cycle times; and

* customer service.

We believe that we generatly compete favorably with respect to each of these factors.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We maintain an active program to protect our investment in technology by augmenting and enforcing our
intellectual property rights. Intellectual property rights that apply to our various products and services include
patents, copyrights, trade secrets and trademarks. We have filed and obtained a number of patenis in the U.S. and
abroad the duration of which varies depending on the jurisdiction in which the patent is filed. While our patents are
an important element of our intellectual property strategy and our success, as a whole we are not materially
dependent on any one patent or any one technology. We expect to continue to file patent applications when
appropriate to protect our proprietary technologies, but we cannot assure you that we will receive patents from
pending or future applications. In addition, any patents we obtain may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented
and may not provide meaningful protection or other commercial advantage to us.

We alse protect certain details about our processes, products and strategies as trade secrets, keeping
confidential the information that we believe provides us with a competitive advantage. We have ongoing programs
designed to maintain the confidentiality of such information. Further, to distinguish our products from our
competitors” products, we have obtained certain trademarks and service marks. We have promoted and will
continue to promote our particular product brands through advertising and other marketing techniques.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2007, we had 21,600 full-time employees. Of the total employee population, 15,600 were
engaged in manufacturing services, 3,700 were engaged in manufacturing support, 300 were engaged in research
and development, 300 were engaged in marketing and sales and 1,700 were engaged in finance, business
management and administration. We believe that our relations with our employees are good and we have never
experienced a work stoppage in any of our factories. Our employees in China, France, the Philippines, Taiwan and
the U.S. are not represented by any union. Certain members of our factories in Japan, Korea and Singapore are
members of a union and those that are members of a union are subject to collective bargaining agreements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The factors discussed below are cautionary statements that identify important factors and risks that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those anticipated by the forward-looking statermnents contained in this report.
For more information regarding the forward-looking statements contained in this report, see the introductory
paragraph to Part II, Item 7 of this Annual Report. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties
described below, together with all of the other information included in this report, in considering our business and
prospects. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing Amkor. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us also may impair our business operations. The occurrence of any of the
following risks could affect our business, liquidity, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.
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The matters relating to the Special Committee’s 2006 review of our historical stock option granting prac-
tices and the resultant restatement of our consolidated financial statements has resulted in expanded liti-
gation and regulatory proceedings against us and may result in future litigation, which could have a
material adverse effect on us.

In 2006, we established a Special Committee, consisting of independent members of the Board of Directors, to
conduct a review of our historical stock option granting practices during the period from our initial public offering
on May 1, 1998 through June 30, 2006. As previously disclosed, the Special Committee identified a number of
occasions on which the measurement date used for financial accounting and reporting purposes for stock options
granted to certain of our employees was different from the actual grant date. To correct these accounting errors, we
amended our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and our quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2006, to restate our financial information from 1998 through
March 31, 2006. The review of our historical stock option granting practices, related activities and the resulting
restatements, required us to incur substantial expenses for legal, accounting, tax and other professional services and
diverted our management’s attention from our business.

Our historical stock option granting practices and the restatement of our prior financial statements have
exposed us to greater risks associated with litigation and regulatory proceedings. As described in Note 15 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements, the complaints in several of our existing litigation matters were subsequently
amended to include allegations relating to stock option grants. In addition, the scope of the existing SEC
investigation that began in August 2005 has been expanded to include an investigation into our historical stock
option grant practices. We cannot assure you that this litigation, the SEC investigation or any future litigation or
regulatory action will result in the same cenclusions reached by the Special Committee as disclosed in the 2006
Annual Report. The conduct and resolution of these matters have been and may continue to be time consuming,
expensive and distracting from the conduct of our business. Furthermore, if we are subject to adverse findings in any
of these matters, we could be required to pay damages or penalties or have other remedies imposed upon us which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Pending SEC Investigation — The Pending SEC Investigation Could Adversely Affect Our Business and
the Trading Price of Our Securifies.

In August 2005, the SEC issued a formal order of investigation regarding certain activities with respect to
Amkor securities. We previously announced that the primary focus of the investigation appears to be activities
during the period from June 2003 to July 2004. We believe that the investigation in part relates to transactions in
Amkor’s securities by certain individuals and that the investigation may in part relate to whether tipping with
respect to trading in Amkor securities occurred. The matters at issue involve activities with respect to Amkor
securities during the subject period by certain insiders or former insiders and persons or entities associated with
them, including activitics by or on behalf of certain current and former members of the Board of Directors and
Amkor’s Chief Executive Officer. In October 2007, our former general counsel, whose employment with us
terminated in March of 2005, was convicted of violating Federal securities laws for trading in Amkor securities on
the basis of material non-public information. In April 2007, the SEC filed a civil action against our former general
counsel based on substantially the same allegations as contained in the criminal case.

In July 2006, the Board of Directors established a Special Committee to review Amkor’s historical stock option
practices and informed the SEC of these efforts. The SEC informed us in 2006 that it expanded the scope of its
investigation and has requested that Amkor provide documentation related to these matters. We have provided the
requested documentation and cooperated fully with the SEC on the formal investigation and the informal inquiry
that preceded it. We cannot predict the cutcome of the investigation. In the event that the investigation leads to SEC
action against any current or former officer or director of Amkor, or Amkor itself, our business or the trading price
of our securities may be adversely impacted. In addition, if the SEC investigation continues for a prolonged period
of time, it may have the same impact regardless of the ultimate outcome of the investigation,
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Fluctuations in Operating Results and Cash Flows — Our Operating Results and Cash Flows Have Var-
ied and May Vary Significantly as a Result of Factors That We Cannot Control.

Many factors could materially and adversely affect our net sales, gross profit, operating results and cash flows,
or lead to significant variability of quarterly or annual operating results. Our profitability and ability to generate
cash from operations is principally dependent upon demand for semiconductors, the utilization of our capacity,
semiconductor package mix, the average selling price of our services and our ability to manage our capital
expenditures in response to market conditions, control our costs including labor, material, overhead and financing
costs.

Our operating results and cash flows have varied significantly from period to period. Our net sales, gross
margins, operating income and cash flows have historically fluctuated significantly as a result of many of the
following factors, over which we have little or no control and which we expect to continue to impact our business:

* fluctuation in demand for semiconducters and conditions in the semiconductor industry;

changes in our capacity utilization;
changes in average selling prices;
changes in the mix of semiconductor packages;

evolving package and test technology;

« absence of backlog and the short-term nature of our customers’ commitments and the impact of these factors
on the timing and volume of orders relative to our production capacity;

« changes in costs, availability and delivery times of raw materials and components;
* changes in labor costs to perform our services;

« the timing of expenditures in anticipation of future orders;

+ changes in effective tax rates;

« the availability and cost of financing;

« intellectual property transactions and disputes;

* high leverage and resirictive covenants;

» warranty and product liability claims and the impact of quality excursions and customer disputes and
Ieturns;

* costs associated with litigation judgments, indemnification claims and settlements;

* international events, political instability, civil disturbances or environmental or natural events, such as
earthquakes, that impact our operations;

* difficulties integrating acquisitions;

+ our ability to attract and retain qualified employees to support our global operations and loss of key
personnel or the shortage of available skilled workers;

* fluctuations in foreign exchange rates;
* delay, rescheduling and cancellation of large orders; and

« fluctuations in our manufacturing yields. .
We have historically been unable to accurately predict the impact of these factors upon our results for a
particular period. These factors may materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial

condition and cash flows, or lead to significant variability of quarterly or annual operating results.
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Dependence on the Highly Cyclical Semiconductor and Electronic Products Industries — We Operate in
Volatile Industries, and Industry Downturns Harm Qur Performance.

Our business is tied to market conditions in the semiconductor industry, which is cyclical by nature, The
semiconductor industry has experienced significant and sometimes prolonged downturns. Because our business is,
and will continue to be, dependent on the requirements of semiconductor companies for subcontracted packaging
and test services, any downturn in the semiconductor industry or any other industry that uses a significant number of
semiconductor devices, such as consumer electronic products, telecommunication devices, or computing devices
could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results. If industry conditions deteriorate, we
could suffer significant losses, as we have in the past, which could materially impact our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

High Fixed Costs — Due to Our High Percentage of Fixed Costs, We Will Be Unable to Maintain Our
Gross Margin at Past Levels if We Are Unable to Achieve Relatively High Capacity Utilization Rates.

Our operations are characterized by relatively high fixed costs. Our profitability depends in part not only on
pricing levels for our products and services, but also on the utilization rates for our packaging and test equipment,
commonly referred to as “capacity utilization rates.”” In particular, increases or decreases in our capacity utilization
rates can significantly affect gross margins since the unit cost of packaging and test services generally decreases as
fixed costs are allocated over a larger number of units, In periods of low demand, we experience relatively low
capacity utilization rates in our operations, which lead to reduced margins during that period. From time to time we
have experienced lower than optimum utilization rates in our operations due to a decline in world-wide demand for our
packaging and test services. This can lead to significantly reduced margins during that period. Although our capacity
utilization rates at times have been strong, we cannot assure you that we will be able to achieve or maintain relatively
high capacity utilization rates, and if we fail to do so, our gross margins may decrease. If our gross margins decrease,
our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

In addition, our fixed operating costs have increased in part as a result of our efforts to expand our capacity
through significant capital additions. In the event that forecasted customer demand for which we have made capital
investments and, on a more limited basis, expect to make capital investments does not materialize, our sales may not
adequately cover our substantial fixed costs resulting in reduced profit levels or causing significant losses, both of
which may adversely impact our liquidity, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Additionally,
we could suffer significant losses if current industry conditions deteriorate, which could materially impact our
business, liquidity, results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

Guidance — Our Failure to Meet Our Guidance or Analyst Projections Could Adversely Impact the Trad-
ing Prices of Our Securities.

We periodically provide guidance to investors with respect to certain financial information for future periods.
Securities analysts also periodically publish their own projections with respect to our future operating results. As
discussed above under “Fluctuations in Operating Results and Cash Flows — Qur Operating Results and Cash
Flows Have Varied and May Vary Significantly as a Result of Factors That We Cannot Control,” our operating
results and cash flows vary significantly and are difficult to accurately predict. To the extent we fail to meet or
exceed our own guidance or the analyst projections for any reason, the trading prices of our securities may be
adversely impacted. Moreover, even if we do meet or exceed that guidance or those projections, the analysts and
investors may not react favorably, and the trading prices of our securities may be adversely impacted.

Declining Average Selling Prices — The Semiconductor Industry Places Downward Pressure on the
Prices of Our Products.

Prices for packaging and test services have generally declined over time. Historically, we have been able to
partially offset the effect of price declines by successfully developing and marketing new packages with higher prices,
such as advanced leadframe and laminate packages, by negotiating lower prices with our material vendors, recovering
material cost increases from our customers, and by driving engineering and technological changes in our packaging
and test processes which resulted in reduced manufacturing costs. We expect general downward pressure on average
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selling prices for our packaging and test services in the future. If we are unable to offset a decline in average selling
prices, including developing and marketing new packages with higher prices, reducing our purchasing costs,
recovering more of our material cost increases from our customers and reducing our manufacturing costs, our
business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

Decisions by Our IDM Customers to Curtail Qutsourcing May Adversely Affect Our Business.

Historically, we have been dependent on the trend in outsourcing of packaging and test services by integrated
device manufacturers (“IDM”). Our IDM customers continually evaluate the outsourced services against their own
in-house packaging and test services. As a result, at any time and for a variety of reasons, IDMs may decide to shifi
some or all of their outsourced packaging and test services to internally sourced capacity.

The reasons IDMs may shift their internal capacity include:

* their desire to realize higher utilization of their existing test and packaging capacity, especially during
downturns in the semiconductor industry;

* their unwillingness to disclose proprietary technology;
« their possession of more advanced packaging and test technologies; and
* the guaranteed availability of their own packaging and test capacity.

Furthermore, to the extent we continue to limit capacity commitments for certain customers, these customers
may begin to increase their level of in-house packaging and test capabilities, which could adversely impact our sales
and profitability and make it more difficult for us to regain their business when we have available capacity. Any shift
or a slowdown in this trend of outsourcing packaging and test services is likely to adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

In a downturn in the semiconductor industry, IDMs may be especially likely to respond by shifting some
outsourced packaging and test services to internally serviced capacity on a short term basis. This would have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows especially during a
prolonged industry downturn.

Our Substantial Indebtedness Could Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Prevent Us from Ful-
JSilling Our Obligations.

We now have, and for the foreseeable future will continue 1o have, a significant amount of indebtedness. As of
December 31, 2007, our total debt balance was $1,764.1 million, of which $152.5 million was classified as a current
liability. In addition, despite current debt levels, the terms of the indentures governing our indebtedness allow us or
our subsidiaries to incur more debt, subject to certain limitations. [f new debt is added to our consolidated debt level,
the related risks that we now face could intensify.

Qur substantial indebtedness could:

+ make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our indebtedness, including our
obligations under our indentures to purchase notes tendered as a result of a change in control of Amkor;

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

« limit our ability to fund future working capital, capital expenditures, research and development and other
general corporate requirements;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to service payments on our debt;
* limit our flexibility to react to changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;
« place us at a competitive disadvantage to any of our competitors that have less debt; and

* limit, along with the financial and other restrictive covenants in our indebtedness, among other things, our
ability to borrow additional funds.
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Ability to Fund Liquidity Needs.

We operate in a capital intensive industry. Servicing our current and future customers requires that we incur
significant operating expenses and continue to make significant capital expenditures, which are generally made in
advance of the related revenues and without any firm customer commitments. During 2007, we had capital
additions of $294 million and in 2008 we currently anticipate making capital additions in the range of approx-
imately 11% to 14% of net sales. In addition, we have a significant level of debt, with $1,764.1 million outstanding
at December 31, 2007, $152.5 million of which is current. The terms of such debt require significant scheduled
principal payments in the coming years, including $152.5 million due in 2008, $54.8 million due in 2009,
$54.8 million due in 2010, $482.7 million due in 2011, $43.0 million due in 2012 and $976.3 million due thereafter.
The interest payments required on our debt are also substantial. For example, for the year ended December 31,2007,
we paid $136.0 million of interest. See also “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Capital Additions and Contractual Obligations” for a summary of principal and interest
payments. The source of funds to fund our operations, including making capital expenditures and servicing
principal and interest obligations with respect to our debt, are cash flows from our operations, current cash and cash
equivalents, borrowings under available debt facilities, or proceeds from any additional debt or equity financing. As
of December 31, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of $410.1 million and $99.8 million available under our
senior secured revolving credit facility. :

We assess our liquidity based on our current expectations regarding sales, operating expenses, capital spending
and debt service requirements. Based on this assessment, we believe that our cash flow from operating activities
together with existing cash and cash equivalents and availability under our senior secured revolving credit facility
will be sufficient to fund our working capital, capital expenditure and debt service requirements for at least the next
twelve months, including retiring the remaining $88.2 million of our 9.25% Senior notes at maturity in February
2008, Thereafter, our liquidity will continue to be affected by, among other things, the performance of our business,
our capital expenditure levels and our ability to repay debt out of our operating cash flow or refinance the debt with
the proceeds of debt or equity offerings at or prior to maturity. If our performance or access to the capital markets
differs materially from our expectations, our liquidity may be adversely impacted.

If we fail to generate the necessary net income or operating cash flows to meet the funding needs of our
business beyond the next twelve months due to a variety of factors, including the cyclical nature of the
semiconductor industry and the other factors discussed in this “Risk Factors™ section, our liquidity would be
adversely affected.

Restrictive covenants in the indentures and agreements govemmg our current and future indebtedness
could restrict our operating flexibility.

The indentures and agreements governing our existing debt, and debt we may incur in the future, contain
affirmative and negative covenants that materially limit our ability to take certain actions, including our ability to
incur debt, pay dividends and repurchase stock, make certain investments and other payments, enter into certain
mergers and consolidations, engage in sale leaseback transactions and encumber and dispose of assets. In addition,
our future debt agreements may contain financial covenants and ratios.

The breach of any of these covenants by us or the failure by us to meet any of these ratios or conditions could
result in a default under any or all of such indebtedness. If a default occurs under any such indebtedness, all of the
outstanding obligations there under could become immediately due and payable, which could result in a default
under our other cutstanding debt and could lead to an acceleration of obligations related to other outstanding debt.
The existence of such a default or event of default could also preclude us from borrowing funds under our revolving
credit facilities. Qur ability to comply with the provisions of the indentures, credit facilities and other agreements
governing our outstanding debt and indebtedness we may incur in the future can be affected by events beyond our
control and a default under any debt instrument, if not cured or waived, could have a material adverse effect on us.
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We have significant severance plan obligations associated with our manufacturing operations in Korea
which could reduce our cash flow and negatively impact our financial condition.

We sponsor an accrued severance plan in our Korean subsidiary. Under the Korean plan, eligible employees are
entitled to receive a lump sum payment upon termination of their employment based on their length of service,
seniority and rate of pay at the time of termination. We paid $10.6 million and $14.5 million in 2007 and 2006,
respectively under our severance plan. Our severance plan obligation is significant and in the event of a reduction in
force or other termination of employment in our Korean facilities, payments under the plan could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and cash flows. See Note 12 to our Consolidated Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report
SJinancial results or prevent fraud.

Effective internal controls are necessary to provide reliable financial reports and to assist in the effective
prevention of fraud. Any inability to provide reliable financial repotts or prevent fraud could harm our business. We
must annually evaluate our internal procedures to satisfy the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, which requires management and auditors to assess the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. If we fail to remedy or maintain the adequacy of our internal controls, as such standards are modified,
supplemented or amended from time to time, we could be subject to regulatory scrutiny, civil or criminal penalties
or shareholder litigation.

In addition, failure to maintain adequate internal controls could result in financial statements that do not
accurately reflect our financial condition. There can be no assurance that we will be able to complete the work
necessary to fully comply with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act or that our management and external
auditors will continue to conclude that our internal controls are effective.

We face product return and liability risks and the risk of negative publicity if our products fail.

Our packages are incorporated into a number of end products, and our business is exposed to product return
and liability risk and the risk of negative publicity if our packages fail.

In addition, we are exposed to the product liability risk and the risk of negative publicity affecting our
customers, Our sales may decline if any of our customers are sued on a product liability claim. We also may suffer a
decline in sales from the negative publicity associated with such a lawsuit or with adverse public perceptions in
general regarding our customers’ products. Further, if our packages are delivered with impurities or defects, we
could incur additional development, repair or replacement costs, and our credibility and the market’s acceptance of
our products could be harmed.

Absence of Backlog — The Lack of Contractually Committed Customer Demand May Adversely Affect
Our Sales.

Our packaging and test business does not typically operate with any material backlog. Our quarterly net sales
from packaging and test services are substantially dependent upon our customers’ demand in that quarter. None of
our customers have committed to purchase any significant amount of packaging or test services or to provide us with
binding forecasts of demand for packaging and test services for any future pertod, in any material amount. In
addition, our customers often reduce, cancel or delay their purchases of packaging and test services for a variety of
reasons including industry-wide, customer-specific and Amkor-related reasons. Because a large portion of our costs
is fixed and our expense levels are based in part on our expectations of future revenues, we may not be able to adjust
costs in a timely manner 1o compensate for any sales shortfall. If we are unable to do 5o, it would adversely affect our
margins, operating results, cash flows and financial condition. If customer demand does not materialize as
anticipated, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows will be materially and adversely
affected.

20




Risks Associated With International Operations — We Depend on Our Factories and Operations in China,
Japan, Korea, the Philippines, Singapore and Taiwan. Many of Our Customers’ and Vendors’ Operations
Are Also Located Outside of the U.S.

We provide packaging and test services through our factories and other operations located in China, Japan,
Korea, the Philippines, Singapore and Taiwan. Although we do not derive any revenue from, nor sell any products
in, North Korea, any future increase in tensions between South Korea and North Korea which may occur, for
example, an outbreak of military hostilities, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Moreover, many of our customers’ and vendors’ operations are located outside the U.S. The followmg
are some of the risks inherent in doing business internationally:

« regulatory limitations imposed by foreign governments, including limitations or taxes imposed on the
payment of dividends and other payments by non-U.S. subsidiaries;

+ fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

» political, military, civil unrest and terrorist risks;

» disruptions or delays in shipments caused by customs brokers or governmeni agencies;

» changes in regulatory requirements, tariffs, customs, duties and other restrictive trade barriers or policies;
+ difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations; and .

* potentially adverse tax consequences resulting from changes in tax laws.

Qur Management Information Systems May Prove Inadequate — We Face Risks in Connection With Our
Current Project to Install a New Enterprise Resource Planning System For Our Business.

We depend on our management information systems for many aspects of our business. Some of our key
software has been developed by our own programmers and this software may not be easily integrated with other
software and systems, We are implementing a new enterprise resource planning system to replace many of our
existing systems at significant locations. We face risks in connection with our current project to install a new
enterprise resource system for our business. These risks include:

* we may face delays in the design and implementation of that system;
* the cost of the system may exceed our plans and expectations; and
+ such system may damage our ability to process transactions or harm our control environment.

Our business will be materially and adversely affected if our management information systems are disrupted or
if we are unable to improve, upgrade, integrate or expand upon our systems, particularly in light of our intention to
continue to implement a new enterprise resource planning system.

Dijﬁcultiés Expanding and Evelving Our Operational Capabilities — We Face Challenges as We Integrate
New and Diverse Operations and Try to Attract Qualified Employees to Support Our Operations.

We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, growth in the scope and complexity of our
operations. For example, each business we have acquired had, at the time of acquisition, multiple systems for
managing its own production, sales, inventory and other operations. Migrating these businesses to our systems
typically is a slow, expensive process requiring us to divert significant amounts of resources from multiple aspects
of our operations. This growth has strained our managerial, financial, plant operations and other resources. Future
expansions may result in inefficiencies as we integrate new operations and manage geographically diverse
operations. Our success depends to a significant extent upon the continued service of our key senior management
and technical personnel, any of whom may be difficult to replace. Competition for qualified employees is intense,
and our business could be adversely affected by the loss of the services of any of our existing key personnel,
including senior management, as a result of competition or for any other reason. We evaluate our management team
and engage in long-term succession planning in order to ensure orderly replacement of key personnel. We do not
have employment agreements with our key employees, including senior management or other contracts that would
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prevent our key employees from working for cur competitors in the event they cease working for us. We cannot
assure you that we will be successful in these efforts or in hiring and properly training sufficient numbers of
qualified personnel and in effectively managing our growth. Our inability to aftract, retain, motivate and train
qualified new personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Dependence on Materials and Equipment Suppliers — Our Business May Suffer If The Cost, Quality or
Supply of Materials or Equipment Changes Adversely.

We obtain from various vendors the materials and equipment required for the packaging and test services
performed by our factorics. We source most of our materials, including critical materials such as leadframes,
laminate substrates and gold wire, from a limited group of suppliers. Furthermore, we purchase the majority of our
materials on a purchase order basis. From time to time, we enter into supply agreements, generally up to one year in
duration, to guarantee supply to meet projected demand. Our business may be harmed if we cannot obtain materials
and other supplies from our vendors in a timely manner, in sufficient quantities, in acceptable quality or at
competitive prices.

We purchase new packaging and test equipment to maintain and expand our operations. From time to time,
increased demand for new equipment may cause lead times to extend beyond those normally required by equipment
vendors. For example, in the past, increased demand for equipment caused some equipment suppliers to only
partially satisfy our equipment orders in the normal time frame or to increase prices during market upturns for the
semiconductor industry. The unavailability of equipment or failures to deliver equipment could delay implemen-
tation of our future expansion plans and impair our ability to meet customer orders. If we are unable to implement
our future expansion plans or meet customer orders, we could lose potential and existing customers. Generally, we
do not enter into binding, long-term equipment purchase agreements and we acquire our equipment on a purchase
order basis, which exposes us to substantial risks. For example, changes in foreign currency exchange rates could
result in increased prices for equipment purchased by us, which could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations.

We are a large buyer of gold and other commodity materials including substrates and copper. The price of gold
and other commaodities used in our business fluctuate. Historically, we have been able to partially offset the effect of
commodity price increases through price adjustments to some customers and changes in our product designs.
Significant price increases may adversely impact our gross margin in future quarters to the extent we are unable to
pass along past or future commodity price increases to our customers.

Loss of Customers — The Loss of Certain Customers May Have a Significant Adverse Effect on the
Operations and Financial Results.

The loss of a large customer or disruption of our strategic partnerships or other commercial arrangements may
result in a decline in our sales and profitability. Although we have over 300 customers, we have derived and expect
to continue to derive a large portion of our revenues from a small group of customers during any particular period
due in part to the concentration of market share in the semiconductor industry. Qur ten largest customers together
accounted for approximately 47.0%, 43.6% and 40.7% of our net sales for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. No customer accounts for more than 10% of our net sales.

The demand for our services from each customer is directty dependent upon that customer’s level of business
activity, which could vary significantly from year to year. The loss of a large customer may adversely affect our
sales and profitability, OQur key customers typically operate in the cyclical semiconductor business and, in the past,
order levels have varied significantly from period to period based on a number of factors. QOur business is likely to
remain subject 1o this variability in order levels, and we cannot assure you that these key customers or any other
customers will continue to place orders with us in the future at the same levels as in past periods. The loss of one or
more of our significant customers, or reduced orders by any one of them and our inability to replace these customers
or make up for such orders could reduce our profitability. For example, our facility in Iwate, Japan, is primarily
dedicated 10 a single customer, Toshiba Corporation. If we were to lose Toshiba as a customer or if it were to
materially reduce its business with us, it could be difficult for us to find one or more new customers to utilize the
capacity, which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and financial results. [n addition, we have a
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long term supply agreement and actively collaborate with IBM. If we were to lose IBM as a customer, this could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Capital Additions — We Believe We Need To Make Substantial Capital Additions, Which May Adversely
Affect OQur Business If Our Business Does Not Develop As We Expect.

We believe that our business requires us to make significant capital additions in order to capitalize on what we
believe is an overall trend to outsource packaging and test services. The amount of capital additions will depend on
several factors, including the performance of our business, our assessment of future industry and customer demand,
our capacity utilization levels and availability, our liquidity position and the availability of financing. Our ongoing
capital addition requirements may strain our cash and short-term asset balances, and we expect that depreciation
expense and factory operating expenses associated with our capital additions to increase production capacity will
put downward pressure on our gross margin, at least over the near term,

Furthermore, if we cannot generate or raise additional funds to pay for capital additions as well as research and
development activities, our growth prospects and future profitability may be adversely affected. Our ability to
obtain external financing in the future is subject to a variety of uncertainties, including:

« our future financial condition, results of operations and cash flows;
+ general market conditions for financing activities by semiconductor companies; and
* economic, political and other global conditions.

The lead time needed to order, install and put into service various capital additions is often significant, and as a
result we often need to commit to capital additions in advance of our receipt of firm orders or advance deposits
based on our view of anticipated future demand with only very limited visibility. Although we seek to limit our
exposure in this regard, in the past we have from time to time expended significant capital for additions for which
the anticipated demand did not materialize for a variety of reasons, many of which were outside of our control. To
the extent this occurs in the future, our business, liquidity, resulis of operations, financial condition and cash flows
could be materially adversely affected.

Impairment Charges — Any Impairment Charges Required Under GAAP May Have a Material Adverse
Effect on Our Net Income.

Under GAAP, we review our long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverablé. In addition, goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
lives are tested for impairment at least annually. We may be required in the future 1o record a significant charge to
earnings in our financial statements during the period in which any impairment of our long-lived assets is
determined. Such charges have a significant adverse impact on our results of operations and financiat condition.

Increased Litigation Incident to Our Business — Our Business May Suffer as a Result of Our Involve-
ment in Various Lawsuits.

We are currently a party to various legal proceedings, including those described in Note 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report. For example, we are engaged in an arbitration proceeding
entitled Tessera, Inc. v. Amkor Technology, Inc. We were also named as a party in a purported securities class action
suit entitled Nathan Weiss et al. v. Amkor Technology, Inc. et al. (and several similar cases which have now been
consolidated). If an unfavorable ruling or outcome were to occur in arbitration or litigation, there exists the
possibility of a material adverse impact on our business, liquidity, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows. An unfavorable ruling or outcome could also have a negative impact on the trading price of our securities.

We Could Suffer Adverse Tax and Other Financial Consequences if Taxing Authorities Do Not Agree
with Our Interpretation of Applicable Tax Laws.

Our corporate structure and operations are based, in part, on interpretations of various tax laws, including
withholding tax, compliance with tax holiday requirements, application of changes in tax law to our operations and
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other relevant laws of applicable taxing jurisdictions. From time to time, the taxing authorities of the relevant
jurisdictions may conduct examinations of our income tax returns and other regulatory filings. We cannot assure
you that the taxing authorities will agree with our interpretations. To the extent they do not agree, we may seek to
enter into settlements with the taxing authorities which require significant payments or otherwise adversely affect
our results of operations or financial condition. We may also appeal the taxing authorities’ determinations to the
appropriate governmental authorities, but we can not be sure we will prevail. If we do not prevail, we may have to
make significant payments or otherwise record charges (or reduce tax assets) that adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows,

For example, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) conducted examinations of our U.S. federal income tax
returns in prior years which resulted in various adjustments, including reductions in our U.S. net operating loss
carry-forwards. Future examinations by the taxing authorities in the U.S. or other jurisdictions may result in
additional adverse tax consequences.

Rapid Technological Change — Our Business Will Suffer If We Cannot Keep Up With Technological
Advances in Our Industry.

The complexity and breadth of semiconductor packaging and test services are rapidly increasing. As a result,
we expect that we will need to offer more advanced package designs in order to respond to competitive industry
conditions and customer requirements. Our success depends upon our ability to acquire, develop and implement
new manufacturing processes and package design technologies and tools. The need to develop and maintain
advanced packaging capabilities and equipment could require significant research and development and capital
expenditures and acquisitions in future years. In addition, converting to new package designs or process meth-
odologies could result in delays in producing new package types, which could adversely affect our ability to meet
customer orders and adversely impact our business.

Technological advances also typically lead to rapid and significant price erosion and may make our existing
products less competitive or our existing inventories obsolete. If we cannot achieve advances in package design or
obtain access to advanced package designs developed by others, our business could suffer.

Packaging and Test — The Packaging and Test Process Is Complex and Our Production Yields and Cus-
tomer Relationships May Suffer from Defects in the Services We Provide.

Semiconductor packaging and test are complex processes that require significant technological and process
expertise. The packaging process is complex and involves a number of precise steps. Defective packages primarily
result from:

» contaminants in the manufacturing environment;

¢ human error;

* equipment malfunction;

* changing processes to address environmental requirements;

s defective raw materials; or

defective plating services.

Testing is also complex and involves sophisticated equipment and software. Similar to most software
programs, these software programs are complex and may contain programming errors or “bugs.” The testing
equipment is also subject to malfunction. [n addition, the testing process is subject to operator error.

These and other factors have, from time to time, contributed to lower production yields. They may also do se in
the future, particularly as we expand our capacity or change our processing steps. In addition, to be competitive we
must continue to expand our offering of packages. Our production yields on new packages typically are signif-
icantly lower than our production yields on our more established packages.
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Qur failure to maintain high standards or acceptable production yields, if significant and prolonged, could
result in loss of customers, increased costs of production, delays, substantial amounts of returned goods and claims
by customers relating thereto. Any of these problems could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

In addition, in line with industry practice, new customers usually require us to pass a lengthy and rigorous
qualification process that may take several months. If we fail to qualify packages with potential customers or
customers, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Competition — We Compete Against Established Competitors in the Packaging and Test Business as Well
as Internal Customer Capabilities.

The subcontracted semiconductor packaging and test market is very competitive. We face substantial
competition from established packaging and test service providers primarily located in Asia, including companies
with significant processing capacity, financial resources, research and development operations, marketing and other *
capabilities. These companies also have established relationships with many large semiconductor companies that
are our current or potential customers. We also face competition from the internal capabilities and capacity of many
of our current and potential IDM customers. In addition, we may in the future have to compete with a number of
companies that may enter the market and with companies that may offer new or emerging technologies that compete
with our products and services.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully in the future against our existing or potential
competitors or that our customers will not rely on internal sources for packaging and test services, or that our
business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows will not be adversely affected by such increased
competition.

Environmental Regulations — Future Environmental Regulations Could Place Additional Burdens on
Our Manufacturing Operations.

The semiconductor packaging process uses chemicals, materials and gases and generates byproducts that are
subject to extensive governmental regulations. For example, at our foreign facilities we produce liquid waste when
semiconductor wafers are diced into chips with the aid of diamond saws, then cooled with running water. In
addition, semiconductor packages have historically utilized metallic alloys containing lead (Pb) within the
interconnect terminals typically referred to as leads, pins or balls. Federal, state and local regulations in the
U.S., as well as international environmental regulations, impose various controls on the storage, handling, discharge
and disposal of chemicals used in our production processes and on the factories we occupy and are increasingly
imposing restrictions on the materials contained in semiconductor products.

Public attention has focused on the environmental impact of semiconductor operations and the risk to
neighbors of chemical releases from such operations and to the materials contained in semiconductor products. For
example, the European Union's Restriction of Use of Certain Hazardous Substances Directive (“RoHS”) imposes
strict restrictions on the use of lead and other hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment. RoHS
became effective on July 1, 2006. In response to this directive, and similar laws and developing legislation in
countries like China, Japan and Korea, we have implemented changes in 2 number of our manufacturing processes
in an effort to achieve compliance across all of our package types. Complying with existing and future environ-
mental regulations may impose upon us the need for additional capital equipment or other process requirements,
restrict our ability to expand our operations, disrupt our operations, subject us to liability or cause us to curtail our
operations.

Intellectual Property — We May Become Involved in Intellectual Property Litigation.

We maintain an active program to protect our investment in technology by augmenting and enforcing our
intellectual property rights. Intellectual property rights that apply to our various products and services include
patents, copyrights, trade secrets and trademarks. We have filed and obtained a number of patents in the U.S. and
abroad the duration of which varies depending on the jurisdiction in which the patent is filed. While our patents are
an important element of our intellectual property strategy and our success as a whole, we are not materially
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dependent on any one patent or any one technology. The process of seeking patent protection takes a long time and
is expensive. There can be no assurance that patents will issue from pending or future applications or that, if patents
issue, the rights granted under the patents will provide us with meaningful protection or any commercial advantage.

Any patents we do obtain may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented and may not provide meaningful
protection or other commercial advantage to us. The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent claims
regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. If any third party makes an enforceable infringement claim
against us or our customers, we could be required to:

* discontinue the use of certain processes;

* cease {o provide the services at issue;

* pay substantial damages;

¢ develop non-infringilng technologies; or

* acquire licenses to the technology we had allegedly infringed.

Some of our technologies are not covered by any patent or patent application, The confidentiality agreements
on which we rely to protect these technologies may be breached and may not be adequate to protect our proprietary
technologies. There can be no assurance that other countries in which we market our services will protect our
intellectual property rights to the same extent as the United States.

Our competitors may develop, patent or gain access to know-how and technology similar to our own. In
addition, many of our patents are subject to cross licenses, several of which are with our competitors.

We may need to enforce our patents or other intellectual property rights or defend ourselves against claimed
infringement of the rights of others through litigation, which ¢ould result in substantial cost and diversion of our
resources. Furthermore, if we fail to obtain necessary licenses, our business could suffer. We are currently involved
in three legal proceedings involving the acquisition of intellectval property rights, the enforcement of our existing
intellectual property rights or the enforcement of the intellectual property rights of others. We refer you to the
matters of Tessera, Inc. v. Amkor Technology, Inc., Amkor Technology, Inc. v. Motorola, Inc., and Amkor
Technology, Inc. v. Carsem, et al., which are described in more detail in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report. Unfavorable outcomes in one or more of these matters could result in
significant liabilities and could have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows. The potential impact from the legal proceedings referred 1o in this report on our
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could change in the future.

Fire, Flood or Other Calamity — With Our Operations Conducted in a Limited Number of Facilities, a
Fire, Flpod or Other Calamity at one of Our Facilities Could Adversely Affect Us.

We conduct cur packaging and test operations at a limited number of facilities. Significant damage or other
impediments to any of these facilities, whether as a result of fire, weather, the outbreak of infectious diseases (such
as SARs or flu), civil strife, industriai strikes, breakdowns of equipment, difficulties or delays in obtaining materials
and equipment, natural disasters, terrorist incidents, industrial accidents or other causes could temporarily disrupt or
even shut down our operations, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. In the event of such a disruption or shutdown, we may be unable to reallocate production to
other facilities in a timely or cost-effective manner (if at all} and may not have sufficient capacity to service
customer demands in our other facilities. For example, our operations in Asia are vulnerable to regional typhoons
that can bring with them destructive winds and torrential rains, which could in turn cause plant closures and
transportation interruptions. In-addition, some of the processes that we utilize in our operations place us at risk of
fire and other damage. For example, highly flammable gases are used in the preparation of wafers holding
semiconductor devices for flip chip packaging. While we maintain insurance policies for various types of property,
casualty and other risks, we do not carry insurance for all the above referred risks and with regard to the insurance
we do maintain, we cannot assure you that it would be sufficient to cover all of our potential losses.
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Continued Control By Existing Stockholders — Mr. James J. Kim and Members of His Family Can Sub-
stantially Control The Outcome of All Matters Requiring Stockholder Approval.

As of December 31, 2007, Mr. James J. Kim, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, members
of Mr. Kim's immediate family and certain family trusts beneficiatly owned approximately 45% of our outstanding
common stock. This percentage includes beneficial ownership of the securities underlying our 6.25% convertible
subordinated notes due 2013. Mr. James J. Kim’s family, acting together, have the ability to effectively determine
matters (other than interested party transactions) submitted for approval by our stockholders by voting their shares,
including the election of all of the members of our Board of Directors. There is also the potential, through the
election of members of our Board of Directors, that Mr. Kim’s family could substantially influence matters decided
upon by the Board of Directors. This concentration of ownership may also have the effect of impeding a merger,
consolidation, takeover or other business consolidation involving us, or discouraging a potential acquirer from
making a tender offer for our shares, and could also negatively affect our stock’s market price or decrease any
premium over market price that an acquirer might otherwise pay.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We provide packaging and test services through our factories in China, Japan, Korea, the Philippines,
Singapore, Taiwan and the U.S. The size, location and manufacturing services provided by each of our factories are
set forth in the table below.

Approximate

Factory Size
Location (Square feet) Services
Korea
Seoul, Korea-K1{(1) ... ... . .......... 670,000 Packaging services
Package and process development
Pupyong, Korea-K3(1). .............. 432,000 Packaging and test services
Kwangju, Korea-K4(1) .............. 888,000 Packaging and test services
Philippines
Muntinlupa, Philippines-P1(2) ......... 576,000 Packaging and test services
Package and process development
Muntinlupa, Philippines-P2(2) .. ....... 155,000 Packaging services
Province of Laguna, Philippines-P3(2) ... 400,000 Packaging services
Province of Laguna, Philippines-P4(2} ... 225,000 Test services
Taiwan
Lung Tan, Taiwan-TI(L) ............. 307,000 Packaging and test services
Hsinchu, Taiwan-T3(1) .............. 314,000 Packaging and test services
Hsinchu, Taiwan-TS(1} .............. 101,000 Wafer bump services
China
Shanghai, China-C1(3) .............. 170,000 Packaging and test services
Shanghai, China-C3(4) .............. 953,000 Packaging and test services
Japan
Kitakami, Japan(3) ................. 120,000 Packaging and test services
Singapore
Kaki Bukir, Singapore-S1(3) .......... 141,000 Test services
Science Park, Singapore-83(5)......... 165,000 Wafer bumping services
United States
Raleigh-Durham, NC(3) ............. 37,000 Wafer bumping services
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(1) Owned facility and land.

(2) Asaresult of foreign ownership restrictions in the Philippines, the land associated with our Philippine factories
is leased from realty companies in which we own a 40% interest. We own the buildings at our P1, P3 and P4
facilities and lease the buildings at our P2 facility from one of the aforementioned realty companies.

(3) Leased facility.

(4) Owned facility. 390,000 square feet were facilitized with a clean room manufacturing environment and
equipment as of December 31, 2007. An additional 60,000 square feet will be facilitized in early 2008, Land is
leased,

(5) Owned facility. Land is leased.
We believe that our existing properties are in good condition and suitable for the conduct of our business. At

the end of 2007, we were productively utilizing the majority of the space in our facilities. We intend to expand our
production capacity in 2008 and beyond as necessary to meet customer demand.

Our principal executive office and operational heddquarters is located in Chandler, Arizona. In addition to
executive staff, the Chandler, Arizona campus houses sales and customer service for the southwest region, product
management, finance, information systems, planning and marketing. Our marketing and sales office locations
include sites in the U.S. (Chandler, Arizona; Irvine and Santa Clara, California; Boston, Massachusetts;
Greensboro, North Carolina; and Austin and Dallas, Texas), China, France, Japan, Korea, the Philippines,
Singapore and Taiwan.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

For a discussion of “Legal Proceedings,” see Note 15 “Commitments and Contingencies” to our Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

LISTING ON THE NASDAQ GLOBAL SELECT MARKET

Qur common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “AMKR.” The following
table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale price per share of our common stock as quoted on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market, '

ﬂ Low

2007

FArSt QUAIEr . . . oottt e e e e et e $12.98 § 9.81

Second QUarEr. . .. . . . i e e 15.75 12.82

Third QUArter . . . ... i e e e s 16.18 9.80

Fourth Quarter . ... ... ... .. i i i e 12.27 1.72
2006 '

FAESE QUAIIET . o v v v v e e e e et et e et ettt te e e e $1000 $ 499

Second QUArer . . ... ... e e 13.09 8.09

Third QUAKET . . . . o ettt et e et e 9.98 4.61

Fourth QUAarter . ... .. ..ttt e e iaens 10.68 4.92

There were approximately 190 holders of record of our common stock as of January 31, 2008.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Since our public offering in 1998, we have never paid a dividend to our stockholders and we do not currently
anticipate doing so. In addition, our secured bank debt agreements and the indentures governing our senior and
senior subordinated notes restrict our ability to pay dividends. Refer to the Liquidity and Capital Resources Section
in Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis.”

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

None.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The information required by this item regarding equity compensation plans is set forth in Item 12 “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matiers™ of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS

None.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH(1)

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Amkor Technology, Inc., The S&P 500 Index
And The Philadelphia Semiconductor Index
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* 8100 invested on 12/31/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright® 2008, Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.
www.researchdatagroup.com/S&P.htm

(1) The preceding Stock Performance Graph is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and shall not be incorporated by

reference in any of our filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whether made before or after the date
hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing,
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 have been derived from our audited Consolidated Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report. The selected consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 have been derived from our historical Consolidated Financial
Statements which are not included in this Annual Report. You should read the selected consolidated financial data in
conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our
consolidated financial statements, both of which are included in this Annual Report.

The summary consolidated financial data below reflects the following transactions on a historical basis: (i) our
2004 acquisitions of the remaining 40% ownership interest in Amkor Iwate Corporation, certain packaging and test
assets from IBM, 60% of Unitive Semiconductor Taiwan (“UST”) and 100% of Unitive, and (ii) our 2006
acquisition of substantially all of the remaining 40% interest in UST. On February 28, 2003, we sold our wafer
fabrication services business to ASI. We historically marketed the output of fabricated semiconductor wafers
provided by a wafer fabrication foundry owned and operated by ASI. We restated our historical results to reflect our
wafer fabrication services segment as a discontinued operation.

SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Netsales...........oooi i, $2,739,445 $2,728,560 $2,099,949 $1,901,279 $1,603,768
Costofsales..... ... . ... . civa.... 2,057,572 2,053,600 1,744,178 1,538,009 1,270,579
Grossprofit. ... ... .t 681,873 674,960 355,771 363,270 333,189
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative. . . .. ... .. 251,249 250,142 243,319 224,781 187,254
Research and development. .. ............. 41,650 38,735 37,347 36,707 30,167
Gain on sale of specialty test operations(a). . . . (1,717) — (4,408) —_ —
Provision for legal settlements and
contingencies(b). ... ........ ... .. .. — 1,000 50,000 — —
Total operating expenses . .............. 291,182 289,877 326,258 261488 217421
Operating income .. ......... .. 0 uiuiuann 390,691 385,083 29,513 101,782 115,768
Other (income) expense:
Interest expense, net ... ... ... ... 124,099 154,807 165,351 148,902 140,281
Interest expense, related party . ............ 6,250 6,477 521 — —
Foreign currency (gain) loss. . ............. 8,961 13,255 9,318 6,190 (3,022)
Debt retirement costs(C). . oo v v v i nn . 15,876 27,389 (253) — 37,800
Other (income) expense, net{(d) . ........... 668 661 (191)  (24,444) (6,748)
Total other expense, net . .. ............. 155,854 202,589 174,746 130,648 168,311

Income (loss) before equity investment losses,
income taxes, minority interest and

discontinued operations . ................. 234,837 182,494  (145,233) (28,866) (52,543)
Equity investment losses(e) ................. — — 55 (2) (3,290}
Income tax expense (benefit) . ............... 12,597 11,208 (5,551 15,192 (233)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

minority interest ......... ... .. ... ... 222,240 171,286  (139,737)  (44,060)  (55,600)
Minority interest, net of tax(f) ... ... .. e (2,376) (1,202} 2,502 (904) (4,008)
Income (loss) from continuing operations. ... ... 219,864 170,084 (137,235) (44,964)  (59,608)
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For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share data)

Discontinued operations:
Income from wafer fabrication services

business, netoftax ................... —_— —_ —_ — 54,170
Netincome (loss) . ... ..o viinn i, $ 219,864 $ 170,084 $ (137,235)8 (44,964)% (5,438)
Basic income (loss) per common share:

From continuing operations .. ............. $ 1.22 8 096 $ (0.78) % 0.26)% (0.35)

From discontinued operations. . ............ — — — — (.32
Net income (loss) per common share . ......... $ 1.22 § 0.96 $ (0.78) {0.26)% (0.03)
Diluted income (loss) per common share:

From continuing operations . .............. 3 1.11 § 090 3% {0.78) 8 (0.26)% (0.35)

From discontinued operations. . . ........... — — —_ — 0.32
Net income (loss) per common share .. ........ 3 1.11 § 0.90 % 0.78) (0.26) % (0.03)

Shares used in computing basic and diluted

BasiC. ... e 180,597 177,682 176,385 175,342 167,142
Diluted ........... .0 i 208,767 199,556 176,385 175,342 167,142
Other Financial Data:
Depreciation and amortization ............. $ 283267 $ 273,845 § 248,637 § 230,344 § 219,735
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
related to continuing operations .......... 236,240 315,873 295943 407,740 150,891

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands}

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents . . ... ..., $ 410,070 § 244694 $ 206,575 $ 372,284 $ 313,259
Working capital . . ............... 310,341 215,095 131,362 346,578 337,683
Total assets . ................... 3,192,606 3,041,264 2,955,091 2,965,368 2,563,919
Total long-term debt .. ... . ... .. 1,611,570 1,819,901 1,956,247 2,040,813 1,650,707

Total debt, including short-term
borrowings and current portion of

long-termdebt................ 1,764,059 2,005,315 2,140,636 2,092,960 1,679,372
Additional paid-in capital.......... 1,482,186 1,441,194 1,431,543 1,428,368 1,414,669
Accumulated deficit. . ............ (821,526) (1,041,390) (1,211,474) (1,074,239) (1,029,275)
Stockholders’ equity ............. 654,619 393,920 223,905 369,151 400,770

(a) During the fourth quarter of 2005, we recognized a $4.4 million gain on the sale of our specialty test operation
based in Wichita, Kansas. This sale did not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. During the third
quarter of 2007, we recognized an additional gain of $1.7 million as a result of an earn-out provision provided in
the asset purchase agreement.

(b) During the first quarter of 2005, we recorded a $50.0 million provision for legal settlements and contingencies
related to the epoxy mold compound litigation. In the first quarter of 2006, we recorded an additional
$1.0 million provision due to the settlement of an epoxy mold compound case.

(¢) During the second quarter of 2007 we recorded a loss on debt retirement of $15.9 million related to the
refinancing of the second lien term loan. During the second quarter of 2006 we recorded a loss on debt
retirement of $27.4 million related to the tender offer to purchase $352.3 million principal amount of our
9.25% Senior Notes due February 2008 and the repurchase of $178.1 million of the 10.5% Senior Subordinated
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Notes due May 2009. In 2003, we recognized a loss of $37.8 million as a result of the early extinguishment of
$425.0 million principal amount of our 9.25% senior notes due 2006, $29.5 million principal amount of our
9.25% senior notes due 2008, $17.0 million principal amount of our 5.75% convertible subordinated notes due
2006 and $112.3 million principal amount of our 5% convertible subordinated notes due 2007.

(d) In April 2004, we sold 10.1 million shares of ASI common stock for approximately $49.7 million and recorded
an associated gain of $21.6 million. During 2003, we recognized a $7.3 million gain on the sale of our
investment in an intellectual property company.

(¢} On March 24, 2003, we divested 7 million shares of ASI which reduced our ownership percentage in ASI to
16% at that time and we ceased accounting for our investment in ASI under the equity method of accounting.

(f) In 2003, minority interests primarily reflect Toshiba’s 40% ownership interest in Amkor [wate in Japan which
we acquired in January 2004. In 2005 and 2004, minority interest primarily reflects the 40% minority ownership
interest in UST in which we acquired a majority interest during August 2004. In January 2006, we acquired an
additional interest in UST resulting in a remaining minority interest of 0.14%.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities
laws, including but not limited to statements regarding: (1) the condition and growth of the industry in which we
operate, including trends toward increased outsourcing, reductions in inventory and demand and selling prices for
our services, (2) our anticipated capital expenditures and financing needs, (3) our belief as to our future capacity
utilization rates, revenue, gross margin and operating performance, (4) our contractual obligations and (5) other
statements that are not historical facts. In some cases, you can identify forward- looking statements by terminology
such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,”
“continue,” “intend,” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. Because such statements
include risks and uncertainties, actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking
statements as a result of certain factors, including those set forth in the following discussion as well as in Item |A
“Risk Factors” of this Annual Report. The following discussion provides information and analysis of our results of
operations for the three years ended December 31, 2007 and our liquidity and capital resources. You should read the
following discussion in conjunction with Item 1 “Business,” Item 6 “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and
Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplemental Data” in this Annual Report as well as other reports we file with the
SEC.

o LE T

Overview

Amkor is one of the world’s largest subcontractors of semiconductor packaging and test services. Packaging
and test are integral steps in the process of manufacturing semiconductor devices. The manufacturing process
begins with silicon wafers and involves the fabrication of electronic circuitry into complex patterns, thus creating
large numbers of individual chips on the wafers. The fabricated wafers are then probe tested to ensure the individual
devices meet electrical specifications. The packaging process creates an electrical interconnect between the
semiconductor chip and the system board. In packaging, fabricated semiconductor wafers are separated into
individual chips. These chips are typically attached through wire bond or wafer bump technologics to a substrate or
leadframe and then encased in a protective material. In the case of an advanced wafer level package, the package is
assembled on the surface of a wafer.

Qur packages are designed for application specific body size and electrical connection requirements to provide
optimal electrical connectivity and thermal performance. The packaged chips are then tested using sophisticated
equipment to ensure that each packaged chip meets its design and performance specifications. Increasingly,
packages are custom designed for specific chips and specific end-market applications. We are able to provide
turnkey assembly and test solutions including semiconductor wafer bump, wafer probe, wafer backgrind, package
design, assembly, test and drop shipment services.

Our net sales for each of 2007 and 2006 were $2.7 billion per year. Net income for 2007 was $219.9 million, or
$1.11 per diluted share, compared with net income in 2006 of $170.1 million, or $0.90 per diluted share. 2007 net
sales reflect the growth of our advanced packaging solutions and the benefit of our investments in flip chip and
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wafer level packaging, 3D packaging and test. The strength in these areas was partially offset by a decrease in our
traditional leadframe packaging services.

Favorable business conditions in our industry sector have allowed us to improve our product mix, benefit from
relatively stable pricing and recover a portion of the increased costs of commodities from our customers. Gross
margin for 2007 of 24.9% was up slightly from 24.7% in 2006,

Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2007 increased by 0.4% or $1.1 million over 2006 primarily as
a result of additional costs associated with contracted services in conjunction with our ongoing global enterprise
resource planning information systems implementation.

Net interest expense in 2007 decreased $30.9 million due to our continued focus to strengthen our liquidity by
reducing debt as well as refinancing debt with lower interest rate instruments.

In 2007, our capital additions of $293.9 million focused on strategic growth areas of advanced laminate, test
services, wafer bump and flip chip packaging capacity. We continue to manage our production lines, allocate assets
and selectively expand our capacity. Our capital investments have been, and we expect will continue to be, primarily
focused on increasing our advanced laminate, test services, wafer bump and flip chip packaging capacity. In
addition, we continue to make investments in our information systems.

Due to improved operating results, cash provided by operating activities increased $79.8 million to $603.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to $523.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Cash flow
from operations generated during 2007 funded capital purchases of $236.2 million leaving $367.2 million of free cash
flow (defined below). Please see the Liquidity and Capital Resources section below for a further analysis of the change in
our balance sheet and cash flows during 2007,

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain operating data as a percentage of net sales for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Netsales ... e e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Gross profit . .. ... e e 249% 24.7% 16.9%
Operating income. . ............... A 143% 14.1% 1.4%
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests. ............. 8.6% 6.7% (6.9Y%
Netincome (J0S8) . .. ..o i i i i e 80% 62% (6.5%

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006

Net Sales. Net sales increased $10.9 million, or 0.4%, to $2,739.4 million in 2007 from $2,728.6 million in
2006. The increase is principally a result of improved sales of our flip chip and 3D packages and test services in
support of high-end wireless communications, computing and gaming applications. Partially offsetting this increase
was decreased demand for modules and traditional leadframe packages.

Packaging Net Sales. Packaging net sales decreased $19.1 millicn, or 0.8%, to $2,430.4 million for 2007
from $2,449.4 million in 2006 due primarily to lower unit volumes, partially offset by improved product mix. The
improvement in product mix reflected a shift from traditional leadframe packages to advanced technologics
including flip chip and 3D packaging during the year. Packaging unit volume decreased to 8.7 billion units in 2007
from 8.8 billion units in 2006.

Test Net Sales.  Test net sales increased $29.7 million, or 10.6%, to $309.6 million in 2007 from $280.0 million in
2006 principally due to an increase in the number of units tested in our test facilities.

Cost of Sales. Our cost of sales consists principally of materials, labor, depreciation and manufacturing
overhead. Because a substantial portion of the costs at our factories is fixed, relatively modest increases or decreases
in capacity utilization rates can have a significant effect on our gross margin.
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Material costs as a percentage of net sales decreased from 38.8% for the year ended December 31, 2006 to
37.7% for the year ended December 31, 2007 due to change in mix to packages with lower material content as a
percentage of net sales.

Labor costs in absolute dollars were up due to salary and benefit increases, partially offset by a reduction in
headcount. As a percentage of net sales, labor costs increased to 16.0% for the year ended December 31, 2007 from
14.99% for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase was due to increased salary and benefit costs and the
weakening of the U.S. dollar against the Korean Won and Philippine Peso as a substantial portion of our work force
is paid in local currencies.

As a percentage of net sales, other manufacturing costs decreased slightly to 21.4% for the year ended December 31,
2007 from 21.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006 due to increased overhead utilization and productivity. Other
manufacturing costs in absolute dollars decreased principally as a result of a decrease in factory supplies and repairs and
maintenance. This is partially offset by increases for depreciation costs as a result of our capital expenditures.

Stock-based compensation included in cost of sales was $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Gross Profit.  Gross profit increased $6.9 million to $681.9 million, or 24.9% of net sales in 2007 from
$675.0 million, or 24.7% of net sales, in 2006. The slight increase in gross profit and gross margin was due to
increases in flip chip and 3D packages and test services partially offset by decreases in traditional leadframe
packages.

Packaging Gross Profit.  Gross profit for packaging decreased $8.6 million to $577.8 million, or 23.8% of
packaging net sales, in 2007 from $586.3 million, or 23.9% of packaging net sales, in 2006. The packaging gross
profit decrease was primarily due to a decrease in our traditional leadframe packages offset by favorable product
mix, consisting of an increase in our advanced package technologies including flip chip and 3D packages.

Test Gross Profit.  Gross profit for test in 2007 increased $13.9 million to $103.4 million, or 33.4% of test net
sales from $89.6 million, or 32.0% of test net sales, in 2006. This increase was primarily due to increased volume
and greater recovery of ancillary test services from our customers.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased
$1.1 million, or 0.4%, to $251.2 million for 2007, from $250.1 million for 2006. The increase was caused by
an increase in contracted services in conjunction with our global enterprise resource planning information systems
implementation as well as increased labor and benefit costs, Selling, general and administrative expenses for 2006
reflected higher spending for professional fees due to the stock option investigation and other related matters.

Research and Development. Research and development activities are currently focused on advanced
laminate, flip chip and wafer level packaging services. Research and development expenses increased $2.9 million
to $41.7 million, or 1.5% of net sales for 2007 from $38.7 million, or 1.4% of net sales in 2006. Qur increase in our
research and development expenses was primarily related to increased labor and benefits costs.

Gain on Sale of Specialty Test Operations. In Qctober 2005, we divested a specialty test operation and
recognized a gain of $4.4 million. In 2007, we recognized an additional gain of $1.7 million as a result of an earn-out
provision provided in the asset purchase agreement.

Other {Income) Expense. Other expense, net decreased $46.7 million to $155.9 million, or 5.7% of net sales
for 2007 from $202.6 million, or 7.4% of net sales in 2006. This decrease is primarily driven by the $30.9 miliion
reduction in net interest expense due to our continued focus to strengthen our liquidity by reducing debt as well as
refinancing debt with lower interest rate instruments. In addition, in 2007 we recognized $15.9 miilion in debt
retirement costs compared to $27.4 million in 2006.

Income Tax Expense. In 2007, we recorded an income tax expense of $12.6 millicon reflecting an effective tax
rate of 5.4% as compared to an income tax expense of $11.2 million in 2006 reflecting an effective tax rate of 6.1%.
Generally, our effective tax rate is substantially below the U.S. federal tax rate of 35% because we have experienced
taxable losses in the U.S. in recent years and our income is currently taxed in foreign jurisdictions where we benefit
from tax holidays or tax rates lower than the U.S. statutory tax rate. Income tax expense primarily consists of taxes
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related to our profitable foreign tax jurisdictions and foreign withholding taxes. In addition, continued profitability
of our largest subsidiary in Taiwan enabled us to utilize all of its net operating loss carryforwards in 2007 and release
its valuation allowance on all deferred tax assets. This benefited our overall effective tax rate by 7.6% in 2007.

At December 31, 2007, we had U.S. net operating loss carryforwards totaling $364.3 million, which expire at
various times through 2027, At December 31, 2007, we continued to record a valuation alJlowance on a substantial
portion of our deferred tax assets, including our net operating loss carryforwards, and will release such valuation
allowance when sufficient net positive evidence exists to conclude that it is more likely than not the deferred tax
assets will be realized.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net Sales. Net sales increased $628.6 million, or 30%, to $2,728.6 million in 2006 from $2,100.0 million in
2005. The increase is principally driven by increased unit volume, product mix and to a lesser extent the impact of
favorable pricing.

Packaging Ner Sales. Packaging net sales increased $547.2 million, or 28.8%, to $2,449.4 million for 2006
from $1,902.2 million in 2005 principally driven by increased volume, improved product mix and, to a lesser extent,
the impact of favorable pricing. Packaging unit volume increased to 8.8 billion units in 2006 from 7.5 billion units in
2005, The improvement in product mix is principally driven by our flip chip packaging services. The increase in
unit volume is principally attributed to growth in our MicroleadFrame® packages, other Leadframe packages, chip
scale packages and System-in-Package modules.

Test Net Sales.  Test net sales increased $81.9 million, or 41.3%, to $280.0 million in 2006 from $198.1 million in
2005 principally due to the production ramp of our new test facility in Singapore, an increase in units in our other test
facilities and product mix.

Cost of Sales. Our cost of sales consists principally of materials, labor, depreciation and manufacturing
overhead. Because a substantial portion of our costs at our factories is fixed, relatively insignificant increases or
decreases in capacity utilization rates can have a significant effect on our gross margin.

Material costs in absolute dollars increased due to the volume increase, favorable product mix and firm pricing
environment. Material costs as a percent of revenue decreased from 40.9% for the year ended December 31, 2005 to
38.8% for the year ended December 31, 2006 due to improving product mix, recovery of increasing commodity
prices from our customers and higher average selling prices on some of our products.

Labor costs in absolute dollars were up due to increased volume and higher labor and benefit costs. However,
as a percentage of net sales, labor declined to 14.9% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 17.9% for the year
ended December 31, 2005 due to increased labor utilization and productivity.

Other manufacturing costs increased as a result of the increased volume and added costs asscciated with our
newer factories. During 2006 we commenced operations in our new Singapore wafer bump factory and our new
factory in Shanghai. Other manufacturing costs also increased for depreciation costs as a result of our capital
expenditures, which are focused on increasing our wafer bump, flip chip, test and advanced laminate packaging
capacity. As a percentage of net sales, other manufacturing costs decreased to 21.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2006 from 24.3% for the year ended December 31, 2005 due to increased overhead utilization
and productivity.

Stock-based compensation included in cost of sales was $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
due to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) compared to less than $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
which was accounted for under APB No. 25.

Gross Profit.  Gross profit increased $319.2 million to $675.0 million, or 24.7% of net sales in 2006 from
$355.8 million, or 16.9% of net sales, in 2005. The increase in gross profit and gross margin was due to higher unit
sales, favorable mix, recovery of commodity price increases from our customers and a firm pricing environment.

Packaging Gross Profit,  Gross profit for packaging increased $265.7 million to $586.3 million, or 23.9% of
packaging net sales, in 2006 from $320.6 million, or 16.9% of packaging net sales, in 2005. The packaging gross
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profit increase was primarily due to increased volume, favorable product mix, asset management and recovery of
commodity price increases from our customers,

Test Gross Profit.  Gross profit for test increased $54.2 million to $89.6 million, or 32.0% of test net sales,
2006 from $35.4 million, or 17.9% of test net sales, in 2005. This increase was primarily due to increased volume,
favorable product mix, improved labor and overhead utilization, asset management and greater recovery of
ancillary test services from our customers.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased
$6.8 million, or 2.8%, to $250.1 million for 2006, from $243.3 million for 2005. The increase was caused by
$12.7 million in costs associated with professional fees incurred for the stock option investigation, financial
statement restatement, the consent solicitation and other related financing activities. Also included is stock-based
compensation related to the implementation in 2006 of SFAS No. 123(R) for $2.8 million. In addition we
established an accrual for employee incentive and performance bonuses. These additional costs are partially offset
by our contineed focus on cost reduction initiatives and a reduction in corporate salary costs due to headcount
reductions in the third and fourth quarters of 2005.

Other (Income) Expense. Other expenses, net increased $27.8 million from 2005 to 2006. This increase is
primarily driven by the debt retirement costs of $27.4 million.

Income Tax Expense.  In 2006, we recorded an income tax expense of $1 1.2 million reflecting an effective tax
rate of 6.1% as compared to an income tax benefit of $5.6 million in 2005 reflecting an effective tax rate of 3.8%.
Our 2006 tax provision of $11.2 million primarily consists of taxes related to our profitable foreign tax jurisdictions
and foreign withholding taxes. The income tax benefit in 2005 was driven by the finalization of our Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”) audits of our U.S. federal income tax returns for the years 2000 and 2001 ($3.4 million),
the issuance of regulations by the IRS in January 2006 clarifying the tax status of certain of our foreign subsidiaries
($6.5 million), and the net release of other U.S. and foreign reserves applicable to prior years {($1.3 million). The
income tax benefit in 2005 was partially offset by foreign withholding taxes and income taxes at our profitable
foreign locations.

Quarterly Results

The following table sets forth our unaudited consolidated financtal data for the last eight quarters ended
December 31, 2007. Our results of operations have varied and may continue to vary from guarter to quarter and are
not necessarily indicative of the results of any future period. The financia! data reflects the January 2006 acquisition
of substantially all of the remaining 40% interest in UST.

We believe that we have included ali adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments necessary
for a fair statement of our selected quarterly data. You should read our selected quarterly data in conjunction with
our Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes, included in Item 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report.

Our net sales, gross profit and operating income are generally lower in the first quarter of the year as compared
to the fourth quarter of the preceding year primarily due to the combined effect of holidays in the U.S. and Asia.
Semiconductor companies in the U.S. generally reduce their production during the holidays at the end of December
which results in a significant decrease in orders for packaging and test services during the first two weeks of
January.
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The calculation of basic and diluted per share amounts for each quarter is based on the weighted average shares
outstanding for that period; consequently, the sum of the quarters may not necessarily be equal to the full year basic

and diluted net income per share.

Quarter Ended
Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, March 31, Dec 31, Sept. 30,  June 30, March 31,
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
(In thousands, except per share data)
Netsales. ................ ... ... $746,888 $689,083 $652,486 $650,988 $683,011 3713829 $686,631 $645,089
Costofsales . ... . ........... . ... 543976 519,152 490,794 503,650 509,879 536,062 517,307 490,352
Grossprofit........... ..., 202912 169931 161,692 147,338 173,132 177,767 169,324 154,737
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative. . . . 62,142 64,080 62,360 62,667 62494 68477 58967 60,204
Research and development . .. ...... 10,720 10,282 11,023, 9,625 9,337 9,653 10,315 9,430
Gain on sale of specialty test
operations. . ... .. ... —_ (1,71 — — — — — —
Provision for legal settlements and
CONLNEENCIES . . ... ovvnvnnnn — — — — — — — 1,000
Total operating expenses. . . ... ... 72,862 72645 73383 72292 71,831 78,130 69,282 70,634
Operating income .. ... ............. 130,050 97,286 88,309 75046 101,301 99,637 100,042 84,103
Other expense, net . ... ............ 32,699 34,552 52,581 35022 38987 43,723 73942 45937
Income before income taxes, '
and minority interest . . . ....... ... 97351 62,734 35728 39,024 62314 55914 26100 38,166
Income tax expense . .............. 3,024 1,194 4,272 4,107 2,743 2,881 1,972 3,612
Income before minority interest ... ... . 94,327 61,540 31456 34917 59,571 53,033 24,128 34,554
Minority interest, netof tax . .. ... . ... (663) (920} (466) (327) (524 (223) (340) (115)
Netincome ... ...c.ovviuunrvnnnn $ 93664 3 60,620 $ 30,990 $ 34,590 $ 59,047 § 52,810 § 23,788 § 34,439
Net income per common share:
Basic ........ .. ... it $ 052 % 0338% 0173% 019§ 033§ 030 3% 013 38 019
Diluted . ............... . ..... $ 046 % 0308 016 % 018§ 030 % 027 % 013 § 019

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generated net income of $219.9 million and $170.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. This compares to a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2005 of $137.2 million. Qur
operating activities provided cash totaling $603.4 million in 2007, $523.6 million in 2006 and $97.2 million in
2005. In 2007 and 2006, cash flow from operating activities was sufficient to fully cover cash used for investing
activities as well as decrease our debt.

Although we have a significant level of debt, with $1,764.1 million outstanding at December 31, 2007, of
which $152.5 million is current, we have continued to strengthen our liquidity by using existing cash to reduce our
debt and by refinancing debt with lower interest rates and favorable terms as demonstrated by the following:

» February 2008, we repaid the remaining batance of $88.2 million of our 9.25% Senior Notes at the maturity
date with cash on hand;

+ November 2007, we used existing cash resources to repurchase $3.0 million of our 7.75% Senior notes due
May 2013 and $10.0 million of our 9.25% Senior notes due June 2016;

« June 2007, we redeemed the remaining $21.9 million of the 2009 10.5% senior subordinated notes
outstanding with cash on hand;

« April 2007, we refinanced our $300.0 million second lien term loan due in 2010 with a lower interest secured
credit facility that amortizes in 28 equal quarterly payments through April 2014;
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« March 2007, we used existing cash resources to retire the remaining $142.4 million in 5% convertible notes
at maturity;

+ June 2006, we repaid $132.0 million, from cash on hand, of our 5.75% convertible subordinated notes at the
maturity date; and

» May 2006, we issued $400 million of 9.25% senior notes due June 2016 and $190 millicn of 2.5% sentor
subordinated convertible notes due May 2011 to refinance existing indebtedness.

We were in compliance with all debt covenants at December 31, 2007 and expect to remain in compliance with
these covenants for at least the next twelve months, The interest payments required on our debt are substantial. For
example, for the year ended December 31, 2007, we paid $136.0 million of interest. (See “Capital Additions and
Contractual Obligations™ below for a summary of principal and interest payments.)

In order to reduce leverage and future cash interest payments, we may from time to time repurchase our
outstanding notes for cash or exchange shares of our common stock for our outstanding notes. Any such transactions
may be made in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions and are subject to the terms of our
indentures and other debt agreements, market conditions and other factors.

We operate in a capital intensive industry. Servicing our current and future customers requires that we incur
significant operating expenses and continue to make significant capital expenditures, which are generally made in
advance of the related revenues and without any firm customer commitments. During 2007, we had capital
additions of $293.9 million or 10.7% of net sales compared to 11.0% of net sales in 2006. In 2008 we currently
anticipate making capital additions in the range of approximately 11% to 14% of net sales, of which 70% is
expected to be in support of packaging, 20% for test and 10% for infrastructure.

The source of funds for our operations, including making capital expenditures and servicing principal and
interest obligations with respect to our debt, are cash flows from our operations, current cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings under available debt facilities, or proceeds from any additional debt or equity financings. As of
December 31, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of $410.1 million and $99.8 million available under our
$100 million first lien senior secured revolving credit facility.

We assess our liquidity based on our current expectations regarding sales, operating expenses, capital spending
and debt service requirements. Based on this assessment, we believe that our cash flow from operating activities
together with existing cash and cash equivalents and availability under our first lien senior secured revolving credit
facility will be sufficient to fund our working capital, capital expenditure and debt service requirements for at least
the next twelve months including the retirement of the remaining $88.2 million of our 9.25% Senior notes at
maturity in February 2008. Thereafter, our liquidity will continue to be affected by, among other things, the
performance of our business, our capital expenditure levels and our ability to either repay debt out of operating cash
flow or refinance debt at or prior to maturity with the proceeds of debt or equity offerings. If our performance or
access to the capital markets differs materially from our expectations, our liquidity may be adversely impacted.

There is no assurance that we will generate the necessary net income or operating cash flows to meet the
funding needs of our business beycnd the next twelve months due to a variety of factors, including the cyclical
nature of the semiconductor industry and the other factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A *Risk Factors.”

Many of our debt agreements restrict our ability to pay dividends. We have never paid a dividend to our
stockholders and we do not currently anticipate doing so. We expect cash flows, if any, to be used in the operation
and expansion of our business, the repayment or repurchase of debt and for other corporate purposes.

Cash flows

Cash provided by operating activities was $603.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to
$523.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Free cash flow (which we define as net cash provided by
operating activities less purchases of property, plant and equipment) increased by $159.4 million to $367.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $207.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Approximately 57% of our free cash flow of $367.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 was used in net
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financing activities and the remaining amount increased our cash balances. See further discussion of free cash flow
under “Financing activities” below.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating, investing and financing activities for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2605
(In thousands)
Operating activities. . . ... .. ... ... i, $ 603,430 $523630 § 97,157
Investing activities . ... ...t in ittt en e (231,299) 314,797y  (307,010)
Financing activities. .. ..... ... .. ... ... . ... (208,450) (169,231 47,638

Operating activities:  Qur cash flow from aperating activities in 2007 increased $79.8 million to $603.4 million
from $523.6 million in 2006. This increase in operating cash flows is principally a result of positive changes in assets and
liabitities and lower interest paid, partially offset by the payment of prepayment fees in connection with refinancings. Net
interest expense in 2007 decreased by $30.9 million as compared to 2006 as a result of reduced debt levels as well as
refinancing debt with lower interest rate instruments. Operating cash flows in 2007 were reduced by $9.0 million for
prepayment fees in connection with refinancing our second lien term loan. Changes in assets and liabilities increased
operating cash flows by $54.2 mitlion in 2007 compared to 2006 driven largely by reduced levels of inventory in line with
the reduced unit volumes and changes in sales mix as well as an increase in accounts payable primarily driven by fourth
quarter 2007 capital expenditures. Our operating income for 2007 compared to 2006 and adjusted for depreciation and
amortization and other operating activities and non-cash items increased slightly by $2.0 million due to change in
product mix discussed above in “Results of Operations.” Other changes in operating activities including foreign currency
losses, other income and-expenses, taxes and minority interest accounted for $1.7 million of the increase in operating
cash flows in 2007.

Investing activities: Qur cash flows used in investing activities in 2007 decreased by $83.5 million to
$231.3 million from $314.8 million in 2006. This decrease was primarily due to a $79.6 million decrease in
payments for property, plant and equipment from $315.9 million in 2006 to $236.2 million in 2007. Investing
activities were higher in 2006 principally as a result of our expansion of our facilities in China and Singapore.
Investing activities during 2007 included increased proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment of
$5.2 million primarily atiributable to a sale of real property in Korea that had been used for administrative purposes
and $1.7 million of proceeds received as a result of an earn-out provision in connection with the sale of our specialty
test operation.

Financing activities: Our net cash used in financing activities in 2007 was $208.5 million, compared with
$169.2 million in 2006. The net cash used in financing activities in 2007 consisted primarily of the repayment of
$142.4 million of our 5% convertible notes at maturity in March 2007 and the redemption of the remaining
$21.9 million of 2009 10.5% senior subordinated notes in June 2007. In 2007 we also repurchased $10.0 miilion of
our 2016 9.25% senior notes and $3.0 million of our 2013 7.75% senior notes in the open market. With respect to
our foreign subsidiaries, we repaid $51.5 million of debt during 2007. The net cash used in financing activities in
2006 was primarily for the repayment of the $132.0 million of our 5.75% convertible subordinated notes at maturity
in June 2006. Proceeds from the issuance of stock through our stock compensation plans in 2007 were $37.1 million,
compared with $3.0 million in 2006.

We provide the following supplemental data to assist our investors and analysts in understanding our liquidity
and capital resources. Free cash flow represents net cash provided by operating activities less investing activities
related to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. Free cash flow is not defined by GAAP and our
definition of free cash flow may not be comparable to similar companies and should not be considered a substitute
for cash flow measures in accordance with GAAP. We belicve free cash flow provides our investors and analysts
useful information to analyze our liquidity and capital resources.
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities. . ............... $603,430 $523,630 $ 97,157
Less purchases of property, plant and equipment ........... 236,240 315,873 295,943
Freecashflow .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... i i, $367,190  $207.757  $(198,786)

Debt Instruments and Related Covenants

We now have, and for the foresecable future will continue to have, a significant amount of indebtedness. Our
indebtedness requires us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to service payments on
our debt. (See table included in “Capital Additions and Contractual Obligations” below). Total debt decreased to
$1,764.1 million at December 31, 2007 from $2,005.3 million at December 31, 2006. Amkor Technology, Inc. also
guarantees certain debt of our subsidiaries. '

2007 Significant Financing Activities

In April 2007, we entered into a $300.0 million, 7-year secured credit facility with Woori Bank in Korea
(“Term Loan™). The Term Loan is secured by substantially all the land, factories and equipment located at our
Korean facilities. The Term Loan bears interest at Woori's base rate plus 50 basis points (6.58% as of December 31,
2007) and amortizes in 28 equal quarterly payments through April 2014. The proceeds of the Termn Loan were used
to refinance a $300.0 million second lien term loan due October 2010, which bore interest at a rate of LIBOR plus
450 basis points (9.86% at March 31, 2007). This financing transaction, together with payment of prepayment fees
and accrued and unpaid interest, fully discharged all of our obligations under the second lien term loan and fully
discharged all subsidiary guarantees and releases all the collateral securing the second lien term loan.

2006 Significant Financing Activities

In January 2006, Amkor Assembly & Test (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., a Chinese subsidiary (“AATS™), entered into a
$15.0 million working capital facility which bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.25%, which matured in January 2007
and was repaid from cash on hand. The borrowings to date of $15.0 million were used to support working capital.

In May 2006, we tssued $400.0 million of 9.25% Senior Notes due June 2016 (the “2016 Notes™). The Notes
are redeemable by us prior to June 1, 2011 provided we pay the holders a “make-whole” premium. After June I,
2011, the 2016 Notes are redeemable at specified prices. In addition, prior to June 1, 2009, we may redeem up to
35% of the notes at a specified price with the proceeds of certain equity offerings. After deducting fees to the
underwriter, the net proceeds were used to purchase a portion of the 9.25% Senior Notes due February 2008, pay
respective accrued interest and tender premiums.

In May 2006, we issued $190.0 million of our 2.5% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011 (the
*2011 Notes™). The 2011 Notes are convertible into our common stock at a price of $14.59 per share, subject to
adjustment. The notes are subordinated to the prior payment in full of all of our senior subordinated debt. After
deducting fees to the underwriter, the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2011 Notes were used to repurchase a
portion of the 10.5% Senior Subordinated Notes due May 2009, pay respective accrued interest and call premiums.

Compliance with Debt Covenants

We were in compliance with all debt covenants contained in our loan agreements at December 31, 2007, and
have met all debt payment obligations. Additional information about our debt is available in Note 11 of the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this
Annual Report.
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Capital Additions and Contractual Obligations

Quir capital additions were $293.9 million for 2007. We expect that our 2008 capital additions will be in the
range of approximately 11% to 14% of net sales. Ultimately, the amount of our 2008 capital additions will depend
on several factors including, among others, the performance of our business, the need for additional capacity to
service anticipated customer demand and the availability of suitable cash flow from operations or financing. The

following table reconciles our activity related to property, plant and equipment payments as presented on the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows to property, plant and equipment additions as reflected in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets: )

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment $236,240  $315.873  $295,943
Net change in related accounts payable and deposits 57,636 (16,850) (1,164

Property, plant and equipment additions $293,876  $299,023 - $294,779

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2007, and the effect such
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods.

Payments Due for Year Ending December 31,

Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
(In thousands)

Total debt . ........... $1,764,059 $152,489 §$ 54,774 §$ 54,816 $482,660 $ 43,036 $ 976,284
Scheduled interest

payment

obligations(1)........ 653,683 117,584 112,810 109,481 89,362 81,032 143,414
Purchase obligations(2) . . 66,020 66,020
Operating lease

obligations . . .. ...... 59,522 9,113 8,377 7,975 6,945 5,530 21,582
Severance obligations. . . . 170,924 7,065 7,207 7,351 7,498 7,648 134,155
Total contractual

obligations. ... ...... $2,714208 $352,271 $183,168 $179,623 $586,465 $137,246 $1,275,435

(1) Scheduled interest payment obligations were calculated using stated coupon rates for fixed rate debt and
interest rates applicable at December 31, 2007 for variable rate debt.

(2) Represents capital-related purchase obligations in addition to accounts payable outstanding at December 31,
2007 for 2007 capital additions.

In addition to the obligations identified in the table above, other non-current liabilities recorded in our
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007 include:

« $18.8 million of customer advances which relate to supply agreements with customers that commit capacity
in exchange for customer prepayment of services. Generally customers forfeit the prepayment if the capacity
is not utilized per contract terms. '

+ $37.4 million of foreign pension plan obligations for which the timing and actual amount of funding required
is uncertain. We expect to contribute $7.8 million to the plans during 2008.

+ $7.7 million of unrecognized tax benefits. As discussed in Note 3 to onr Consolidated Financial Statements,
we adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. At December 31, 2007, the gross amount of our
liability for unrecognized tax benefits was approximately $7.7 million, which does not generally represent
future cash payments because of the interaction with other available tax attributes, such as net operating loss
or tax credit carryforwards. Due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding the amount and the timing of any
future cash outflows associated with our FIN 48 liabilities, we are unable to reasonably estimate the amount
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and period of ultimate settlement, if any, with the various taxing authorities. Because we expect cash
outflows with respect to FIN 48 liabilities to occur over an indeterminate number of future years, we believe
it is unlikely that the payment of existing liabilities would have a material adverse affect on liquidity tn any
future period.

Related Party Transactions

In November 2005, we sold $100.0 million of our 6.25% Convertibie Subordinated Notes due 2013 in a private
placement to James J. Kim, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and certain Kim family members. The terms
were approved by a majority of the independent members of the Board of Directors and we obtained a fairmess
opinion from a recognized investment banking firm. The full amount of the notes remain outstanding and the
aggregate amount of interest paid to Mr. Kim and his family members in respect of these notes was $6.3 million and
$6.5 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively.

We have entered into the following related party transactions in the normal course of business:

We purchase leadframe inventory from Acqutek Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd. James J. Kim our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, owns approximately 17.7% of Acquiek Semiconductor & Technology Co.,
Ltd. The purchases are arms length and on terms consistent with our non-related party vendors. During 2007, 2006
and 2003, purchases from Acqutek Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd. were $18.7 million, $16.7 million and
$11.8 million, respectively. Amounts due to Acquiek Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd. at December 31, 2007
and 2006, were $1.9 miilion and $1.3 million, respectively.

Mr. JooHo Kim is an employee of Amkor and a brother of Mr. James J. Kim, our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. JooHo Kim, together with his wife and children, own 96.1% of Jesung C&M, a company that
provides cafeteria services to Amkor Technology Korea, Inc. The services provided by Jesung C&M are subject to
competitive bid. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, purchases from Jesung C&M were $6.2 miltion, $6.5 million and
$6.5 million, respectively. Amounts due to Jesung C&M at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $0.5 million,

Previously, Mr. JooHo Kim owned with his children and other Kim Family members 58.11% of Anam
Information Technology, Inc., a company that provided computer hardware and software components to ATK,
Mr. JooHo Kim sold all of his shares in the fourth quarter of 2006. Other Kim Family members owned 48.3% as of
December 31, 2006. As of September 30, 2006, a decision was made to discontinue using Anam Information
Technology as a vendor, The services provided by Anam Information Technology were subject to competitive bid.
During 2007, there were no purchases from Anam Information Technology. Purchases from Anam Information
Technology, during 2006 and 2005 were $0.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively. There were no amounts due to
Anam Information Technology at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no off-balance sheet guarantees or other off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2007.
Operating lease commitments are included in the contractual obligations table above.

Other Contingencies

We refer you to Note 15 “Commitments and Contingencies” to our Consolidated Financial Statements in
Part I, Item 8 of this Annual Report for a discussion of our contingencies related to our patent related litigation,
securities litigation and other litigation and legal matters. If an unfavorable ruling were to occur in these matters,
there exists the possibility of a material adverse impact on our business, liquidity, results of operations, financial
position and cash flows in the period in which the ruling occurs. The potential impact from the legal proceedings, on
our business, liquidity, results of operations, financial position and cash flows, could change in the future,

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

We have identified the policies below as critical to our business operations and the understanding of our results
of operations. A summary of our significant accounting policies used in the preparation of our Consolidated
Financial Statements appears in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8

43



“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report. Our preparation of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from
those estimates.

Revenue Recognition and Risk of Loss. 'We recognize revenue from our packaging and test services when
there is evidence of a fixed arrangement, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, fees are fixed or
determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Generally these criteria are met and revenue is recognized
upon shipment. Such policies are consistent with the provisions in Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.”

We do not take ownership of customer-supplied semiconductor wafers. Title and risk of loss remains with the
customer for these materials at all times. Accordingly, the cost of the customer-supplied materials is not included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

A sales allowance is recognized in the period of sale based upon historical experience. Additionally, provisions
are made for doubtful accounts when there is doubt as to the collectibility of accounts receivable. Collectibility is
assessed based on the age of the balance, the customer’s historical payment history and its current credit worthiness.

Provision for Income Taxes. We operate in and file income tax returns in various U.S. and non-U.S. juris-
dictions which are subject to examination by tax authorities. The tax returns for open years in all jurisdictions in
which we do business are subject to change upon examination. We believe that we have estimated and provided
adequate accruals for potential additional taxes and related interest expense that may ultimately result from such
examinations in accordance with FIN 48. We believe that any additional taxes or related interest over the amounts
accrued will not have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. However,
resolution of these matters involves uncertainties and there are no assurances that the outcomes will be favorable. In
addition, changes in the mix of income from our foreign subsidiaries, expiration of tax holidays and changes in tax
laws or regulations could result in increased effective tax rates in the future.

Additionally, we record the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets
and liabilities and amounts reported in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, as well as operating loss
and tax credit carryforwards. Generally accepted accounting principles require companies to weigh both positive
and negative evidence in determining the need for a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. As a result of net
losses experienced in recent years in certain jurisdictions, we have determined that a valuation allowance
representing substantially all of our deferred tax assets was appropriate. We will release such valuation allowance
as the related deferred tax benefits are realized on our tax returns or when sufficient net positive evidence exists to
conclude it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets. 'We assess the carrying value of long-lived assets which includes property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors we consider important which could trigger an impairment review
include the following:

. sigﬁiﬁcant under-performance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
» significant changes in the manner of our use of the asset;

» significant negative industry or economic trends; and

« our market capitalization relative to net book value.

Upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment, we would test such assets for a
potential impairment. The carrying value of a long-lived asset, excluding goodwill, is considered impaired when the
anticipated undiscounted cash flows are less than the asset’s carrying value. In that event, a loss is recognized based
on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair market value of the long-lived asset. Fair market value is
determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved.
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We test goodwill for impairment in the second quarter of each year. We review our defined reporting units,
calculate the fair value of each reporting unit using a discounted cash flow model and compare these fair values to
the carrying value for each reporting unit. Since separate balance sheets are not maintained for the reporting units,
we determine carrying value for each reporting unit by assigning all assets and liabilities based on specific
identification where possible and use an allocation method for the remaining items. In order to further support the
reasonableness of the fair value estimates prepared utilizing the discounted cash flow valuation model, we compare
the combined total reporting unit values per the model to our quoted market price at the end of the second quarter.
Based on this assessment, we determined that goodwill was not impaired.

Legal Contingencies. We are subject to certain legal proceedings, lawsuits and other claims. We assess the
likelihood of any adverse judgment or outcome related to these matters, as well as potential ranges of probable
losses. Our determination of the amount of reserves required, if any, for these contingencies is based on a careful
analysis of each individual issue, often with the assistance of outside legal counsel. We record provisions in our
Consolidated Financial Statements for pending litigation when we determine that an unfavorable outcome is
probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Our assessment of required reserves may change in the future due to new developments in each matter. The
present legislative and litigation environment is substantially uncertain, and it is possible that our results of
operations, cash flows or financial position could ‘be materially and adversely affected by an unfavorable outcome
or setilement of our pending litigation.

Investments in Marketable Securities. 'We evaluate our investments for impairment due to declines in market
value that are considered other than temporary. In the event of a determination that a decline in market value is other
than temporary, a charge to earnings is recorded for the unrealized loss. The stock prices of many semiconductor
companies’ stocks, including Dongbu Hitek, Co., Ltd., (“Dongbu”) and its competitors, are highly volatile. During
2007, we recorded impairment charges of $2.7 million to reduce the carrying value of our investment in Dongbu to
its market value. During 2006, we recorded impairment charges totaling $3.2 million to reduce the carrying value of
our investment in Dongbu to its market value. In determining whether declines in market value are other than
temporary, we look at market value trends over the previous six months.

Valuation of Inventory. We order raw materials based on customers’ forecasted demand. If our customers
change their forecasted requirements and we are unable to cancel our raw materials order or if our vendors require
that we order a minimum quantity that exceeds the current forecasted demand, we will experience a build-up in raw
material inventory. We will either seek to recover the cost of the materials from our customers or utilize the
inventory in production, However, we may not be successful in recovering the cost from our customers or be able to
use the inventory in production and, accordingly, if we believe that it is probable that we will not be able to recover
such costs we reduce the carrying value of our inventory. Additionally, we reduce the carrying value of our
inventories for the cost of inventories we estimate is excess and obsolete based on the age of our inventory and
forecasted demand we receive from our customers. When a determination is made that the inventory will not be
utilized in production it is written-off and disposed.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the weighted moving average
method or by standard costing, both of which approximate actual cost. Cost is based on normal capacity utilization,
with unrecoverable costs arising from underutilization of capacity expensed when incurred.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated
by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of depreciable assets. Depreciable lives are as follows:

Buildings and IMprovements . . . ... .. .ottt n e 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment. .. . ... ... e e 3 to 7 years
Fumiture, fixtures and other equipment . . ... ... ... ... i oo 3 to 10 years
Chinese land use Hghts . . .. ... oot i e 50 years

Cost and accumulated depreciation for property retired or disposed of are removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is included in earnings. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as
incurred.
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Recently Adopted and Recently Issued Standards

For information regarding recently adopted and recently issued accounting standards, see Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included within Item 8 of this Annual Report.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market Risk Sensitivity

We are exposed to market risks, primarily related to foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations, In the
normal course of business, we employ established policies and procedures to manage the exposure to fluctuations in
foreign currency values and changes in interest rates, Our use of derivative instruments, inciuding forward exchange
contracts, has historically been insignificant. We have not entered into any derivative transactions during the year-
ended December 31, 2907.

Foreign Currency Risks

We currently do not enter into forward contracts or other instruments to reduce cur exposure to foreign
currency gains and losses. To the extent possible, we manage our foreign currency exposures by using natural
hedging techniques to minimize the foreign currency rate risk.

The U.S. dollar is our reporting currency and the functional currency for the majority of our foreign
subsidiaries including our largest subsidiaries in Korea and the Philippines and also for China and Singapore.
For our subsidiaries in Japan and Taiwan, the local currency is the functional currency. We have foreign currency
exchange rate risk associated with the remeasurement of monetary assets and monetary liabilities on our
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. The most
significant foreign denominated monetary asset or liability is our Korean severance obligation which represents
approximately 75% of the net monetary exposure. We performed a sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2007,
assuming a 10% adverse movement for all currencies against the U.S. dollar to assess the potential impact of
fluctuations in exchange rates for all foreign denominated assets and liabilities. This sensitivity analysis would
result in a deciine of approximately $25.5 million on our income before income taxes and minority interests.

In addition, we have foreign currency exchange rate exposure on our results of operations. Approximately 84%
of our net sales are denominated in U.S. dollars and the remaining currency exposure is principally Japanese yen,
Korean won and Taiwanese dollar in support of local country sales. Approximately 53% our cost of sales and
operating expenses are denominated in U.S. dollar and are largely expenditures for raw materials and factory
supplies. The remaining currency exposures for cost of sales and operating expenses are principally denominated in
the Asian currency where our production facilities are located and are largely for labor and utilities. To the extent
that the U.S. dollar weakens against these Asian-based currencies, these foreign currency denominated transactions
will result in higher sales and higher operating expenses. Similarly, our sales and operating expenses will decrease if
the U.S. dollar strengthens against these foreign currencies. We performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a 10%
adverse movement from 2007 exchange rates of the U.S. dollar compared to all these Asian-based currencies to
assess the potential impact of fluctuations in exchange rates for all foreign denominated sales and expenses. This
sensitivity analysis would result in a decline of approximately $64.4 million on our operating income.

There are inherent limitations in the sensitivity analysis presented, primarily due to the assumption that foreign
exchange rate movements across multiple jurisdictions are similar and would be linear and instantanecus. As a
result, the analysis is unable to reflect the potential effects of more complex market or other changes that could arise
which may positively or negatively affect our results of operations.

Interest Rate Risks

We have interest rate risk with respect to our long-term debt. As of December 31, 2007, we had a total of
$1,764.1 million of debt of which 81.8% was fixed rate debt and 18.2% was variable rate debt. Our variable rate debt
principally relates to our fareign borrowings and any amount cutstanding under our $100.0 miliion revolving line of
credit, of which no amounts were drawn as of December 31, 2007. The fixed rate debt consisted of senior notes,
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senior subordinated notes and subordinated notes. As of December 31, 2006, we had a total of $2,005.3 million of
debt of which 80.9% was fixed rate debt and 19.1% was variable rate debt. Changes in interest rates have different
impacts on our fixed and variable rate portions of our debt portfolio. A change in interest rates on the fixed portion of
the debt portfolio impacts the fair value of the instrument but has no impact on interest incurred or cash flows. A
change in interest rates on the variable portion of the debt portfolio impacts the interest incurred and cash flows but
does not impact the fair value of the instrument. The fair value of the convertible notes is also impacted by changes
in the market price of our common stock.

The table below presents the interest rates, maturities and fair value of our fixed and variable rate debt as of
December 31, 2007.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total Falr Value
Long term debt:
Fixed rate debt
(In thousands) . .. ....... 91,539 $ - § — $439,112 § — $912,000 $1.442,651 §$1,425,123
Average interest rate. .. ... 9.1% — — 51% — 8.2% 7.4%
Variable rate debt
(In thousands) . .. ....... $60,950 $54,774 $54.816 $ 43,548 $43,036 $°64284 F 321,408 § 321,408
Average interest rate. . . . .. 5.5% 6.1% 6.1% 6.6% 6.6% 6.6% 6.3%

Equity Price Risks
We have convertible notes that are convertible into our common stock. We currently intend to repay our
remaining convertible notes upon maturity, unless converted or refinanced. If investors were to decide to convert
their notes to common stock, our future earnings would benefit from a reduction in interest expense and our
common stock outstanding would be increased. If we paid a preminm to induce such conversion, our earnings could
include an additional charge.

Further, the trading price of our common stock has been and is likely to continue to be highly volatile and could
be subject to wide fluctuations. Such fluctuations could impact our decision or ability to utilize the equity markets as
a potential source of our funding needs in the future.

47




Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

We present the information required by Item § of Form 10-K here in the following order:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Staternents of Operations — Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Consolidated Balance Sheets — December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss) — Years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Amkor Technology, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in ali
material respects, the financial position of Amkor Technology, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and
2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In
addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). The
Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the
financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control aver
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal conirol over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financiai statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for defined benefit pension plans in 2006. In addition, as discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for share-based compensation in 2006.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

fs/  PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
February 25, 2008
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AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except per share data)

Netsales ... ... . . e e $2,739,445  $2,728,560  $2,099,949
Costofsales ........ ... .. 2,057,572 2,053,600 1,744,178
Grossprofit ... .. it e 681,873 674,960 355,771
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative ....................... 251,249 250,142 243,319

Research and development .. .....................c..... 41,650 38,735 37,347

Gain on sale of specialty test operations .. ................. (L,717) — {4,408}

Provision for legal settlements and contingencies. ............ — 1,000 50,000

Total operating eXpenses . .............ooiviiiuii.t 291,182 289,877 326,258

Operating income . . ..... ... e i, 390,691 385,083 29,513
Other (income) expense:

Interest expense, NEt . . .. ...t et iie it 124,099 154,807 165,351

Interest expense, related party . ............ .. ... ... ... 6,250 6,477 521

Foreign currency 10Ss . .. ... ... i i i e 8,961 13,255 9,318

Debt retirement COStS . .. ..ottt vt iii s 15,876 27,389 (253)

Other (income) expense, Net . ..............vvuurnernnnn 668 661 (136)

Total other expense, net. .. ........ ... i, . 155,854 202,589 174,801

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest . ........ 234,837 182,494 (145,288)
Income tax expense (benefit) . ....... ... ... v, 12,597 11,208 (5,551)
Income {loss) before minority interest . .. ...................,. 222,240 171,286 (139,737
Minority interest, netof tax ........... ... .. ... ... (2,376) (1,202) 2,502
Netincome (0SS) . .o oo ii ittt i ettt et $ 219864 § 170,084 § (137,235)
Net income (loss) per common share:

Basic .. .. e e e $ 122 % 0.96 (0.78)

Diluted. . ... e $ 1.11  § 0.90 (0.78)
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per common share:

BasSiC . i e e e e e e e e 180,597 177,682 176,385

Diluted. . .....o e e 208,767 199,556 176,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cashand cash equivalents . .. . ... ... .ot $§ 410,070 § 244,694
Restricted cash . . .. .. i i i e e 2,609 2,478

Accounts receivable:
Trade, net of allowances . ......... ... ..t 393,493 380,888
OtheT. . . e e 4,938 5,969
INVENIOTIES - - - ettt ettt e et ee e e 149,014 164,178
Other CUMTENT ASSEUS . . o v v et et e it et e e e e e et o eaian s e 27,290 39,650
Total CUMTENE B5SEL8. - o ot it v et e a et i me s ie it 987.414 837,857
Property, plant and equipment, DEt. .. ...... oot et ninnc e 1,455,111 1,443,603
Goodwill. . . . e e e e 673,385 671,900
Intangibles, NEt . . . . ... i e e 20,321 29,694
| PN =18 (=1 |- 3,019 6,675
Restricted Cash ... ..ottt e e 1,725 1,688
L0 T o1 11y X 7S 51,631 49,847
Total ASSELS . . . o ettt e e e e e e e $3,192,606 $ 3,041,264

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt .. ............ $ 152489 $ 185414
Trade accounts payable ... .. ... ... .. . 359,313 291,847
ACCIUEH EXPEISES .. ..ottt ittt i e 163,271 145,501
Total current liabilities . ... .. .. . . vt i i e 677,073 622,762
Long-term debt . . .. .ottt e 1,511,570 1,719,901
Long-term debt, related party . . . ........ ..o 100,000 100,000
Pension and severance obligations . . .......... ... .. .. o oL 208,387 170,070
Other non-current liabilities . . ... ... . ... i e 33,935 30,008
Total lHabilities . .. .. oo e e 2,530,965 2,642,741
Commitments and contingencies {see Note 15)
MIBOTILY IMEIBSTS . o o o vt ettt e e e et et ittt ae s s 7,022 4,603
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 10,000 shares authorized, designated
Series A, NONE ISSUEA . . . . ... i e — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000 shares authorized, issued and
outstanding of 181,799 in 2007 and 178,109in 2006 .................. 182 178
Additional paid-in capital. . . ... ... . e e e 1,482,186 1,441,194
Accumulated deficit. . .o e e (821,526)  (1,041,390)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .. ......... . . L Lol (6,223) (6,062)
Total stockholders” equity. .. ... ..ot 654,619 393,920
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity .. ... ... .. ... . L. $3,192,606 § 3,041,264

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these statements.
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AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Balance at December 31, 2004 . .
Netloss. ..................

Unrealized loss on available for
sale investments, net of tax. . . .

Reclassification adjustment for
losses included in net loss . . ..
Cumulative translation
adjustment . . ..... ... ...

Comprehensive loss

Issuance of stock through
employee stock purchase plan
and stock options

Stock compensation

Balance at December 31, 2005 . .
Net income

Unrealized loss on available for
sale investments, net of tax. . . .

Reclassification adjustment for
losses included in net income . .
Cumulative translation
adjustment .. .............

Comprehensive income

Issuance of stock through
employee stock purchase plan
and stock options

Stock compensation
Adjustment to initially apply
SFAS No, 158, net of tax.. . . ..
Balance at December 31, 2006 . .
Net income

Unrealized loss on available for
sale investments, net of tax. . .,

Reclassification adjustment for
losses included in net income . .

Pension liability adjustments, net

Cumulative translation
adjustment . . ... ..........

Comprehensive income

Issuance of stock through stock
OPHONS. « . e v e

Stock compensation
Balance at December 31, 2007 . .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Accumulated
Oth
_ Common Stock 4y gditional Paid-  Accumulated Comprel::nsive Comprehensive
Shares Amount In Capital Deficht Income (Loss) Total Income (Loss)
(In thousands)
175,718 $176  $1.428368 $(1,074.239) $ 14846 $ 369,151
— — — (137,235) — (137,235) $(137,235)
— — — — (2,119) (2,119) (2,119)
— — — — 1,786 1,786 1,786
— — — — (10,855} (10,855) (10,855)
.......... —  $(148,423)
.......... 1,015 2 2,802 —_ —_ 2,804
.......... — — 373 — —_ 373
176,733 178 1,431,543 (1,211,474) 3,658 223,905
................ —_ — — 170,084 — 170,084 $ 170,084
— — — —_ (1,717 (1,717 (1,717
— — — — 2,677 2,677 2,677
— — — — 1,155 1,155 1,135
...... — $172,199
.......... 1,376 — 4,976 — — 4,976
.......... — — 4,675 _— —_ 4,675
_ _ - — (11835 (11,835
178,109 178 1,441,194 (1,041,390) (6,062) 393,920
................ — — — 219,864 — 219,864 $ 219,864
— — — _ (1,004} (1,004) (1,004)
— — _ —_ 44 44 44
-_ — — — (3,136) (3,136) (3.136)
—_ — — — 3,935 3,935 3,935
...... —  $219,703
3,690 4 37,046 — — 37,050
.......... — — 3,946 — — 3,946
181,799 $182 $1,482,186 § (821,526) $ (6,223) 3 654,619
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AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net nCome (J0SS) . . . oo e et et ettt e e $219.864 $170,084 $(137,235)
Adjugnpgnts to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization . . . ... .o e 283,267 273,845 248,637
Amortization of deferred debt issuance costs and discounts. . .. ... ... ... ... 5,562 1,558 8,684
Provision for accounts receivable . ... ... . ... e (1,251) (2,585 96
Deferred INCOME LAXES . . . . . .. ittt ittt it ms st et iaae e iaae s (7,532) (32) 25,118
Loss (gain) on debt redemption ... ... .. ... .. .. . . i i i 6,876 27,389 {253)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, met . ... ... ... i 4,319 8,578 3,451
Stock-based cOMPEnsation . . . .. ... ... a e 3,946 4,675 373
Gain on sale of specialty test operations . ... ... .. ... i ann — (4,408)
OhEr, BEL . . . . .ttt et e e e 5,728 3,938 1,590
Changes in assets and liabilities: :
Accounmts receivable . . . . . .. . e e e {9,073) 2,982 (126,665)
Other receivables . . ... .. e e e e 1,063 (106) 59
IOVEIIEOTIES .« . o o . o ottt it e bttt 15,516 (25,483) (27,781)
OUher CUITEIE BSSEIS + & v v v v vt e e v bt et e e e et e e et ettt 17,042 (3.226) 4,739
Other NON-CUMENE 8SSEIS . . . ot v vttt vt ettt b b an et mmmee e 1,528 2,252 1,026
Accounts payable. . . .. ... e e 9,282 (17,397) 131,210
ACCTUB BXPEMSES. . o v v v vttt e e e e e 18,083 18,984 (49,182)
Other long-term liabilities . .. .. ... ... . i 30,927 52,174 27,176
Net cash provided by operating activities . . ... ..... ... ... ... o .. 603,430 523,630 97,157
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment . . . ... ... ... e e (236,240)  (315,873)  (295,943)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment . ... ......... ... ...... 5,192 4,449 1,596
Proceeds from sale of specialty test Operations . . . ... ..o i i i s 1,717 — 6,587
Advances for acquisition of minority interest . . . . ... ... ... L L. — —_ (19,250)
Other investing activities ... ... . i e (1,968) (3,379 —
Net cash used in investing activities. . . .. .. ... i i (231,299) (314,797  (307,010)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Netchange inbank overdrafts . . ... ... ... .. . .. . it — — (102)
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities . . . . ......... .. ... . ... .. 86,150 233,212 120,405
Payments under revolving credit facilities . ..~ . ..... .. ... . ool (109,296) (237,933)  (120,727)
Proceeds from issuance of long-termdebt . . . ... ... ... o o oo, 300,000 590,000 116,317
Payments of long-term debt, including redemption premiums . . .. ... ....... ... .. (518,913)  (744,392)  (168,872)
Proceeds from issuance of related party debt . . .. ... ... .. . i — — 100,000
Payments for debt IS5uance COSIS . . . . ... i i (3,441) (15,094) (2,187
Proceeds from issuance of stock through stock compensation plans . . . .. .......... 37,050 4,976 2,804
Net cash (used in} provided by financing activities. . ... . ................. (208,450)  (169,231) 47,638
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents. . ................ 1,695 (1,483) (3,494)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .. ............... ... .. ... 165,376 38,119 (165,709
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . . . .. .. ...... .. ... ... . 244,694 206,575 372,284
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period . .. ... .. .. i i $410,070  § 244,694 $ 206,575
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
T 111 $ 135964 $ 172,146 $ 168,564
INCOMIE BAXES . « v v o v vt ettt et e e e e e e e e et $ 12,837 § 8419 $ 1,885
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Application of deposit upon closing of acquisition of minority interest . ... ....... 3 — § 17822 % —
Note receivable from sale of specialty test operations. . . .. ........ ... ....... $ — 3 — & 890

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements,
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AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Amkor is one of the world’s largest subcontractors of semiconductor packaging (sometimes referred to as
assembly) and test services. Amkor pioneered the outsourcing of semiconductor packaging and test services
through a predecessor in 1968 and over the years we have built a leading position by:

* Designing and developing new package and test technologies;
* Offering a broad portfolio of packaging and test technologies and services;

* Cultivating long-standing relationships with our customers, which include many of the world’s leading
semiconductor companies;

= Cultivating strategic relationships with leading electronics companies, who buy packaged chips from our
customers, (also known as original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs™));

* Developing expertise in high-volume manufacturing processes; and

* Having a diversified operational scope, with production capabilities in China, Japan, Korea, the Philippines,
Singapore, Taiwan and the United States (“UU.8.”).

Basis of Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Amkor Technology, Inc. and our subsidiaries
(“Amkor™). The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the elimination of all significant inter-company accounts
and transactions. Pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. (“FIN™) 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”, our investments in variable interest entities in which we are the
primary beneficiary are consolidated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

We have variable interests in certain Philippine realty corporations in which we have a 40% ownership and
from whom we lease land and buildings in the Philippines. As of December 31, 2007, the combined book value of
the assets and the liabilities associated with these Philippine realty corporations included in our Consolidated
Balance Sheet was $19.9 million and $0.4 million, respectively. The creditors of the Philippine realty corporations
have no recourse to the general credit of Amkor, the primary beneficiary of these variable interest entities.

Foreign Currency Translation

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency of our subsidiaries in China, Korea, the Philippines and Singapore,
and the foreign currency asset and liability amounts at these subsidiaries are remeasured into U.S. dollars at end-of -
period exchange rates, except for nonmonetary items which are remeasured at historical rates. Foreign currency
income and expenses are remeasured at average exchange rates in effect during the period, except for expenses
related to balance sheet amounts remeasured at historical exchange rates. Exchange gains and losses arising from
remeasurement of foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are included in other income
{expense) in the period in which they occur.

The local currency is the functional currency of our subsidiaries in Japan and Taiwan, and the asset and liability
amounts of these subsidiaries are translated into 1.S. dollars at end-of-period exchange rates. Income and expenses
are translated into U.S. dollars at average exchange rates in effect during the period. The resulting asset and liability
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_ AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

translation adjustments are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in the stockholders’
equity section of the balance sheet. Assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency are remeasured into the functional currency prior to translation into U.S. dollars and the resulting
exchange gains or losses are included in other income (expense) in the period in which they occur.

Concentrations and Credit Risk

Financial instruments, for which we are subject to credit risk, consist principally of accounts receivable and
cash and cash equivalents. With respect to accounts receivable, we mitigate our credit risk by selling primarily to
well established companies, performing ongoing credit evaluations and making frequent contact with customers.
We have historically mitigated our credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents through diversification of
our holdings into various high quality mutual funds and bank deposit accounts. At December 31, 2007, our cash and
cash equivalents are invested in U.S. money market funds and various U.S. and foreign bank operating and time
deposit accounts.

Risks and Uncertainties

Our future results of operations involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Factors that could affect future
results and cause actual results to vary materially from historical results include, but are not limited to, historical
stock option practices, pending SEC investigation, fluctuations in operating results, dependence on the highly
cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, high fixed costs, our failure to meet guidance, declines in average
selling prices, decisions by our integrated device manufacturer customers to curtail outsourcing, our substantial
indebtedness, ability to fund liquidity needs, our restrictive covenants contained in the agreements governing our
indebtedness, significant severance plan obligations, failure to maintain an effective sysiem of internal controls,
product return and liability risks, the absence of significant backlog in our business, our dependence on inter-
national operations and sales, our management information systems may prove inadequate, difficulties integrating
acquisitions, difficulties expanding and evolving our operational capabilities, our dependence on materials and
equipment suppliers, loss of customers, our need for significant capital expenditures, impairment charges, the
increased litigation incident to our business, adverse tax consequences, rapid technological change, complexity of
packaging and test process, competition, our need to comply with existing and future environmental regulations, the
enforcement of intellectual property rights by or against us, fire, flood or other calamity and continued control by
existing stockholders.

We are subject to certain legal proceedings, lawsuits and other claims, as discussed in Note 13. We assess the
likelihood of any adverse judgment or outcome related to these matters, as well as potential ranges of probable
losses. Our determination of the amount of reserves required, if any, for these contingencies is based on an analysis
of each individual issue, often with the assistance of outside legal counsel. We record provisions in our Consolidated
Financial Statements for pending litigation when we determine that an unfavorable cutcome is probable and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. Our cash and cash equivalents consist of amounts invested in U.S. money market funds and various
U.S. and foreign bank operating and time deposit accounts,

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash, current, consists of short-term cash equivalents used to collateralize our daily banking
services. Restricted cash, non-current, collateralizes foreign tax obligations.
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AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Cont'inued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the weighted moving average
method or by standard costing, both of which approximate actual cost. Cost is based on normal capacity utilization,
with unrecoverable costs arising from underutilization of capacity expensed when incurred. We reduce the carrying
value of our inventories for the cost of inventory we estimate is excess and obsolete based on the age of our
inventories and forecasted demand we receive from our customers. When a determination is made that the inventory
will not be utilized in production it is written-off and disposed.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of depreciable assets which are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment 3 1o 7 years
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 3 to 10 years
Chinese land use rights

Cost and accumulated depreciation for property retired or disposed of are removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is included in earnings. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as
incurred. Depreciation expense was $272.8 million, $263.3 million and $239.1 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Recoverability of a long-lived asset is measured by a comparison of the
carrying amount to the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition
of the asset. If such asset is considered to be impaired, the impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are carried at the lower of cost
or fair value less the costs of disposal.

Goodwill and Acquired Intangibles

Goodwill is recorded when the cost of an acquisition exceeds the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable
intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for impairment at least
annually. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level. These tests are performed more frequently if
warranted. Impairment losses are recorded when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

Finite-lived intangible assets include customer relationship and supply agreements as well as patents and
technology rights and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally for periods
ranging from 5 to 10 years. We continually evaluate the reasonableness of the useful lives of these assets. Finite-
lived intangibles are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount many not be recoverable. An impairment loss, if any, would be measured as the excess of the carrying value
over the fair value determined by discounted cash flows. Amortization of finite-lived assets was $10.4 million,
$9.6 million and $9.5 million for 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Other Non-current Assets

Other non-current assets consist principally of deferred income tax assets, deferred debt issuance costs and
refundable security deposits.
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AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
Other Non-current Liabilities

Other non-current liabilities consist primarily of customer advance payments, deferred revenue and liabilities
associated with uncertain income tax positions. See Note 3 and Note 13 for more information.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss consisted of the following:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Cumutative unrealized foreign currency translation gains . . . ............. 5 8748 $ 4813
Unrecognized pension COSIS . ... ... . e (14,971)  (11,835)
Unrealized gain on securities . . ........... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... — 960
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss . .. .. ....... ... ... ... ..... $ (6,223) $ (6,062)

The unrecognized pension costs are net of deferred income taxes of $1.0 million and $0.8 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The unrealized gain on securities has no tax effect. No income taxes
are provided on foreign currency translation gains as foreign earnings are considered permanently invested.

Revenue Recognition and Risk of Loss

We recognize revenue from our packaging and test services when there is evidence of a fixed arrangement,
delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, fees are fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably
assured. Generally these criteria are met and revenue is recognized upon shipment. Such policies are consistent with
the provisions in Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements.

We do not take ownership of customer supplied semiconductor wafers. Title and risk of loss remains with the
customer for these materials at all times. Accordingly, the cost of the customer supplied materials is not included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

A sales allowance is recognized in the period of sale based upon historical experience. Additionally, provisions
are made for doubtful accounts when there i1s doubt as to the collectibility of accounts receivable. Collectibility is
assessed based on the age of the balance, the customer’s historical payment history and current credit worthiness.

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs

Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling are presented in net sales. Costs incurred for shipping
and handling are included in costs of sales,

Research and Development Costs

Research and development expenses include costs attributable to the conduct of research and development
programs primarily related to the development of new package designs and improving the efficiency and
capabilities of our existing production processes. Such costs include salaries, payroll taxes, employee benefit
costs, materials, supplies, depreciation on and maintenance of research equipment, fees under licensing agreements,
services provided by outside contractors and the allocable portions of facility costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,
repairs and maintenance, depreciation and general support services. All costs associated with research and
development are expensed as incurred.
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AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Provision for Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which these temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A
valuation allowance is provided for those deferred tax assets for which it is more likely than not that the related
benefits will not be realized.

In determining the amount of the valuation allowance, we consider all available evidence of realization, as well
as feasible tax planning strategies, in each taxing jurisdiction, If all or a portion of the remaining deferred tax assets
will not be realized, the valuation allowance will be increased with a charge to income tax expense. Conversely, if
we will ultimately be able to utilize all or a portion of the deferred tax assets for which a valvation allowance has
been provided, the related portion of the valuation allowance will be released to income as a credit to income tax
expense. We monitor on an ongoing basis our ability to utilize our deferred tax assets and the continuing need for a
related valuation allowance. At December 31, 2007, we have recorded a valuation allowance for a substantial
portion of our deferred tax assets.

We have adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of
FASRB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48™). FIN 48 requires that we recognize in our Consolidated Financial Statements the
impact of a tax position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits
of the position. See Note 3 for more information.

New Accounting Standards
Recently Adopted Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 158,
Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans an amendment of SFAS No. 87,
Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Termination Benefits, SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions, and SFAS No. 132(R), Employers’ Disclosure about Pensions and Other Postre-
tirement Benefits (“SFAS No. 158”). SFAS No. 158 requires the recognition of the funded status of a defined benefit
pension plan (other than a multi-employer plan) as an asset or liability in the statement of financial position and the
recognition of changes in the funded status through comprehensive income in the year in which such changes occur.
We adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158 and initially applied those to the funded status of our
defined benefit pension plans as of December 31, 2006. The initial recognition of the funded status of our defined
benefit pension plans resulted in a decrease in stockholders’ equity of $11.8 million, which was net of a tax benefit
of $0.8 million. .

SFAS No. 158 also requires that the funded status of a plan be measured as of the date of the year-end statement
of financial position for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008, We currently measure our funded status as of
the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the adoption of the measurement provisions of SFAS No. 158 will have no
tmpact on our financial statements. See Note 12 for further discussion.

In February 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments
(“SFAS No. 155™), which amends SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
(“SFAS No. 133”) and SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extin-
guishmenis of Liabilities (“SFAS No. 140). SFAS No. 155 simplifies the accounting for certain derivatives
embedded in other financial instruments by allowing them to be accounted for as a whole if the holder elects to
account for the whole instrument on a fair value basis. SFAS No. 155 also clarifies and amends certain other
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provisions of SFAS No. 133 and SFAS No. 140. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired,
issued or subject to a remeasurement event occurring in fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. We
adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 155 on January 1, 2007. The adoption of this statement did not have an impact
on our financial statements and disclosures.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 06-03 How Taxes Collected
from Customers and Remirted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement ( That Is,
Gross Versus Net Presentation) (“Issue No. 06-03"). Under Issue No. 06-03, a company must disclose its accounting
policy regarding the gross or net presentation of certain taxes. If taxes included in gross revenues are significant, a
company must disclose the amount of such taxes for each period for which an income statement is presented (i.e.,
both interim and annual periods). Taxes within the scope of this Issue are those that are imposed on and concurrent
with a specific revenue-producing transaction. Taxes assessed on an entity’s activities over a period of time, such as
g10ss Teceipts taxes, are not within the scope of the issue. Issue No. 06-03 is effective for the first annual or interim
reporting period beginning after December 15, 2006. We adopted the provisions of Issue No. 06-03 on January 1,
2007. We present applicable taxes on a net basis in our Consolidated Financial Statements. The adoption of lssue
No. 06-03 did not have an impact on our financial statements and disclosures.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting and disclosure for uncertainty in income
tax positions, as defined. FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the
recognition and measurement related to accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 requires that we recognize in our
Consolidated Financial Statements the impact of a tax position, if that position is more likely than not of being
sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position. The provisions of FIN 48 also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, and disclosures. This interpre-
tation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in
accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. We adopted the
provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have an impact on the opening balance of
retained earnings. See Note 3 for more information.

Recently Issued Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 1577), which
provides guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard also responds to investors’
requests for more information about {1} the extent to which companies measure assets and liabilities at fair value,
(2) the information used to measure fair value and (3) the effect that fair value measurements have on earnings.
SFAS No. 157 will apply whenever another standard requires (or permits) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair
value. The standard does not expand the use of fair value to any new circumstances. SFAS No. 157 is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those
fiscal years. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. FAS 157-2, Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 157 (“FSP 157-2"), which would delay the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all non-financial
assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
staternents on a recurring basis (at least annually). FSP 157-2 partially defers the effective date of SFAS No. 157 to
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the
scope of FSP 157-2. We will adopt SFAS No. 157 during 2008, except as it applies to those non-financial assets and
non-financial labilities as noted in FSP 157-2. The partial adoption of SFAS No. 157 is not expected to have a
material impact on our financial statements and disclosures,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value, and establishes
presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different
measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 159 is effective for financial statements
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issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not expect SFAS No. 159 to have a material
impact on our financial statements and disclosures.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations (“SFAS No. 141(R)").
SFAS No. 141{R) will significantly change the accounting for business combinations. Under SFAS 141R, an
acquiring entity will be required to recognize all the assets acquired and liabilitics assumed in a transaction at the
acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions. SFAS No. 141(R) will change the accounting treatment for
certain specific acquisition related items including: (1) expensing acquisition related costs as incurred; (2) valuing
noncontrolling interests at fair value at the acquisition date of a controlling interest; and (3) expensing restructuring

costs associated with an acquired business. SFAS No, 141(R) also includes a substantial number of new disclosure
requirements. SFAS No. 141(R) is to be applied prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after January 1, 2009. We expect SFAS No. 141(R} will have an impact on our accounting for future
business combinations once adopted, but the effect is dependent upon the acquisitions that are made in the future.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin (“ARB"} No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements
(“SFAS No. 1607)."SFAS No. 160 requires (1) that non-controlling (minority} interests be reported as a component
of shareholders’ equity, (2) that net income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest be
separately identified in the consolidated statement of operations, (3) that changes in a parent’s ownership interest
while the parent retains its controlling interest be accounted for as equity transactions, (4) that any retained non-
controlling equity investment upon the deconsolidation of a subsidiary be initially measured at fair value and (5) that
sufficient disclosures are provided that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the
interests of the non-controlling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating the
impact of this standard on our financial statements.

2. Stock Compensation Plans

We account for our stock option plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment
(E‘SFAS No. 123(R)"). SFAS No. 123(R) requires that all share-based payments to employees, including grants
of employee stock options, be measured at fair value and expensed over the service period (generally the vesting
period). We transitioned to SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective method whereby compensation is
recognized under SFAS N. 123(R) beginning January 1, 2006 and thereafter, with prior periods’ stock-based
compensation stilt determined pursuant to APB No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB No. 257),
with pro forma disclosure provided as if SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
(“SFAS No. 1237), had been applied. We elected to adopt the alternative transition method provided in FSP
No. 123R-3, Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards, for
calculating tax effects of equity-based compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R). The SEC issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 107”) relating to SFAS 123(R), and we applied the provisions of SAB 107
in our adoption of SFAS 123(R). Compensation expense is measured and recognized as foliows:

Awards granted after December 31, 2005 — Awards are measured at their fair value at the date of grant under
the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) with the resulting compensation expense recognized ratably over the service
period which is generally the vesting period of the award.

Awards granted prior to December 31, 2005 — Awards were measured at their fair value at the date of original
grant under the original provisions of SFAS 123. Compensation expense associated with the unvested portion of
these options at January 1, 2006 is recognized ratably over the service period which is generally the remaining
vesting period of the award.

For all grants, the amount of compensation expense to be recognized is adjusted for an estimated forfeiture rate
which is based on historical data.
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The following table presents stock-based compensation expense included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations:

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2007 2006 2005

(In thousands)
Cost Of SAlES . . .. . e e e 51,343  $2470 $182
Selling, general, and administrative .. ... ... .. ... ... ... ... .. . ... 2,603 2,753 191
Stock-based compensation expense. .. ... ... ... ... i $3,946 $5223 $373

For the year ended December 31, 2006, stock-based compensation expense included $0.5 million of cash
payments as a result of an offer to amend discussed in more detail below.

Prior to January 1, 2006, as permitted under SFAS No. 123, we applied APB Opinion No. 25 and related
interpretations in accounting for our stock-based compensation plans. Under APB Opinion Ne. 25, compensation
expense was recognized for stock option grants if the exercise price was below the fair value of the underlying stock
at the measurement date. Had compensation costs been determined consistent with the requirements of
SFAS No. 123, pro forma net loss and net loss per common share would have been as follows for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (in thousands, except per share data):

Net loss:
Net 1088, a5 TEPOIed . . . .ottt e e e e e $(137,235)
Add: Total stock-based employee compensation recognized under intrinsic value
method, net Of 18X . . ... o e e e 373
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation determined under fair value based
method, net of 1aX . . . ... ... e e (2,526)
Net 108S, Pro JOrma . . .ot e e e et e e e $(139,388)

Loss per share:
Basic and diluted:
ASTEPOTIEd . . ... ... $ (078
PrO fOrmIa . o e e e e £ (079

Pro forma compensation expense under SFAS No. 123 does not include an upfront estimate of potential
forfeitures, but rather recognizes them as they occur and amortizes the compensation expense for retirement eligible
individuals over the vesting period without consideration to acceleration of vesting.

Stock Option Plans

Stock options are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the stock at the date of
grant. Substantially all of the options granted are generally exercisable pursuant to a two to five-year vesting
schedule and the term of the options granted is no longer than ten years.

2007 Equity Incentive Plan.  On August 6, 2007, the shareholders approved the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan,
(the “2007 Plan™) that provides for the grant of the following types of incentive awards: (i) stock options,
(ii) restricted stock, (iii) restricted stock units, (iv) stock appreciation rights, (v) performance units and performance
shares and (vi) other stock or cash awards. Those who will be eligible for awards include employees, directors and
consultants who provide services to Amkor and its parent or subsidiaries. The effective date of this plan is January 1,
2008 and there are 17,000,000 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under the 2007 Equity Incentive
Plan.
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2003 Nonstatutory Inducement Grant Stock Plan.  On September 9, 2003, we initiated the 2003 Nonstatutory
Inducement Grant Stock Plan (the “2003 Plan”). The 2003 Plan generally provides for the grant to employees,
directors and consultants of stock options and stock purchase rights and is generally used as an inducement benefit
for the purpose of retaining new employees. There is a provision for an annual replenishment to bring the number of
shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the plan up to 300,000 as of each January 1.

1998 Director Option Plan. The Director Plan terminated in January 2008. The option grants under the
Director Plan were automatic and non-discretionary. Each option granted to a non-employee director vests over a
three-year period.

1998 Stock Plan. The 1998 Stock Plan terminated in January 2008. The 1998 Stock Plan generally provided
for grants o employees, directors and consultants of stock options and stock purchase rights. The options granted
vest over a two to five year-period.

A summary of the stock option plans and the respective plan termination dates and shares available for grant as
of December 31, 2007 is shown below.

1998 Director
Stock Option Plans 2007 Equity Incentive Plan 2003 Inducement Plan Option Plan 1998 Stock Plan
Contractual Life (yrs). . . 10 10 10 10
Board of Directors Board of Directors

Plan termination date . . . Discretion Discretion January 2008 January 2008
Shares available for

grant at December 31, °

2007 ..., — 330,000 91,666 6,495,873

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we extended an offer to amend the exercise price of certain options that were
granted at a discount from fair market value as the holder may be subject to adverse tax consequences under
Section 409A of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. For each of the 735,000 options held by the 260 individuals
accepting our offer to amend their options, a cash payment was made in January 2007 for the difference between the
new exercise price per share of the amended option and the original exercise price per share. We recognized
$0.5 million in compensation expense in 2006 related to this offer.

In order to calculate the fair value of stock options at the date of grant, we used the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. Expected volatilities are based on historical performance of our stock. We also use historical data to
estimate the timing and amount of option exercises and forfeitures within the valuation model. The expected term of
the options is based on evaluations of historical and expected future employee exercise behavior and represents the
period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the
contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

The foliowing assumptions were used to calculate weighted average fair values of the options granted:
For the Year Ended

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Expected life (in years). . ... ..ottt e e 6.3 58 5.8
Risk-free Interest rate . . ... ... .ot e 4.1% 4.6% 4.0%
o) 41 T P 80% 78% 91%
Dividend yield . . ... ... .. e —_ - —
Weighted average grant date fair value per option granted .. ........... $6.46 $4.82 $3.34

The intrinsic value of options exercised for the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$12.2 miilion, $1.5 million and $0.1 miltion, respectively.
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The following is a summary of all option activity for the year ended December 31, 2007:
Weighted Average

Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Price Contractual Term Intrinsic
Shares per Share (Years) Value
Outstanding at December 31,
2006 ... e e 15,334,089 $10.47
Granted. . . .................. 1,351,000 8.96
Exercised ................... (3,689,672) 10.04
Forfeited or expired. . .. ........ (1,088,183) 12,77
Outstanding at December 31,
2007 ... 11,907,234 10.24 5.13 $8,076,162
Exercisable at December 31,
2007 .. e 9,293,858 10,99 4.09 $4.979,468
Fully vested and expected to vest ’
at December 31,2007 ... ... .. 11,498,391 10.33 4.97 $7,638,074

Total unrecognized compensation expense from stock options, excluding any forfeiture estimate, was
$9.6 million as of December 31, 2007, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
2.65 years beginning January 1, 2008. -

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). A total of 1,000,000 shares of common stock were available for sale
under the ESPP annually until the plan was terminated in April 2006. For the year ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 we issued 999,981 and 992,952 shares, respectively, at an average fair value of $2.78 and $0.85, respectively.

We valued our ESPP purchase rights using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which incorporated the

assumptions noted in the table below. The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect
at the time of grant.

For the Year

Ended
December 31,
2006 2005
Expected life (In years). . .. ... .ot e 0.5 0.5
Risk-free INterest TAlE . . ... ..ttt ettt et e et e it eeee e 4.8% 4.4%
B 1 66% 64%
Dividend yield . ... ... . e e e — —

For the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, cash received under all share-based payment
arrangements was $37.1 million, $5.0 million and $2.8 million, respectively. There was no tax benefit realized. The

related cash receipts are included in financing activities in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows.
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3, Income Taxes

Geographic sources of income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2607 2006 2005
(In thousands)
United States .. ... oo e it e $ (4,728) $(49,187) 9$(116,175)
Foreign. ... .o e 239,565 231,681 (29,113)
Total income (loss) before income taxes and minority
IIETESt . . . o e $234.837 $182494  $(145,288)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes includes federal, state and foreign taxes currently payable and those
deferred because of temporary differences between the financial statement and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Current
Federal. . ... ... $ (63 $ (406) $(34,535)
StAtE. . o e e e e e e —_ —_ —
Foreign. ... .. o 20,192 11,646 3,942
20,129 11,240 (30,593)
Deferred
Federal. ... ... ... 0 e e —_ —_ 25,023
o 2 — —_ —
Foreign. . . ..o e e e e (7,532} (32) 19
(7,532) (32) 25,042
Total provision (benefit) . ... ... ... i $12,597  $11,208 § (5,551)

The reconciliation between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate of 35% and our income tax provision
(benefit) is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Expected federal tax at 35%. . .. ...... ... .. ool $ 82,176 $63,873  $(50,851)
State 1axes, net of federal benefit .. ... ... .. ............. (1,007) 6,077 (4,368)
Foreign income taxed at differentrates. .. ................. (63,086) (57,824) 46,308
Expiration of capital loss carryforward . .. ... ... ... ... .. 51,227 — —
Change in valuation allowance . ... ...................... (29,123) (23,677) 74,952
Adjustments related to prior years . ........... ... ... ..., (20,689) (2,066) (68,972)
Income tax credits generated . .............. . ... .. ... ... (6,537 {9,388) (4,218)
Repatriation of foreign earnings and profits. . ... ............ — 33,203 —
Other permanent differences. . . ............ .. ... .. .. ... ' {364) 1,010 1,598

Total income tax expense {(benefit) ...... [ $12597 $11,208 3§ (5,551)
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The following is a summary of the components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities:

December 31,
2007 2006
{In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards . .. ........ ... ... .. i, $ 159915 $ 159,488
Capital loss carmryforwards . . .. ... ... . it 57,232 108,523
Income tax credits. . . .. ... e e e e 18,351 21,136
Investments. . ... .. ... e e 18,148 16,715
Property, plant and,equipment . . ........... ... .. .. ... . ... 13,736 11,152
Accrued labilities . . ... ..o e e e e e e 29,336 6,970
Other . . e e e 31,363 23,800
Total deferred tax assets . ... ... ... .. . .. ... e 328,081 347,784
Valuation allowance .. ... ... ... ... .. . ... ... (291,042) (328,083}
Total deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance . . . ............... 37,039 19,701

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment . ... ......... ... ... 0. ... 8,610 7,319
Other .. e e e 7.451 4,827
Total deferred tax liabilities. ... ......... ... . ... .. ... ... ... ... 16,661 12,146
Net deferred tax assets . ... ... .ou vttt i i ieiataa $ 20978 § 7,555

In 2007, the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets decreased by $37.0 million primarily as aresult of a
$51.2 million decrease associated with the expiration of U.S. capital loss carryforwards and a $17.8 million
decrease associated with the use of all remaining net operating loss carryforwards and the release of the valuation
allowance on all deferred tax assets at our largest subsidiary in Taiwan because of sustained profitability. In
addition, deferred tax assets of $7.6 million and a related valuation allowance of the same amount were reduced in
2007 in connection with the adoption of FIN 48. These decreases in our valuation allowance in 2007 were partially
offset by an increase of $32.9 million on deferred tax assets recorded in 2007 in certain foreign jurisdictions that we
presently forecast will become tax deductions beyond our tax holiday periods. We provided a full valuation
allowance on these deferred tax assets primarily because we do not have sufficient positive evidence that it is more
likely than not we will realize these tax benefits,

In 2006, the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets decreased by $23.9 million, primarily as a result of
a $14.5 million benefit relating to utilization of U.S. net operating loss carryforwards and a $6.4 million benefit
relating to utilization of Taiwanese net operating loss carryforwards. In 2006, the current earnings and profits of our
wholly-owned subsidiary in the Philippines was considered a deemed dividend for U.S. tax purposes resulting in use
of U.S. net operating loss carryforwards which had no incremental effect on our consolidated provision. During
2005, the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets increased by $75.0 million, resulting from a charge to
establish a valuation allowance against the increase in our U.S., Taiwanese, Singaporean and Philippine net
operating loss carryforwards, capital loss carryforwards, tax credits and other deferred 1ax assets.

At December 31, 2007, the valuation allowance includes amounts relating to the tax benefits of pre-acquisition
net operating losses and credits. If these benefits are subsequently realized, they will be recorded to goodwill and
nen-current intangible assets in the amounts of $12.6 million and $2.5 million, respectively. At December 31, 2007,
the valuation allowance includes amounts relating to tax benefits of the tax deduction associated with employee
stock options, If these benefits are subsequently realized, they will be recorded to contributed capital in the amount
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of $6.1 million. As a result of net operating loss carryforwards, we were not able to recognize the windfall tax
benefits of stock option deductions in 2007 because the deductions did not reduce income tax payable.

As a result of certain capital investments, export commitments and employment levels, income from
operations in Korea, the Philippines, China, Singapore and Taiwan is subject to reduced tax rates, and in some
cases is exempt from taxes. [n Korea, we have tax holidays resulting from our investment in the Kwangju, Seoul and
Pupyong facilities. The Kwangju tax holiday provides a 100% tax exemption through 2010, followed by a 50%
exemption through 2013. The Seoul and Pupyong tax holiday provides a 100% tax exemption through 2011,
followed by a 50% exemption through 2014. After the holidays expire we will be subject to the Korean statutory rate
which is currently 27.5%. In the Philippines, our operating locations operate in economic zones and in exchange for
tax holidays, we have committed to certain export, capital investment and employment levels. For 2005 through
2007, certain qualifying Philippine operations benefited from a full tax holiday, expiring at various times through
2011, while the remaining operations benefited from a perpetual reduced tax rate of 5%. As a result of our 2001
investment in China, we expect to benefit from a 100% tax holiday for two years and then a 50% tax holiday for an
additional three years. The tax holiday in China will commence on January 1, 2008. In October 2006, we were
granted a ten year pioneer incentive award by the Singapore Economic Development Board. Singapore operations
will benefit from a 100% tax holiday for up to ten years, beginning on January 1, 2007. We were granted a five year
tax holiday on certain product lines in Taiwan beginning January I, 2007. As a result of the net operating losses
incurred by our foreign subsidiaries subject to tax holidays, we did not realize any benefits relating to such tax
holidays in 2007, 2006 or 2005 in China, Korea and Singapore. In 2006, our Philippines operations recognized
$2.1 millien in tax benefits as a result of the tax holiday on certain qualifying operations. In 2007, our Philippines
operations recognized $0.4 million in tax benefits and our Taiwan operations recognized $0.6 million in tax benefits
as a result of the tax holiday on certain qualifying operations.

At December 31, 2007, we have U.S. and state net operating losses available to be carried forward totaling
$364.3 million and $267.9 million, respectively, expiring in varying amounts through 2027. Additionally, as of
December 31, 2007, our Philippines operations had $19.0 million of net operating losses available for carryforward.
If these foreign net operating losses are not utilized, they will expire in varying amounts through 2010. The deferred
tax asset associated with the Philippine losses has been reserved with a valvation allowance. Our subsidiary,
Unitive Semiconductor Taiwan (“UST”), has $28.5 million of net operating losses available for carryforward
which, if not utilized, will expire in varying amounts through 2012. The deferred tax asset associated with the UST
losses has been reserved with a valuation allowance. Net operating losses generated in Singapore through 2006 are
not available for carryforward to future periods in connection with the pioneer incentive award granted in October
2006. We also have U.S. capital loss carryforwards of $143.1 million which will expire in varying amounts in 2008
and 2009. U.S. capital loss carryforwards of $128.1 million expired as of December 31, 2007. The deferred tax
assets associated with our U.S. and state net operating losses and capital losses available for carryforward have been
fully reserved with a valuation allowance at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Also, our ability to utilize our U.S. net
operating and capital loss carryforwards may be limited in the future if we experience an ownership change as
defined by the Internal Revenue Code.

At December 31, 2007, we have various tax credits available to be carried forward including U.S foreign
income tax credits totaling $7.0 million, expiring in 2016, Korean income tax credits totaling $7.9 million expiring
in varying amounts through 2012, Taiwanese income tax credits in UST totaling $5.8 million expiring in varying
amounts through 2011, and Taiwanese income tax credits in Amkor Technology Taiwan (“ATT”) totaling
$2.5 million, expiring in varying amounts through 2011. The deferred tax assets associated with the U.S. foreign
income tax credits, the Korean income tax credits, and the Taiwanese income tax credits in UST have been reserved
with a valuation allowance.

Income taxes have not been provided on the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries (approximately
$259.0 million at December 31, 2007) over which we have sufficient influence to control the distribution of such
earnings and have determined that such eamnings have been reinvested indefinitely. These earnings could become
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subject to either or both federal income tax and foreign withholding tax if they are remitted as dividends, if foreign
earnings are loaned to any of our domestic subsidiaries, or if we sell our investment in such subsidiaries. We
estimate that repatriation of these foreign earmings would generate additional foreign withholding taxes of
approximately $46.4 million. There would be no U.S. federal income tax since our U.S. net operating losses
exceed the amount of undistributed foreign earnings.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, current deferred tax assets of $7.7 million and $4.2 million, respectively, are
included in other current assets and non-current deferred tax assets of $16.1 million and $3.4 million, respectively,
are included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. In addition, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, current
deferred tax liabilities of $1.2 million and $0.0 million, respectively, are included in other current liabilities and
non-current deferred tax liabilities of $1.6 million and $0.1 million, respectively, are included in other non-current
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

We operate in and file income tax retums in various U.S. and foreign jurisdictions which are subject to
examination by tax authorities. For our larger foreign operations, our tax returns have been examined through 2001
in the Philippines, through 2002 in China, through 2003 in Taiwan, through 2006 in Japan and have not been
examined in Korea since incorporation in 1999 due to our tax holiday status. We remain subject to examination for
years after 2005 in Japan, for years after 2003 in the U.S. (Federal), the Philippines, Taiwan and Singapore, for years
after 2002 in China and for years after 2001 in Korea. Our tax returns for open years in all jurisdictions are subject to
changes upon examination.

During 2003, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) commenced an examination of our U.S. federal income tax
returns relating to years 2000 and 2001. In September 2005, the Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation
approved the settlement of our IRS examination of the years 2000 and 2001. As part of the settlement, we agreed to
make certain adjustments to our U.S. federal income tax returns in the years 2000 through 2003 for local attribution
of income resulting from inter-company transactions, including ownership and use of intellectual property, in
various U.S. and foreign jurisdictions. The IRS adjustments for the years 2000 and 2001 lowered our U.S. net
operating loss carryforwards by $29.2 million. As a result of the finalization of this IRS examination, we reduced
our deferred tax assets by $25.0 million and our accrued income taxes by $28.4 mitlion, resulting in a net tax benefit
of $3.4 million recorded in 2005.

During 20085, the IRS also commenced an examination of our U.S. federal income tax returns relating to years
2002 and 2003. The IRS exam, a limited scope examination, primarily reviewing inter-company transfer pricing
and cost sharing issues carried over from the 2000 and 2001 examination, was completed in 2006, Upon settlement
of the exam, we agreed to four adjustments, lowering our U.S. net operating loss carryforwards by $49.3 mitlion.
There was no impact 1o our Censolidated Statements of Operations as we maintain a full valuation allowance
against the related deferred tax assets.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. We recognized no cumulative effect of the adoption
of FIN 48 to the opening balance of retained earnings as a result of the implementation of FIN 48. The gross amount
of unrecognized tax benefits upon adoption of FIN 48 was $11.8 million. A reconciliation of the beginning and
ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

{In thousands)

Balance at January 1, 2007 .. ... ... . . . e e $11,809
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year . . .. ............... 5,846
Additions for tax positions of prior years . .......... ... . . e © 339
Reductions for tax positions of prior years . .......... ... . ... ... ..., (19)
Settlements . . ... e e e e (312)

Balance at December 31, 2007 . . . . . $17,663
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Our unrecognized tax benefits include amounts that, if recognized, would increase deferred tax assets subject
to a valuation allowance. Accordingly, these uncertain tax benefits, if recognized, would not affect the effective tax
rate, The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is
approximately $1.9 million as of December 31, 2007.

The FIN 48 liability is $7.7 million as of December 31, 2007 and is reported as a component of other non-
current liabilities. This liability does not generally represent future cash payments because of the interaction with
other tax attributes available such as net operating loss or tax credit carryforwards. The unrecognized tax benefits in
the table above includes the reduction of deferred tax assets, which are not included in the FIN 48 liability.

It is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits will decrease within 12 months due
to statutes of limitations expiring in certain jurisdictions which would decrease our vnrecognized tax benefits
related to revenue attribution by up to $1.5 million.

We have recognized $0.2 million of interest and penalties in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2007 in connection with our unrecognized tax benefits. Interest and penalties are
classified as income taxes in the financial statements. The total amount of interest and penalties included in other
non-current liabilities in connection with our unrecognized tax benefits is $0.3 million as of December 31, 2007.

Qur unrecognized tax benefits are subject to change as examinations of specific tax years are completed in the
respective jurisdictions. We believe that any taxes, or related interest and penalties, over the amounts accrued, will
not have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, nor do we expect that
examinations to be completed in the near term would have a material favorable impact. However, tax return
examinations involve uncertainties and there can be no assurances that the outcome of examinations will be
favorable.

4. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS adjusts net income and the outstanding shares for the
dilutive effect of stock options and convertible debt. The basic and diluted EPS amounts are the same for the year
ended December 31, 2005 as a result of the potentially dilutive securities being antidilutive due to a net loss. The
following table summarizes the computation of basic and diluted EPS:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Net income (loss) —basic. .. ... ... iv i $219,864  $170,084  $(137,235)
Adjustment for dilutive securities on net income:
Interest on 2.5% convertible notes due 2011, net of tax . ... 5,357 2,823 —
Interest on 6.25% convertible notes due 2013, net of tax. . .. 6,310 6,477 —
Net income (loss) —diluted. . .. ... ... ............. $231,531  $179.384  $(137,235)
Weighted average shares outstanding ——basic ... .......... 180,597 177,682 176,385
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock oplions . . . .. ... e e 1,796 674 —
2.5% convertible notes due 2011 .. ................... 13,023 7,849 —_
6.25% convertible notes due 2013 . . ... ... ... .. ..... 13,351 13,351 —
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted .. ... ... 208,767 199,556 176,385
EPS:
BasIC vt e e e e $ 122 % 09 $ (0.78)
Diluted . . ... ... e $ 111 $ 09 $ (0.78)
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The following table summarizes the potential shares of common stock that were excluded from diluted EPS,
because the effect of including these potential shares was antidilutive:
?

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)
StOCK OPHONS . . . o e e et ettt et et L. 5092 13275 16,370
5.0% convertible notes due 2007 . .. ... .. ... 504 2,517 2,554
5.75% convertible notes due 2006 . . . ... ... e — 1,571 6,419
6.25% convertible notes due 2013 . . .. ... .. . ... — —_ 1,134
Total potentially dilutive shares . . ........................... 5596 17,363 26477
Stock options excluded from diluted EPS because the exercise price was
greater than the average market price of the common shares. .. ... .. 5,092 13,275 16,283
5. Accounts Receivable, Trade
Accounts receivable, trade consists of the following:
December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Accounts receivable. . . .. o e e e $399,032  $392,370
Allowance forsalescredits . ......... ... ... .. . . i (4,863) (9,247
Allowance for doubtful accounts . .. ... ........ ... i innn. (676) (2,235)
Total accounts recetvable trade, net of allowances. ... ............... $393.493  $380,888
6. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following:
December 31,
2007 2006
{In thousands)
Raw materials and purchased components . ......................... $109,283  $126,492
Work-in-process . ........ ... .. ... e 39,731 37,686
Total INVENIOIES .+ . v v vttt et e e e et e e e e e e $149014 $164,178
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Land. . ... $ 110,568 § 110,730
Landuserightsin China . . . ....... ... .. .o i i, 19,945 19,945
Buildings and improvements . ........ ... .. e 300,507 790,847
Machinery and equipment . . . ......... ... . .. i 2,221,954 2,057,939
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment . ... .................... 162,306 141,621
Construction il PrOZIESS . . . . .« o i ittt it ans 20,441 8,617
: 3,335,721 3,129,699
Less — Accumulated depreciation and amortization ... ............ (1,880,610  (1,686,096)
Total property, plant and equipment, net. . .................... $ 1,455,111  § 1,443,603

The following table reconciles our activity related to property, plant and equipment payments as presented on
the statement of cash flows to property, plant and equipment additions reflected on the balance sheet:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment. .. ............. $236,240  $315,873  $295,943
Net change in related accounts payable and deposits . .. .. .... 57,636 {16,850) (1,164)
Property, plant and equipment additions .. ................ $293,876  $299,023  $294,779

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The change in the carrying value of goodwill, all of which relates to our packaging services segment, is as
follows:
(In thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2005 ... . it e e e e $653,717
Goodwill acquired . . ... ... . ... . oL e e e e e e 17911
Translation adjustments . ... ... ittt e e e e 272
Balance as of December 31, 2006 . ... ... . i e e e 671,900
Goodwill acquired - .. ... . i e e e 782
Translation adjustments . .. . ... .. u ot i ittt e 703
Balance as of December 31, 2007 . ... .. . i e e $673,385

In January 2006, we acquired an additional 39.6% of UST for $18.4 million which brings our combined
ownership of UST to 99.6%. The majority of the purchase price was allocated to goodwill resulting in $17.9 million
of goodwill acquired in 2006. In March 2007, we increased goodwill by $0.8 million for additional consideration
paid with respect to an earn-out provision in connection with our investment in UST.

During the second quarters of 2007 and 2006, in accordance with the provisions of FASB Statement No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we performed our annual impairment test on goodwill and concluded that

goodwill was not impaired.
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Intangibles as of December 31, 2007 consist of the following:

Accomulated
Gross Amortization Net
(In thousands)
Patents and technology rights . . ......... ... ... .. ... ... $75,532  $(59,049) 516483
Customer relationship and supply agreements . ............. 8,858 (5,020) 3,838
Total intangibles ... .......... ... ., $84,390  $(64,069)  $20,321
Intangibles as of December 31, 2006 consist of the following:
Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net
(In thousands)
Patents and technology rights .. ........................ $74,468 $(50,167)  $24,301
Customer relationship and supply agreements . ............. 8,858 (3,465) 5,393
Total intangibles . . ........... ... .. ... . 383,326 $(53,632)  $29,69%4

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets was $10.4 million, $3.6 million and $9.5 million in 2007, 2006
and 2003, respectively. Based on the amortizing assets recognized in our balance sheet at December 31, 2007,
amortization for each of the next five fiscal years is estimated as follows:

(In thousands)

2008 . e e $ 9,504
2000 . e e 4,747
2000 L e e e e e e e 2,818
L 1,011
O 795
Thereafter ... ... e e 1,446
Total amortization ... ... .. i e e e $20,321
9. Investments
Investments include marketable securities and equity investments as follows:
December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)

Marketable securities classified as available for sale:

Dongbu HiTek Co., Ltd. (ownership of less than 1% at December 31, 2007
and 2006) . .. L e e e $3,019  $6,643

Other marketable securities classified as available forsale . ... . ... ........ _— 31
Total marketable securities .. ......... .ot e, 3,019 6,674
Equity investments . ... ... ... ..ot e e 1

Total INVESIMENIS . . o . vttt et et e e et et e e e e e $3.019 $6,675

We recognized impairment charges included in other (income) expense, net of $2.7 million, $3.2 million and
$3.7 million related to our Dongbu Hitek investment in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. For all years, these

impairment charges were recognized as we believed the related decline in value, determined by quoted prices in
active markets, was other than temporary.
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10. Accrued Expenseé

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

Payrolland benefits. ... ... ... ... i
Customer advances and deferred revenue . . . ... ... i,
AcCCrued INMEIEST . . . .ottt e e
Income taxes payable . ... ... ... .. ... . .
Other acerued eXpPenNSES . . . ..ottt e e

Total accrued eXPenses . ...t i

11. Debt

Following is a summary of short-term borrowings and long-term debt:

Debt of Amkor Technology, Inc.
Senior secured credit facilities:
$100 million revolving credit facility, LIBOR plus 1.5% — 2.25%,
due November 2009 . .. ... ... . i
Second lien term loan, LIBOR plus 4.5%, due October 2010......
Senior notes
9.25% Senior notes due February 2008 . . .. ............ ... ...
7.125% Senior notes due March 2011 .. ......... ... .. ... ...
7.75% Senior notesdue May 2013 . . ... ... ... ol
9.25% Senior notes due June 2016 ... ... .. ... ..l
Senior subordinated notes
10.5% Senior subordinated notes due May 2009 . ..............
2.5% Convertible senior subordinated notes due May 2011 .. .. ...
Subordinated notes:
5.0% Convertible subordinated notes due March 2007, convertible
at$573d pershare ... ..o e
6.25% Convertible subordinated notes due December 2013,
convertible at $7.49 per share, related party . .. ..............
Debt of subsidiaries:
Secured term loans:
Term loan, Woori Bank base rate plus 0.5% due April 2014 .. ... ...
Term loan, Taiwan 90-Day Commercial Paper secondary market rate
plus 2.25% due June 20,2008, . .. ... ... . o ol
Term loan, Taiwan 90-Day Commercial Paper primary market rate
plus 1.2%, due November 2010............. ... ... .. ...
Secured equipment and property financing ......... ... .. Ll
Revolving credit facilities. . . ... ... ... . o i ol
Otherdebt . . ... . i e e i e,

Less: Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt . . . ..
Long-term debt (including related party). .. ...... .. ...t nt

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)

.. $68431 § 63,222
. 31,189 17,533
.. 21,138 22,721
.. 9,933 5,382
. 34,580 36,643

.. $165271  $145,501

December 31,

2007 2006

{In thousands)

$ - 8  —
— 300,000

88,206 88,206
249,112 248,877
422,000 425,000
390,000 400,000

— 21,882
190,000 190,000

— 142,422
100,000 100,000
278,564 —
5,380 8.411
33,938 45,024
6,859 12,626
— 22,571

— 296

1,764,059 2,005,315
(152,489 (185,414)

$1,611,570 $1,819,901
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Debt of Amkor Technology Inc.

Senior Secured Credit Facilities

In November 2005, we entered into a $100.0 million first lien revolving credit facility available through |
November 2009, with a letter of credit sub-limit of $25.0 million. Interest is charged under the credit facility at a
floating rate based on the base rate in effect from time to time plus the applicable margins which range from 0.0% to
0.5% for base rate revolving loans, or LIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.25% for LIBOR revolving loans. The LIBOR-based
interest rate at December 31, 2007 was 6.20%; however, no borrowings were outstanding on this credit facility. As
of December 31, 2007, we had utilized $0.2 million of the available letter of credit sub-limit and had $99.8 million
available under this facility. The borrowing base for the revolving credit facility is based on the valuation of our
eligible accounts receivable, We incur commitment fees on the unused amounts of the revolving credit facility
ranging from 0.25% to 0.50%, based on our liquidity. This facility includes a number of affirmative and negative
covenants, which could restrict our operations. If we were to default under the first lien revolving credit facility, we
would not be permitted to draw additional amounts, and the banks coutd accelerate our obligation to pay all
outstanding amounts.

In October 2004, we entered into a $300.0 million second lien term loan with a group of institutional lenders.
The term loan bore interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 450 basis points (9.87% at December 31, 2006); and would have
matured in October 2010. The loan was secured by a second lien on substantially all of our U.S. subsidiaries’ assets,
including a portion of the shares of certain of our foreign subsidiaries. The second lien term loan was refinanced and
paid in full in April 2007 with the proceeds of the $300.0 million, 7-year secured credit facility with Woori Bank in
Korea. In connection with the prepayment of the second lien term loan, we recorded a loss on debt retirement of
$15.7 million in April 2007, which included $9.0 million in prepayment fees and $6.7 million of unamortized
deferred debt issuance costs. This repayment transaction fully discharged all of our obligations under the second
lien term loan and fully discharged all subsidiary guarantees and releases all the collateral securing the second lien
term loan.

Senior and Senior Subordinated ‘Notes

In February 2001, we issued $500.0 million of 9.25% Senior Notes due February 2008 (the “2008 Notes™). As
of December 31, 2005, we had purchased $29.5 million of these notes. In January 2006, we purchased an additional
$30.0 million of these notes and recorded a gain on extinguishment of $0.7 million which is included in debt
retirement costs, net, which was partially offset by the write-off of a proportionate amount of our deferred debt
issuance costs of $0.2 million. In April 2006, we announced a tender offer for the 2008 Notes. We used the net
proceeds from the 2016 Notes (described below) to purchase $352.3 million in notes tendered. We recorded a
$20.2 million loss on extinguishment related to premiums paid for the purchase of the 2008 Notes and a $2.2 million
charge for the associated unamortized deferred debt issuance costs. Both charges are included in debt retirement
costs, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. On February 15, 2008, we repaid the remaining balance of
$88.2 million at the maturity date with cash on hand.

In March 2004, we issued $250.0 million of 7.125% Senior Notes due March 2011 (the "2011 Notes™). The
2011 Notes were priced at 99.321%, yielding an effective interest rate of 7.25%. The 2011 Notes are redeemable by
us at any time provided we pay the holders a “make-whole” premium.

In May 2003, we issued $425.0 million of 7.75% Senior Notes due May 2013 (the *2013 Notes™). The 2013
Notes are not redeemable at our option until May 2008 whereupon the notes become redeemable at specified prices.
In November 2007, we repurchased in an open market transaction $3.0 million of these notes with cash on hand. We
recorded a gain on extinguishment of $0.2 million which is included in debt retirement costs, net, which was
partially offset by the write-off of a proportionate amount of our deferred debt issuance costs of less than
$0.1 million,

.
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In May 2006, we issued $400.0 million of 9.25% Senior Notes due June 2016 (the “2016 Notes”). The Notes
are redeemable by us prior to June 1, 2011 provided we pay the holders a “make-whole” premium. After June 1,
2011, the 2016 Notes are redeemable at specified prices. In addition, prior to June 1, 2009, we may redeem up to
35% of the 2016 Notes at a specified price with the proceeds of certain equity offerings. After deducting fees to the
underwriter, the net proceeds were used to purchase a portion of the 2008 Notes and to pay respective accrued
interest and tender premiums. In November 2007, we repurchased in an open market transaction $10.0 million of

these notes with cash on hand. We recorded a gain on extinguishment of less than $0.1 million which is included in
debt retirement costs, net, which was more than offset by the write-off of a proportionate amount of our deferred
debt issuance costs of $0.2 million.

In May 1999, we issued $200.0 million of 10.5% Senior Subordinated Notes due May 2009 (the “2009
Notes™). In June 2006, we used the proceeds from the May 2011 Notes (described below) in connection with a
partial call of the 2009 Notes for which $178.1 million of the 2009 Notes were repurchased. We recorded a
$3.1 million loss on extinguishment related to premiums paid for the purchase of the 2009 Notes and a $2.2 million
charge for the associated unamortized deferred debt issuance costs. Both charges are included in debt retirement
costs, net. In June 2007, we redeemed the remaining $21.9 million of the 2009 Notes outstanding with cash on hand
and the indenture has been terminated. We recorded a charge of $0.2 million to write-off the unamortized deferred
debt issuance costs in June 2007.

The senior notes contain a number of affirmative and negative covenants, which could restrict our operations.

Senior Subordinated and Subordinated Convertible Notes

In May 2006, we issued $190.0 million of our 2.5% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due May 2011 (the
“May 2011 Notes™). The May 2011 Notes are convertible at any time, prior to the maturity date, into our common
stock at a price of $14.59 per share, subject to adjustment. The May 2011 Notes are subordinate to the prior payment
in full of all of our senior debt. After deducting fees to the underwriter, the net proceeds from the issuance of the
May 2011 Notes were used to repurchase a portion of the 2009 Notes, pay respective accrued interest and call
premiums. The senior subordinated notes contain a number of affirmative and negative covenants which could
restrict our operations.

In March 2000, we issued $258.8 million of our 5.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes due March 2007 (the
“2007 Notes”). The 2007 Notes were subordinated to the prior payment in full of all of our senior and senior
subordinated debt. In November 2003, we repurchased $112.3 million of our 2007 Notes with the proceeds of an
equity offering. In June 2006, we repurchased $4.0 million of our 2007 Notes at 99.875%. In March 2007, we repaid
the remaining balance of $142.4 million at the maturity date with cash on hand.

In November 2005, we issued $100.0 million of our 6.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes due December
2013 (the “December 2013 Notes”) in a private placement to Mr. James J. Kim, our Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, and certain Kim family members. The December 2013 Notes are presented as long-term debt, related party
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The December 2013 Notes are convertible at any time prior to the maturity date
into our common stock at an initial price of $7.49 per share (the market price of our common stock on the date of
issuance of the December 2013 Notes was $6.20 per share), subject to adjustment. The December 2013 Notes are
subordinate to the prior payment in full of all of our senior and senior subordinated debt. The proceeds from the sale
of the December 2013 Notes were used to purchase a portion of the 2006 Notes described above. The December
2013 Notes are not redeemable at our option until December 2010.

Debt of Subsidiaries

Secured Term Loans

In April 2007, Amkor Technology Korea, Inc., a Korean subsidiary (“ATK"), entered into a $300.0 million,
7-year secured term loan (“Term Loan™) with Woori Bank in Korea. The Term Loan is guaranteed on an unsecured
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basis by Amkor Technology, Inc (“Amkor”). The Term Loan is secured by substantially all the land, factories and
equipment located at our ATK facilities. The Term Loan bears interest at Woori’s base rate plus 50 basis points
(6.58% as of December 31, 2007) and amortizes in 28 equal quarterly payments through April 2014, The proceeds
of the Term Loan were used to refinance Amkor’s existing $300.0 million second lien term loan, due October 2010
{see above). We incurred $3.4 million in debt issuance costs in connection with the Woorl loan, which amount was
funded from cash on hand,

In June 2005, Unitive Semiconductor Taiwan, a Taiwanese subsidiary, entered into a New Taiwan Dollar
(“NT$) 400.0 million (approximately $12.2 million) term loan due June 20, 2008 (the “UST Note™), which accrues
interest at the Taiwan 90-Day Commercial Paper Secondary Market rate plus 2.25% (4.79% and 4.23% as of
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively). Interest payments are due monthly and principal
payments are due quarterly. The proceeds of the UST Note were used to satisfy notes previously held by Unitive
Semiconductor Taiwan. Amkor has guaranteed the repayment of this loan. The agreement governing the UST Note
includes a number of affirmative and negative covenants which could restrict our operations. If we were to default
under the facility, the lenders could accelerate our obligation to pay all outstanding amounts.

In November 2003, Amkor Technology Taiwan, Inc., a Taiwanese subsidiary, entered into a NT$1.8 billion
(approximately $53.5 million) syndication loan due November 2010 (the “Syndication Loan™), which accrues
interest at the Taiwan 90-Day Commercial Paper Primary Market rate plus 1.2% (4.11% and 3.22% as of
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively). Interest payments are due quarterly and principal
payments are due semi-annually. Amkor has guaranteed the repayment of this loan. The agreement governing the
Syndication Loan includes a number of affirmative, negative and financial covenants, which could restrict our
operations. If we were to default under the facility, the lenders could accelerate our obligation to pay all outstanding
amounts.

Secured Equipment and Property Financing

Our secured equipment and property financing consists of loans secured with specific assets at our Japanese,
Singaporean and Chinese subsidiaries. Our credit facility in Japan provides for equipment financing on a three-year
basis for each piece of equipment purchased. The Japanese facility accrues interest at 3.59% on all outstanding
balances and has maturities at various times between 2006 and 2008. In December 2005, our Singaporean
subsidiary entered into a loan with a finance company for $10.0 million, which accrues interest at 4.86% and is due
December 2008. The loan, guaranteed by Amkor is secured by a monetary security deposit and certain equipment in
our Singapore facility. In May 2004, our Chinese subsidiary entered into a $5.5 million credit facility secured with
buildings at one of our Chinese production facilities and is payable ratably through January 2012. The interest rate
for the Chinese financing at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, was 6.73% and 6.14%, respectively. These
equipment and property financings contain affirmative and negative covenants, which could restrict our operations,
and, if we were to default on our obligations under these financings, the lenders could accelerate our obligation to
repay amounts borrowed under such facilities.

Revolving Credit Facilities

Amkor [wate Corporation, a Japanese subsidiary (“AIC”), has a revolving line of credit with a Japanese bank
for 2.5 billion Japanese yen (approximately $21.2 million) that matures in September 2008, The line of credit
accrues interest at the Tokyo Interbank Offering Rate (“TIBOR™) plus 0.6%. The interest rate at December 31, 2007
ranged from 1.27% to 1.34%, and December 31, 2006 ranged from 0.97% to 1.04%. There were no amounts drawn
on the line of credit as of December 31, 2007. There was $7.6 million drawn on the line of credit as of December 31,
2006.

Additionally, AIC has a revolving line of credir at a Japanese bank for 300.0 million Japanese yen (approx-
imately $2.5 million), maturing in June 2008, that accrues interest at TIBOR plus 0.5%. The interest rate at
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December 31, 2007 and at December 31, 2006 was 1.25% and 0.92%, respectively. There were no amounts
outstanding as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006.

In March 2007, our Philippine subsidiary renewed and increased a revolving line of credit from 795.0 million
Philippine Peso (approximately $15.5 million) to 895.0 million Philippine peso (approximately $18.5 million),
which expired December 31, 2007 and is not expected to be renewed. There were no amounts drawn on the line of
credit in 2007 or outstanding at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006.

In January 2006, Amkor Assembly & Test (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., a Chinese subsidiary (“"AATS”), entered intoa
$15.0 million working capital facility which accrued interest at LIBOR plus 1.25%, and was paid off at maturity in
January 2007 with cash on hand. The borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2006 were $15.0 million. At
December 31, 2006, the interest rate ranged from 6.62% to 6.81% based on the dates of borrowing.

Unitive Semiconductor Taiwan had a revolving line of credit with a Taiwan bank for NT$60.0 miilion
(approximately $1.9 million) that matured in June 2007. We renewed this facility for NT$20.0 million (approx-
imately $0.6 million) in August 2007, The line of credit matures in June 2008 and accrues interest at a variable
interest rate. The negotiated interest rate at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was 4.45% and 3.60%,
respectively. There were no amounts drawn on the line of credit as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006.

These lines of credit contain certain affirmative and negative covenants, which could restrict our operations. If
we were to default on our obligations under any of these lines of credit, we would not be permitted to draw
additional amounts, and the lenders could accelerate our obligation to pay all outstanding amounts.

Other Debt

Other debt includes debt related to our Taiwanese subsidiaries with fixed and variable interest rates that
matured in June 2007. The interest rate on this debt ranged from 3.14% to 4.5% as of December 31, 2006.

Interest expense related to short-term borrowings and long-term debt is presented net of interest income in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2007,
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 was $9.8 million, $6.9 million and $5.3 million, respectively.

Compliance with Debt Covenants

Our secured bank debt agreements and the indentures governing our senior and senior subordinated notes
restrict our ability to pay dividends. We were in compliance with all of our covenants as of December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005.

Maturities

Total Debt
(In thousands)

Payments Due for the year ending December 31,

0 PP $ 152,489
2000 © o e e e 54,774
20E0 . e e e e e e e e 54,816
.3 1 1 GO 482,660
1 () 2 43,036
Thereafter ... ................ e e e s 976,284
Total debt . . ot et et e e e e e e e e e e s $1,764,059
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12. Pension and Severance Plans
U.S. Defined Contribution Plan

We have a defined contribution plan covering substantially all U.S. employees. Eligible employees can
contribute up to 60% of their salary, subject to annual Internal Revenue Service limitations. We match in cash 75%
of the employee’s contributions up to a defined maximum on an annual basis. The expense for this plan was
$1.9 million, $1.9 million and $2.2 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Taiwan Defined Contribution Plan

We have a defined contribution plan under the Taiwanese Labor Pension Act in Taiwan whereby employees
can contribute up to 6% of salary. We contribute no less than 6% of the employees’ salaries up to a defined
maximum into their individual accounts. The expense for this plan was $1.4 million, $1.6 million and $0.9 million
in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Korean Severance Plans

Our Korean subsidiary participates in an accrued severance plan that covers employees and directors with at
least one year of service. Eligible employees are entitled to receive a lump-sum payment upon termination of
employment, based on their length of service, seniority and average monthly wages at the time of termination.
Accrued severance benefits are estimated assuming all eligible employees were to terminate their employment at
the balance sheet date.

Our contributions to the National Pension Plan of the Republic of Korea are deducted from accrued severance
benefit liabilities. During 2006, we announced an early voluntary retirement program. All charges related to this
program were paid as of December 31, 2006. See Note 19 for further discussion. The changes to our Korean
severance accrual are as follows:

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Balance at the beginning of year. . .. .................... $143,822  S$117911 3 93,500
Provision of severance benefits. . . ......... ... ... .. ..... 40,972 29,393 26,824
Severance payments . . . ... c vttt e e (10,605) (14,474) (5,314)
{Gain) loss on foreign currency. . ... ........ ... ..., (1,864) 10,992 2,901
172,325 143,822 117,911
Payments remaining with the Korean National Pension Fund. . . (1,401) (1,500) (1,488)
Balance at theendof year . ........................... $170,924 $142,322  $116,423

Foreign Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Our Philippine, Taiwanese and Japanese subsidiaries sponsor defined benefit plans (the “Plans”) that cover
substantially all of their respective employees who are not covered by statutory plans. Charges to expense are based
upon costs computed by independent actuaries.

We adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158 and initially applied them to the funded status of our
defined benefit postretirerent plans as of December 31, 2006. The initial recognition of the funded status of our
defined benefit postretirement plans resulted in a decrease in other assets and total assets of $0.3 million; an increase
in pension and severance obligations of $12.0 million; a decrease in other non-current liabilities of $0.4 million; an
increase in total liabilities of $11.5 million; a decrease in stockholders’ equity of $1 1.8 millien which was net of a
tax benefit of $0.8 million; and a decrease in total liabilities and stockholders’ equity of $0.3 million.
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The following table sets forth the Plans’ benefit obligations, fair value of the Plans’ assets and the funded status
of the Plans at December 31, 2007 and 2006.
December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year ... ............. .... $56,248 § 34441
SEIVICE COSt . o it it i et e et e e 6,360 4,364
(e st A o+ 1= 3,670 2.805
Benefitspaid . ...... ... ... . .. e (990) (1,719)
Actuarial losses ... ... .. ... ... ..., [P 726 14,259
Foreign exchange 10oss. . . ... . . i i s 10,170 2,098
Projected benefit obligation atendof year........... ... ... . ... ... 76,184 56,248
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year. .. .. ... ... ... ... .... 29,071 22,193
Actual return (loss) onplan assets . .. .. ... ..ot (996) 2,797
Employer contributions . . . .. .. .. ... e 7,380 4,493
Benefits paid ...........c i (990) (1,719)
Foreign exchange gain .. ...... ... .. ... .. .. i i 5,288 1,302
Fair value of plan assets atendof year ............. ... ... ... ... 39,753 29,071
Funded status of the Plans atend of year. . ........ ... ... .. ....... $(36431) $(27,17D
December 31,
2007 2006

{In thousands)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost (included in non-current assets) ................. $ 1,000 $ 256
Accrued benefit liability (included in pension and severance obligations) ..  (37,431)  (27,433)
Net amount recognized at yearend ... ......... [ $(36,431) $(27.171

The accumulated benefit obligation as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $38.9 million and $25.4 million,
respectively.
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The following table sets forth, by component, the change in accumulated other comprehensive loss related to
our Plans:

Unrecognized
Initial Net Unrecognized Unrecognized
Obligation Prior Service Cost  Actuarial Net Loss Total

{In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2006, net of tax
(308 million) . .".................... 3(293) $(763) - $(10,779) $(11,835)

Amortization included in net periodic
pension cost, net of tax (less than

$0 1 million) . .......... ... .. ..... 78 61 425 564
Net loss arising during period, net of tax
(302 million) ............... . ..., — — (3,700) (3,700)

Pension liability adjustments included in
other comprehensive income, net of tax

$02million) ............... ... .... 78 6l (3,275 (3,136)
Balance at December 31, 2007, net of tax
$1.0million) ............... .. .. ... $(215) $(702) $(14,054) $(14,971)

Amortization estimated to be included in
2008 net periodic pension cost. . ........ 375 $ 69 $ 731 $ 875

Information for pension plans with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Plans with underfunded or non-funded projected benefit obligation:

Aggregate projected benefit obligation . ... ................ $71,767  $51,505 $34,441

Aggregate fair value of planassets . ...................... 34,335 24,072 22,193
Plans with underfunded or non-funded accumulated benefit

obligation:

Agpregate accumulated benefit obligation. . ................ 6,782 4,945 3,630

Aggregate fair value of planassets . . ... .................. 250 325 275

79




AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

The following table sets forth the net periodic pension costs for each of the three years ended December 31,
2007.

For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Components of net periodic pension cost and total pension expense:

R P $6360 $4364 $5,182
IeTESt COBt. . ottt et e e 3,670 2,805 2,146
Expected returnon plan assets . . ........................, (1,893) (1,597) (1,289)
Amortization of transitional obligation . .. .................. 78 71 73
Amortization of prior service cost .......... ... ... .. 61 69 71
Recognized actuartal loss . .. ... ... .. . . i 467 — 52
Net periodic pension cost. . . ... ... it in i 8,743 5712 6,235
Curtallments . . ... ittt it et e e e e s — — 216
Total pension eXPENSE - . . .o v vt vttt et e e e $8743 $5712 $6451

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Weighted-average assumptions used in computing the net periodic

pension cost and projected benefit obligation at year end:
Discount rate for determining net periodic pensioncost .. ....... 6.1% 8.1% 6.3%
Discount rate for determining benefit obligations at yearend .. ... 6.2% 6.1% 8.1%
Rate of compensation increase for determining net periodic

PERSION COSE . . oot e e 7.0% 6.5% 6.2%
Rate of compensation increase for determining benefit obligations

atyearend .. ... .. e 7.1% 7.0% 6.5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets for determining net periodic

PENSION COST . o v\t e it et ettt e et e e e e 6.0% 6.0% 6.4%

The measurement date for determining the Plans’ assets and benefit obligations was December 31, each year.
Discount rates were generally derived from yield curves constructed from foreign government bonds for which the
timing and amount of cash outflows approximate the estimated payouts,

The expected rate of return assumpiion is based on weighted-average expected returns for each asset class.
Expected returns reflect a combination of historical performance analysis and the forward-looking views of the
financial markets and include input from our actuaries. We have no control over the direction of our investments in
our Taiwanese defined benefit plans as the local Labor Standards Law Fund mandates such contributions into a cash
account balance at the Central Trust of China. The Japanese defined benefit pension plans are non-funded plans, and
as such, no assets exist related to these plans. Qur investment strategy for our Philippine defined benefit plan is long-
termn, sustained asset growth through low to medium risk investments. The current rate of retuirn assumption targets
an asset allocation strategy for our Philippine plan assets of 20% to 75% emerging market debt, 10% to 40%
international equities (primarily U.S. and Europe) and 0% to 10% international fixed-income securities. The
remainder of the portfolio will contain other investments such as short-term investments. At December 31, 2007,
2006 and 200%, Philippine plan assets included $0.9 million and $0.9 million and $0.6 million, respectively, of
Amkor common stock.
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The weighted average asset allocations for the Plans, by asset category, are as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006

(In thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents . ...... ... ... it 200% 134%
Equity securities. . . .. ... . e e 534% 29.1%
Debt SeCUNtIes . . ... o e e 23.1% 55.7%
.1 1 11 3.5% 1.8%

100.0% 100.0%

We contributed $7.4 million, $4.5 million and $4.6 million to the Plans during 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, and we expect to contribute $7.8 million during 2008, We closely monitor the funded status of the

Plans with respect to legislative requirements. We intend to make at least the minimum contribution required by law
each year.

The estimated future benefit payments related to our foreign defined benefit plans are as follows:

2008 . e e $ 3,197
2000 L e e e e 3,617
O 4,582
200 e e 4,215
20 e e 5414
200310 2007 L e e e 35437

13. Other Non-Current Liabilities

Other non-current liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Customer advances and deferred revenue. . .. ... ... 0 it $20,395  $24,397
Other non-current liabilities. . . . ... ... . ... ... . . . 13,540 5,611
Total other non-current Habilities .. ... ... ... ... ... ... . $33935  $30,008

Customer advances relate 1o supply agreements with customers where we commit capacity in exchange for
customer prepayment of services.

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of financial instruments has been determined vsing available market information and
appropriate methodologies; however, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the
estimates for fair value. Accordingly, these estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that we could
realize in a current market exchange. Certain of these financial instruments are with major financial institutions and
expose us to market and credit risks and may at times be concentrated with certain counterparties or groups of
counterparties. The creditworthiness of counterparties is continually reviewed and full performance is anticipated.
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The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The methods and assumptions
used to estimate the fair value of other significant classes of financial instruments is set forth below:

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Qur cash and cash equivalents are invested in U.S. money market funds and
various U.S. and foreign bank operating and time deposit accounts. Cash and cash equivalents are due on demand or
catry a maturity date of less than three months when purchased. No restrictions have been imposed on us regarding
withdrawal of balances as a result of liquidity or other credit market issues affecting the money market funds we
invest in or the counterparty financial institutions holding our deposits. The carrying amount of these financial
instruments is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Available for sale investments.  Available for sale investments are recorded at market value. The fair value of
these financial instruments is estimated based on market quotes in active markets.

Long-term debt. The carrying amount of our total long-term debt as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was
$1,764.1 million and $2,005.3 million, respectively. The fair valve of our total long-term debt as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, based on available market quotes, was estimated to be $1,746.5 million and $2,000.6 million,
respectively.

15. Commitments and Centingencies

As of December 31, 2007, we have outstanding $0.2 million of standby letters of credit and have available an
additional $24.8 million. Such standby letters of credit are used in our ordinary course of business and are
collateralized by our cash balances.

We generally warrant that our services will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner and in
compliance with our customers’ specifications. We accrue costs for known warranty issues. Historically, our
warranty costs have been immaterial.

Legal Proceedings

We are involved in claims and legal proceedings and we may become involved in other legal matters arising in
the ordinary course of our business. We evaluate these claims and legal matters on a case-by-case basis to make a
determination as to the impact, if any, on our business, liquidity, results of operations, financial condition or cash
flows, Except as indicated below, we currently believe that the ultimate outcome of these claims and proceedings,
individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. Qur evaluation of the potential impact of these claims and legal proceedings on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows could change in the future. We currently are party to the legal
proceedings described below. Attorney fees related to legal matters are expensed as incurred.

Tessera, Inc. v. Amkor Technology, Inc.

On March 2, 2006, Tessera, Inc, filed a Request for Arbitration (the “Request”) with the International Court of
Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce, captioned Tessera, Inc. v. Amkor Technology, Inc. The
subject matter of the arbitration is a license agreement (“Agreement”) entered into between Tessera and our
predecessor in 1996. The Agreement pertains to certain patents and know-how relating to semiconductor pack-
aging. In its Request, Tessera alleges breach of contract and asserts that Amkor owes Tessera royalties under the
Agreement in an amount between $85 and $115 million for semiconductor packages assembled by us through 2005
and claimed additional royalties for all accused semiconductor packages that Amkor has assembled thereafter.
Since its initial Request, Tessera has asserted royalty claims against additional package types assembled by us and
updated their claims to reflect post 2005 packages. As a result, the aggregate royalty amounts alleged by Tessera to
date, excluding interest, are substantially higher than $115 million. Tessera has identified a total of six United States
patents (U.S. Patent Nos. 5,679,977, 5,852,326, 5,861,666, 6,133,627, 6,433,419 and 6,465,893), and unspecified
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know-how as the basis for its claim that royalties are owed under the Agreement. In our Answer and Counterclaim,
we denied that any royalties were owed, and asserted, among other defenses, that we are not using any of the
licensed Tessera patents or know-how. The arbitration is currently set for a hearing to begin on March 31, 2008.

On April 17, 2007, Tessera sent us a notice of termination of the Agreement. We responded on April 20, 2007,
denying that Tessera has the right to terminate the Agreement. The Arbitration Panel has denied Tessera’s pre-
hearing motion to terminate the Agreement and deferred that issue until the hearing. Also on April 17, 2007, Tessera
instituted an action in Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Texas against certain of Amkor’s customers,
and on May 15, 2007, at Tessera’s request, the United States International Trade Commission (“ITC”) instituted an
investigation of certain Amkor customers. Both the ITC investigation and the Texas action allege infringement of
two of the same patents asserted by Tessera in this arbitration, and Tessera may seek to include in those actions some
of the same products packaged by Amkor that are at issue in this arbitration. The Arbitration Panel has denied our
pre-hearing motion to enjoin Tessera insofar as it is pursuing Amkor-assembled packages in the ITC investigation
and deferred that issue until the hearing, but stated that it will decide all of the issues related to any dispute between
Tessera and us that arises out of the Agreement, including whether the packages prepared by us for our customers
utilize Tessera patents. Although Amkor has not been named as a respondent in the ITC investigation or a defendant
in the Texas action, Amkor has received notification from certain customers of requests for indemnification in
connection with Tessera’s claims in those actions. Amkor has not accepted such requests for indemniftcation.

Although we believe that we have meritorious defenses and counterclaims in this matter and will seek a
judgment in our favor, it is not possible to predict the outcome of the arbitration or the total cost of resolving this
controversy including the impact of possible future claims of additional royalties by Tessera. The final resolution of
this controversy could result in significant liabilities in the form of a one-time payment, ongoing royalty
obligations, or both, and could have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

Securities Class Action Litigation

On January 23, 2006, a purported securities class action suit entitled Nathan Weiss et al. v. Amkor Technol&gy.
Inc. et al., was filed in U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania against Amkor and certain of its
current and former officers. Subsequently, other law firms filed two similar cases, which were consolidated with the
initial complaint. In August 2006 and again in November 2006, the plaintiffs amended the complaint. The plaintiffs
added additional officer, director and former director defendants and alleged improprieties in certain option grants.
The amended complaint further alleges that defendants improperly recorded and accounted for the options in
violation of generally accepted accounting principles and made materially false and misleading statements and
omissions in its disclosures in violation of the federal securities laws, during the period from July 2001 to July 2006.
The amended complaint seeks certification as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. Proc. 23, compensatory
damages, costs and expenses, and such other further relief as the Court deems just and proper. On December 28,
2006, pursuant to motion by defendants, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania transferred
this action to the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona,

On September 25, 2007, the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona dismissed this case with prejudice.
On October 23, 2007, ptaintiffs filed a notice of appeal from the dismissal in the U.S, Circuit Court of Appeals for
the Ninth Circuit. Although we believe that we have meritorious defenses in this matter and will continue to seek a
judgment in our favor, it is not possible to predict the outcome of this litigation. An adverse decision in this matter
could result in material liabilities and could have a material adverse effect on our liquidity, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

Shareholder Derivative Lawsuits

On February 23, 2006, a purported shareholder derivative lawsuit entitled Scimeca v. Kim, et al. was filed in the
U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona against certain of Amkor’s current and former officers and directors.
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Amkor is named as a nominal defendant. In September 2006 and again in November 2006, the plaintiff amended the
complaint to add allegations relating to option grants and added additional defendants, including the remaining
members of the current board, former board members, and former officers. The complaint includes claims for
violation of Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, breach of fiduciary duty, abuse of control, waste of corporate assets,
unjust enrichment and mismanagement, and is generally based on the same allegations as in the securities class
action litigation described above. On August 29, 2007, the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona granted our
motion to dismiss this case.

On March 2, 2006, a purported shareholder derivative lawsuit entitled Khan v. Kim, et al. was filed in the
Superior Court of the State of Arizona against certain of Amkor’s current and former officers and directors. Amkor
is named as a nominal defendant. The complaint includes claims for breach of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment,
and is based on allegations similar to those made in the previously filed federal shareholder derivative action. This
action was stayed pending resolution of the federal derivative suit referenced above, and in August 2007 was
dismissed by the court without prejudice. -

On or about October 10, 2006, a purported shareholder derivative lawsuit entitled Feldgus v. Kim, et al. was
filed in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona against certain of Amkor’s current and former officers and
directors. Amkor is named as a nominal defendant, The complaint includes claims for breach of fiductary duty and
unjust enrichment and contains allegations relating to option grants similar to those made in the previously filed
federal shareholder derivative action referred to above. This action was stayed pending resolution of the federal
derivative suit referenced above, and in December 2007 was dismissed by the court without prejudice.

The derivative complaints sought monetary damages, an order directing us to take all necessary actions to
improve corporate governance as may be necessary, equitable and/or injunctive relief as permitted by law,
disgorgement, restitution, costs, fees, expenses and such other relief as the Court would deem just and proper.
We do not know whether the plaintiffs will take further action in any of these cases.

Securities and Exchange Commission Investigation

In August 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued a formal order of investigation
regarding certain activities with respect to Amkor securities. The primary focus of the investigation appears to be
activities during the period from June 2003 to July 2004, We believe that the investigation continues to relate
primarily to transactions in our securities by certain individuals, and that the investigation may in part relate to
whether tipping with respect to trading in our securities occurred. The matters at issue involve activities with respect
to Amkor securities during the subject period by certain insiders or former insiders and persons or entities
associated with them, including activities by or on behalf of certain current and former members of the Board of
Directors and Amkor’s Chief Executive Officer. Amkor has cooperated fully with the SEC on the formal
investigation and the informal inquiry that preceded it. In October 2007, our former general counsel, whose
employment with us terminated in March of 2005, was convicted of violating the securities laws for trading in
Amkor securities on the basis of material non-public information. In April 2007, the SEC filed a civil action against
our former general counsel based on substantially the same allegations that were charged in the criminal case.

As previously disclosed, in July 2006, the Board of Directors established a Special Committee to review our
historical stock option practices and informed the SEC of these efforts. The SEC informed us in 2006 that it
expanded the scope of its investigation and requested that we provide documentation related to these matters. We
provided the requested documentation and intend to continue to cooperate with the SEC. Amkor cannot predict the
outcome of the investigation.

Amikor Technology, Inc. v. Motorola, Inc.

In August 2002, we filed a complaint against Motorola, Inc. (“Motorola”) in the Superior Court of Delaware
seeking declaratory judgment relating to a controversy between us and Motorola concerning: (i) the assignment by

-
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Citizen Watch Co., Ltd. (“Citizen”) 1o us of a Patent License Agreement dated January 25, 1996 between Motorola
and Citizen (the “License Agreement”) and concurrent assignment by Citizen to us of Citizen’s interest in
U.S. Patents 5,241,133 and 5,216,278 (the * 133 and 278 Patents™) which patents relate to ball grid array packages;
and (ii) our obligation to make certain payments pursuant to an immunity agreement (the “Immunity Agreement”)
dated June 30, 1993 betwcen us and Motorola.

We and Motorola resolved the controversy with respect to all issues relating to the Inmunity Agreement, and
all claims and counterclaims filed by the parties in the case relating to the Immunity Agreement were dismissed or
otherwise disposed of without further litigation. The claims relating to the License Agreement and the ’133 and
'278 Patents remain pending.

We and Motorola both filed motions for summary judgment on the remaining claims, and on October 6, 2003,
the Superior Court of Delaware granted our motion for summary judgment. Motorola filed an appeal in the Supreme
Court of Delaware and in May 2004, the Supreme Court reversed the Superior Court’s decision, and remanded for
further development of the factual record. The bench trial in this matter was concluded on January 27, 2006 and in
November 2007, the court ruled that the assignment by Citizen to Amkor was effective and that Amkor successfully
acquired Citizen’s rights in the License Agreement and '133 and 278 patents. In December 2007, Motorola
appealed the court’s ruling to the Supreme Court of Delaware.

Although we believe that we have meritorious claims in this matter and will continue to seek final judgment in
our favor, as of the date of this Annual Report, it is not possible to predict the outcome of this litigation or the total
cost of resolving this controversy, including the impact of possible future claims for royalties which may be made by
Motorola if the final outcome is unfavorable. The final resolution of this controversy could result in potential
liabilities that could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Alcatel Business Systems v. Amkor Technology, Inc., Anam Semiconductor, Inc.

On November 5, 1999, we agreed to sell certain semiconductor parts to Alcatel Microelectronics, N.V.
(“AME"), a subsidiary of Alcatel S.A. The parts were manufactured for us by Anam Semiconductor, Inc. (“ASI"),a
predecessor to Dongbu Hitek Co., Ltd., and delivered to AME. AME transferred the parts to another Alcatel
subsidiary, Alcatel Business Systems (“ABS"), which incorporated the parts into mobile phone products. In early
2001, a dispute arose as to whether the parts sold by us were defective.

Paris Commercial Court. On March 18, 2002, ABS and its insurer filed suit against us and ASI in the Paris
Commercial Court of France, claiming damages of approximately 50.4 million Euros (approximately $74.2 million
based on the spot exchange rate at December 31, 2007.) We denied all liability associated with this claim. On
March 27, 2007, the French Supreme Court (the highest court in the French judicial system) issued a final non-
appealable ruling in our favor that the Paris Commercial Court does not have jurisdiction over this matter. Based on
this ruling, we do not anticipate any further proceedings in the French courts on this matter.

Arbitration. In December 2006, ABS filed a demand with the American Arbitration Association (“"AAA™)
for arbitration in Pennsylvania under the November 1999 agreement, which demand is based on substantially the
same claims raised in the French lawsuit described above. The arbitration filed with the AAA in December 2006
remains pending, and is not affected by the French Supreme Court’s final ruling in our favor described above.

We previously entered into agreements with AST whereby ASI agreed to indemnify us against all costs,
liabilities, damages, expenses and judgments resulting from or arising out of the claims of AME, ABS and ABS’
insurer in the above matters. In January 2007, Dongbu Electronics (now known as Dongbu Hitek) (“Dongbu”),
successor in interest to ASI, acknowledged that it is the indemnifying party with respect to claims against us in the
now-ended French proceeding described above, and in this Arbitration matter, although Dongbu has subsequently
questioned the scope of their indemnity obligation. We continue to believe that Dongbu is legally obligated to
indemnify us for these claims and we are prepared to seek enforcement of their indemnification obligations.
Although we believe that indemnification is available and that we have meritorious defenses to the underlying
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claims, it is not possible to predict the outcome of this matter. If indemnification is not available to us, an adverse
decision in this matter could have a material adverse effect on our liguidity, results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows.

Ambkor Technology, Inc. v. Carsem (M} Sdn Bhd, Carsem Semiconductor Sdn Bhd, and Carsem Inc,

In November 2003, we filed a complaint against Carsem (M) Sdn Bhd, Carsem Semiconductor Sdn Bhd, and
Carsem Inc. (collectively “Carsem™) with the International Trade Commission (“ITC”) in Washington, D.C.,
alleging infringement of our United States Patent Nos. 6,433,277; 6,455,356 and 6,630,728 (collectively the
“Amkor Patents”) and seeking an exclusionary order barring the importation by Carsem of infringing products.
Subsequently, we filed a complaint in the Northern District of California, alleging infringement of the Amkor
Patents and seeking an injunction enjoining Carsem from further infringing the Amkor Patents, treble damages plus
interest, costs and attorney’s fees. We allege that by making, using, setling, offering for sale, or importing into the
U.S. the Carsem Dual and Quad Flat No-Lead Package, Carsem has infringed on one or more of cur Micro-
LeadFrame packaging technology claims in the Amkor Patents. The District Court action had been stayed pending
resolution of the ITC case.

The ITC Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”) conducted an evidentiary hearing during July and August of 2004
in Washington D.C. and issued an initial determination that Carsem infringed some of our patent claims relating to
our MicroLeadFrame package technology, that some of our 21 asserted patent claims are valid, and that all of our
asserted patent claims are enforceable. However, the ALJ did not find a statutory violation of the Tariff Act. We filed
a petition in November 2004 to have the ALJ’s ruling reviewed by the full International Trade Commission. The
ITC ordered a new claims construction related to various disputed claim terms and remanded the case to the ALJ for
further proceedings. On November 9, 2005, the ALJ issued an Initial Determination that Carsem infringed some of
our patent claims and ruled that Carsem violated Section 337 of the Tariff Act. The ITC subsequently authorized the
ALJ to reopen the record on certain discovery issues related to third party documents. On February 9, 2006, the ITC
ordered a delay in issuance of the Final Determination, pending resolution of the third party discovery issues. The
discovery issues are the subject of a subpoena enforcement action which is pending in the District Court for the
District of Columbia. The case we filed in 2003 in the Northern District of California remains stayed pending
completion of the ITC investigation.

Leases

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease
terms in excess of one year are:

(In thousands)

2008 & i e e e e $ 9,113
20000 L e e e e e e 8,377
1) L 7975
2 1 1 6,945
. 5,530
Thereafter . ... ... . e e e e 21,582
Total (net of minimum sublease income of $0.2 million). . ..................... $59,522

Rent expense amounted to $19.4 million, $16.7 million and $17.1 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.
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16. Related Party Transactions

We purchase leadframe inventory from Acqutek Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd. James 1. Kim our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, owns approximately 17.7% of Acqutek Semiconductor & Technology Co.,
Ltd. The purchases are arms length and on terms consistent with our non-related party vendors. During 2007, 2006
and 2005, purchases from Acqutek Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd. were $18.7 million, $16.7 million and
$11.8 million, respectively. Amounts due to Acqutek Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd. at December 31, 2007
and 2006, were $1.9 million and $1.3 million, respectively.

Mr. JooHo Kim is an employee of Amkor and a brother of Mr. James J. Kim, our Chatrman and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. JooHo Kim, together with his wife and children, own 96.1% of Jesung C&M, a company that
provides cafeteria services to Amkor Technology Korea, Inc. The services provided by Jesung C&M are subject to
competitive bid. During 2007, 2006 and 2003, purchases from Jesung C&M were $6.2 million, $6.5 million and
$6.5 million, respectively. Amounts due to Jesung C&M at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $0.5 million.

Previously, Mr. JooHo Kim owned with his children and other Kim Family members 58.11% of Anam
Information Technology, Inc., a company that provided computer hardware and software components to ATK.
M. JooHo Kim sold all of his shares in the fourth quarter of 2006, Other Kim Family members owned 48.3% as of
December 31, 2006. As of September 30, 2006, a decision was made to discontinue using Anam Information
Technology as a vendor. The services provided by Anam Information Technology were subject to competitive bid.
During 2007, there were no purchases from Anam Information Technology. Purchases from Anam Information
Technology during 2006 and 2005 were $0.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively. There were no amounts due to
Anam Information Technology at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

17. Business Segments, Customer Concentrations and Geographic Information

In accordance with SFAS No. 131 Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, we
have determined we had two reportable segments, packaging and test. Packaging and test are integral parts of the
process of manufacturing semiconductor devices and our customers will engage with us for both packaging and test
services, or just packaging or test services. The packaging process creates an electrical interconnect between the
semiconductor chip and the system board. In packaging, fabricated semiconductor wafers are separated into
individual chips. These chips are typically attached through wire bond or wafer bump technologies to a substrate or
leadframe and then encased in a protective material. In the case of an advanced wafer level package, the package is
assembled on the surface of a wafer. The packaged chips are then tested using sophisticated equipment to ensure
that each packaged chip meets its design and performance specifications.

The accounting policies for segment reporting are the same as those for our Consolidated Financial State-
ments. We evaluate our operating segments based on gross margin and gross property, plant and equipment. We do
not specifically identify and allocate total assets by operating segment. Summarized financial information
concerning reportable segments is shown in the following table. The “other” column reflects other corporate
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adjustments to net sales and gross profit and the property plant and equipment of our sales and corporate offices.

Packaging Test Other Total
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Netsales .. ... iy $2.430,387 $309,633 $ (575) $2,739,445

Grossprofit . . ...... ... ... ... ....... 577,841 103,411 621 681,873
Year Ended December 31, 2006

Netsales . .......................... $2,449461  $279921 $ (822) 32,728,560

Grossprofit . ....... ... ... . ... .. ... 586,381 89,531 (952) 674,960
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Netsales........................... $1,902,193  $i98,074 $§ (318) $2,099,949

Grossprofit . ....... ... . ... ........ 320,582 35,426 (237 355,771
Gross Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31,2007 ................... $2,573,142 $643,298 $119,281  $3,335,721

December 31,2006 ... ................ $2,421.171  8596,079 $112,449  $3,129,699
The following table presents net sales by country based on the location of our customer:

Net Sales
2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)

China (including Hong Kong). ... ................. $ 147,156 3 138255 $ 96,516
Japan. .. ... e 267,648 262,066 275,492
Korea ....... ... . 145,999 149,401 160,061
Singapore . ... ... e 650,037 573,072 308,457
Taiwan. ... .. e e 206,149 207,962 173,999
Other foreign countries. . .. ... ... . .............. 363,008 404,925 367,345

Total foreign countries . . ...................... 1,779,997 1,735,681 1,381,870
United States .. ... ..... e 959,448 992 879 718,079

Totalmetsales ........... ... coereiner... $2,739445  §2,728,560  $2,099,949

No customer exceeded 10% of consolidated net sales in 2007, 2006 or 2005.
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The following table presents property, plant and equipment, net, based on the physical location of the asset:

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)
China. . ... i i e e e $ 211,315 § 201,223 § 174,055
Japan. .. ... 18,462 23,302 27,586
Korea .. ... . .. i 576,666 559,083 576,383
Philippines. . ... ... . ... . .. L 262915 271,903 299,406
Singapore .. ... ... 105,804 107,267 59,246
TaIWAN. . ot ot e e et e e e e e 217,230 227,019 222,528
Other foreign countries. . .. ....... ... ... .. .. ..., - 156 166 242
Total foreign countries ... .......o.eeviunneen.. 1,392,548 1,389,963 1,359,446
United States . . .. ...t e e 62,563 53,640 60,026
Total property, plant and equipment, net .. ......... $1.455,111  $1,443,603  §1,419472

18. Acquisitions
Acquisitions of Unitive, Inc. and Unitive Semiconductor Taiwan Corporation

In 2004, we acquired 100% of the capital stock of Unitive, based in North Carolina and approximately 60% of
the capital stock of UST, a Taiwan-based venture owned by Unitive and variocus Taiwanese investors. In January
2006, we exercised an option to acquire an additional 39.6% of UST for $18.4 million in cash consideration, which
brings our combined ownership of UST to 99.6%. Unitive and UST are providers of wafer level technologies and
services for flip chip and wafer level packaging applications.

Both original transactions provided provisions for contingent, performance-based earn-outs which could
increase the value of the transactions. With respect to Unitive, the earn-cut lapsed with no additional consideration
being paid to the former owners. With respect to UST, the earn-out was based on the performance of that subsidiary
for the twelve month period ended January 31, 2007. In March 2007, we increased goodwill by $0.8 million for
additional consideration paid with respect to the UST earn-out provision. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we
reflect as a minority interest the 0.14% of UST which we do not own in our Consolidated Financial Statements,

19. Restructuring and Reduction in Force

During the second quarter of 2007, we commenced a phased transition of wafer level processing production
from our wafer bumping facility in North Carolina to our facility in Taiwan as part of our ongoing efforts to help our
customers shorten time-to-market and get closer to the upstream production sources. The North Carolina facility
will primarily focus on research and development activities after the transition is complete. We expect to complete
the transition of production to Taiwan by the second quarter of 2008. in April 2007, the specific details surrounding
the related reduction in force were communicated to the impacted employees at our North Carolina facility. The
costs associated with this activity are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (as amended). We recorded charges for termination benefits during 2007
of $0.9 million which were primarily included in cost of sales. The amount recorded in accrued expenses for
termination benefits was $0.5 million as of December 31, 2007. We currently anticipate that an additional
$0.1 million related to termination benefits will be charged primarily to cost of sales over the remaining
employment service period through the second quarter of 2008. We anticipate total termination benefits of
$1.0 million will be paid through the second quarter of 2008.
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We contract excess manufacturing labor force at one of our Japanese subsidiaries to one of our customers for
which we incur charges for wage and benefit costs in excess of the reimbursement from the customer. During 2007,
2006 and 2005, we recorded charges for costs in excess of the reimbursement from the customer of $2.3 million,
$0.7 million and $3.8 million, respectively, which is primarily included in cost of sales. Amounts due from our
customer at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $0.4 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

During the third and fourth quarter of 2006 we implemented an early voluntary retirement program with
special termination benefits to employees at our Korean subsidiary. We recorded a charge for the special
termination benefits of $5.4 million, including $4.7 million charged to cost of sales and $0.7 million charged
to selling, general and administrative expenses. All of these charges were paid as of December 31, 2006.

During 2005, we terminated the operations of Semisys, a Korean-based subsidiary which produced molds and
other equipment used in semiconductor packaging. We recorded a charge of $3.0 million related to this shut-down,
of which $2.4 million impacted gross profit and $0.6 million was recorded in selling, general and administrative
expenses. The charges were related to the write-down of assets and the accrual of severance and other exit costs. Al
severance benefits were paid as of December 31, 2005.

During the third and fourth quarter of 2005, we charged $4.0 million to selling, general and administrative
expenses associated with a reduction in force at our Chandler, Arizona corporate headquarters. All of these charges
were paid as of December 31, 2006.

20. Sale of Specialty Test Operations

In October 2005, we divested a specialty test operation based in Wichita, Kansas, which did not meet the
definition of a discontinued operation. The selling price was $8.2 million, which included a $6.9 million cash
payment at closing and a 5.0% note in the amount of $1.3 million due October 2011. A 15% discount of $0.4 mitlion
was recorded on the note at the time of sale which equates to an effective interest rate of 14.5%. We recognized a
pre-tax gain’ of approximately $4.4 million in connection with this sale. During the third quarter of 2007, we
recognized an additional gain of $1.7 million as a result of the receipt of payment on an earn-cut provision provided
in the asset purchase agreement.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the $1.3 million note receivable, reduced by the unamortized discount of
$0.3 million, is included in other assets.
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SCHEDULE 11 — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions
Balance at Charged
Beginning of to {a) Balance at
Period Expense Write-offs Other End of Period
(In thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2005 .. ... $ 5074 96 (223) _ $ 4947
Year ended December 31, 2006 . .. .. $ 4947 (2,584) (128) —_ $ 2,235
Year ended December 31, 2007 ... .. $ 2,235 (1,239) (320) — b 676
Deferred tax asset valuation
reserve:

Year ended December 31, 2005 . . ... $276,999 74,950 — 3 $351,952
Year ended December 31, 2006 ... .. $351,952 (18,437 (5,240) (192)  $328,083
Year ended December 31, 2007 ..... $328,083 25,408 (54,532 (7917 $291,042

(a) Column represents adjustments to the deferred tax asset vatuation allowance as a result of business acquisitions.
In addition, this column represents the sale of available for sale securities and stock option transactions in which
the valuation allowance is adjusted directly through stockholders’ equity. For the year ended December 31,
2007, this column also includes a $7.6 million reduction in the valuation allowance associated with the adoption

of FIN 48.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in our periodic reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information
is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure, based on the definition of
“disclosure controls and procedures™ in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any
disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily is required to apply its judgment
in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2007 and concluded those disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of that date.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed Lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and
procedures may deteriorate.

Management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal contro! over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007 based on the framework established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS0”). Based on the results of this
evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2007 based on criteria in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which
appears under Item 8.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the third quarter of 2007, we implemented several significant modules of SAP which is our new
enterprise resource planning (“ERP") system at our largest subsidiary. This completed another phase of a multi-year
program to implement a fully integrated suite of SAP application software on a company-wide basis. During the
third and fourth quarters of 2007, we finalized the design, documentation and testing of internal control processes
and procedures relating to the new system relative to our evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2007, The implementation of the ERP system at our largest subsidiary resulted in changes that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting
during the quarter ended December 31, 2007,

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item 10, with the exception of information relating to the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethicat Guidelines as disclosed below, is incorporated herein by reference from the material included
under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Executive Officers,” and “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934” in our definitive proxy statement (to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A) for our
2008 annual meeting of stockholders. -

Additionally, our Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Guidelines, Corporate Governance Guidelines, and
the charters of the Audit Committee, Nominating and Governance Committee and Compensation Commitiee are
available and maintained on our web site (http://www.amkor.com).

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference from the material included under
the captions “Executive Compensation,” “Comp Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” and “Report of
the Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation” in our definitive proxy statement (to be filed pursuant
to Regulation 14A) for our 2008 annual meeting of stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The information required by this Item 12, with the exception of the equity compensation plan information
presented below, is incorporated herein by reference to our Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
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The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2007:

(c)

(a) Number of Securities

Number of Remaining Available
Securities to he (b} for Future Issuance
Issued Upon Weighted-Average Under Equity
Exereise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plan
Qutstanding Qutstanding (Excluding Securities
Options Options Reflected in Column (a))

Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders 11,815,734 $10.18 6,587,539(1)(2)

Equity compensation plans not approved
by stockholders $17.35 380,000(3)

Total equity compensation plans 11,907,234 6,967,539

(1) As of December 31, 2007, a total of 91,666 shares were reserved for issuance under the 1998 Director Option
Plan until the plan was terminated in January 2008.

(2) As of December 31, 2007, a total of 6,495,873 shares were reserved for issuance under the 1998 Stock Plan
Until the plan was terminated in Janvary 2008.

(3) As of December 31, 2007, a total of 380,000 shares were reserved for issuance under the 2003 Nonstatutory
Inducement Grant Stock Plan, and there is a provision for an annual replenishment to bring the number of shares
of common stock reserved for issuance under the plan up to 300,000 as of each January 1. On January 1, 2008,
no additional shares were made available pursuant to the annual replenishment provision. On August 6, 2007,
the stockholders approved the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (*“The Plan”). The Plan became effective January 1,
2008 and replaces all existing plans. The Plan has a reserve of 17,000,000 shares available for issuance as of
January 1, 2008.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference from the material included under
the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,” and “Proposal One — Election of Directors” in our
definitive proxy statement {to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A) for our 2008 annua! meeting of stockholders.
Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the material included under

“Proposal Two — Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in our
definitive proxy statement (to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A) for our 2008 annual meeting of stockholders.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules ehvy

The financial statements and schedules filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed in the index
under Itemn 8.
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Exhibits
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24
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32
33
4.1
4.2

43
4.4

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

4.9

4.11

4.12

4.13

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2004, by and among Amkor Technology, Inc., Unitive, Inc.,
Centain of the Stockholders of Unitive, Inc., Certain Option Holders of Unitive, Inc., Onex American
Holdings II LLC as the Onex Stockholder Representative, David Rizzo as the MCNC Stockholder
Representative, Thomas Egolf as the TAT Stockholder Representative, Kenneth Donahue as the
Additional Indemnifying Stockholder Representative, and, with respect to Article VI1II and Article X
thereof only, U.S. Bank National Association.(15)

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004, by and among Amkor Technology, Inc., Unitive
Semiconductor Taiwan Corporation and Certain Shareholders of Unitive Semiconductor Taiwan
Corporation, along with Letter Agreement dated July 9, 2004 regarding Amendment to Stock Purchase
Agreement and Loan Agreement by and among Amkor Technology, Inc., Unitive Semiconductor Taiwan
Corporation and Sellers’ Representative on Behalf of each Seller.(15)

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of May 17, 2004 by and among Amkor Technology Singapore Pte. Lid.
and IBM Singapore Pte Ltd.(18)

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of May 17, 2004 by and among Amkor Assembly & Test (Shanghai)
Co., Lid. and IBM Interconnect Packaging Solutions (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.(18)

Sales Contract of Commodity Premises between Shanghai Waigaoqiao Free Trade Zone Xin Development
Co., Ltd. and Amkor Assembly & Test (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. dated May 7, 2004.(18)

Certificate of Incorporation.(1)

Certificate of Correction to Certificate of Incorporation.(4)

Restated Bylaws.(30)

Specimen Common Stock Certificate.(3)

Senior Subordinated Notes Indenture dated as of May 13, 1999 between the Registrant and State Street
Bank and Trust Company, including form of 10.5% Senior Subordinated Note Due 2009.(5)

Indenture dated as of February 20, 2001 for 9.25% Senior Notes due February 15, 2008.(6)

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of February 20, 2001 by and among Amkor Technology, Inc.,
Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Deutsche Banc Alex. Brown Inc.(6)

Indenture dated May 8, 2003, between Amkor Technology, Inc. and U.S. Bank N.A., relating to the
7.75% Senior Notes due May 15, 2013.(11)

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 8, 2003, between Amkor Technology, Inc. and Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc. and I.P. Morgan Securities, Inc.(13)

Indenture dated March 12, 2004, between Amkor Technology, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A_, relating to
the 7.125% Senior Notes due March 15, 2011.(17)

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 12, 2004 by and among Amkor Technology, Inc.,
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. relating to
the 7.125% Senior Notes due March 15, 2011,(17)

Indenture, dated November 18, 2005, by and between Amkor Technology, Inc. and U.S. National Bank
Association as Trustee, 6.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2013.(22)

Investor Rights Agreement, dated November 18, 2005, between Amkor Technology, Inc. and the Investors
named therein.(22) :

Indenture, dated May 26, 2006, among Amkor Technology, Inc., the Guarantors party thereto and U.S.
Bank National Association, relating to the 9.25% Senior Notes due 2016.(23)

Indenture, dated May 26, 2006, between Amkor Technology, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association,
relating to the 2.50% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011.(23)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2006, among Amkor Technology, Inc. (“Amkor”), Amkor
International Holdings (“AIH™), Amkor Technology Limited (“ATL”), Amkor Technology Philippines, Inc.
(“ATP”) and U.S. Bank National Association (“U.S. Bank™), as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of May 13,
1999, among Amkor and U.S. Bank (as successor to State Street Bank ‘and Trust Company), regarding
Amkor’s 10.5% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2009.(24)
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4.23

424
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10.1

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2006, among Amkor, AIH, ATL, ATP and U.S. Bank, as
Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2001, among Amkor and U.S. Bank (as successor to State
Street Bank and Trust Company), regarding Amkor’s 9.25% Senior Notes due 2008.(24)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2006, among Amkor, AIH, ATL, ATP and U.S. Bank, as
Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of May 8, 2003, among Amkor and U.S. Bank, regarding Amkor’s
7.75% Senior Notes due 2013.(24)

Svpplementa! Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2006, among Amkor, AIH, ATL, ATP and Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A_, as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of March 12, 2004, among Amkor and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A,
regarding Amkor’s 7.125% Senior Notes due 2011.(24)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2006, among Amkor, AIH, ATL, ATP and U.S. Bank as
Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of May 26, 2006, among Amkor and U.S. Bank, regarding Amkor’s
9.25% Senior Notes due 2016.(24}

Supplemental [ndenture, dated as of October 29, 2004, among Amkor Technology, Inc. (*Amkor’), Unitive,
Inc. (*“Unitive”™) and U.S. Bank National Association (“U.S. Bank™), as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of
May 13, 1999, among Amkor and U.S. Bank (as successor to State Street Bank and Trust Company),
regarding Amkor’s 10.5% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2009.(16)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 29, 2004, among Amkor, Unitive Electronics, Inc. (“Unitive
Electronics™) and U.S. Bank as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of May 13, 1999, among Amkor and U.S.
Bank (as successor to State Street Bank and Trust Company), regarding Amkor’s 10.5% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2009.(16)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 29, 2004, among Ambkor, Unitive and U.S. Bank, as Trustee, to
Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2001, among Amkor and U.S. Bank{as successor to State Street Bank
and Trust Company), regarding Amkor’s 9.25% Senior Notes due 2008.(16)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 29, 2004, among Amkor, Unitive Electronics and U.S. Bank,
as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2001, among Amkor and U.S. Bank (as successor to State
Street Bank and Trust Company), regarding Amkor’s 9.25% Senior Notes due 2008.(16)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 29, 2004, among Amkor, Unitive and U.S. Bank, as Trustee, to
Indenture, dated as of May 8, 2003, among Amkor and U.S. Bank, regarding Amkor’s 7.75% Senior Notes
due 2013.(16)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 29, 2004, among Amkor, Unitive Electronics and U.S. Bank
as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of May 8, 2003, among Amkor and U.S. Bank, regarding Amkor’s
7.75% Senior Notes due 2013.(16)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 29, 2004, among Amkor, Unitive and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.,
as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of March 12, 2004, among Amkor and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A_, regarding
Amkor’s 7.125% Senior Notes due 2011.(16)

Supplemenial Indenture, dated as of October 29, 2004, among Amkor, Unitive Electronics and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A., as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of March 12, 2004, among Amkor and Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A,, regarding Amkor’s 7.125% Senior Notes due 2011.(16)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 5, 2005, among Amkor, Amkor International Holdings, LLC
(“AIH"}, P-Four, LLC (“P-Four™), Amkor Technology Limited (“ATL"), Amkor/Anam Pilipinas, L.L.C.
(“AAP”) and U.S. Bank National Association (“U.S. Bank™), as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of May 13,
1999, among Amkor and U.S. Bank (as successor to State Street Bank and Trust Company), regarding
Amkor’s 10.5% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2009.(20)

Suppiemental Indenture, dated as of January 5, 2005, among Amkor, AlH, P-Four, ATL, AAP and U.S.
Bank, as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2001, among Amkor and U.S. Bank (as successor to
State Street Bank and Trust Company, regarding Amkor’s 9.25% Senior Notes due 2008.(20}
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 5, 2005, among Amkor, AIH, P-Four, ATL, AAP and U.S.
Bank, as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of May 8, 2003, among Amkor and U.S. Bank, regarding Amkor’s
7.75% Senior Notes due 2013.(20)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of lanuary. 5, 2005, among Amkor, AlH, P-Four, ATL, AAP and Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A., as Trustee, to Indenture, dated as of March 12, 2004, among Amkor and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A_, regarding Amkor’s 7.125% Senior Notes due 2011.(20)

Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and officers.(3)
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10.14
10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20
10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

1998 Stock Plan as amended and restated and form of agreement there under.(22)

Form of Tax Indemnification Agreement between Amkor Technology, Inc., Amkor Electronics, Inc. and
certain stockholders of Amkor Technology, Inc.(3)

Contract of Lease between Corinthian Commercial Corporation and Amkor/Anam Pilipinas Inc., dated
October 1, 1990.(})

Contract of Lease between Salcedo Sunvar Realty Corporation and Automated Microelectronics, Inc.,
dated May 6, 1994.(1)

Lease Contract between AAPI Realty Corporation and Amkor/Anam Advanced Packaging, Inc., dated
November 6, 1996.(1)

1998 Director Option Plan and form of agreement there under.(3)

1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.(3)

Share Sale and Purchase Agreement between the Registrant and Dongbu Corporation dated as of July 10,
2002.(8)

Shareholders Agreement between the Registrant, Dongbu Corporation, Dongbu Fire Insurance Co., Lid.,,
and Dongbu Life Insurance Co., Ltd. dated as of July 29, 2002.(8)

Amendment to Share Sale and Purchase Agreement and Shareholders Agreement the Registrant and
Dongbu Corporation dated as of September 27, 2002.(9)

Purchase Agreement, Amkor Technology, Inc. $425 million 7.75% Senior Notes Due May 15, 2013.(11)
2003 Nonstatutory Inducement Grant Stock Plan dated September 9, 2003.(12)

2007 Equity Incentive Plan.(28)

2007 Executive Incentive Bonus Plan(28)

Credit Facility Agreement, dated March 30, 2007, between Woori Bank and Amkor Technology Korea, Inc.
(29)

Additional Agreement, dated March 30, 2007, between Woori Bank and Amkor Technology Korea,
Inc.(29)

General Terms and Conditions for Bank Credit Transactions, dated March 30, 2007, between Woori Bank
and Amkor Technology Korea, Inc.(29)

Kun-Mortgage Agreement, dated March 30, 2007, between Woori Bank and Amkor Technology Korea,
Inc.(29) .

Kun-Guarantee, dated March 30, 2007, delivered by Amkor Technology, Inc. to Woori Bank.(29)

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2007, among Amkor
Technology, Inc. and its subsidiaries party thereto, the Lenders party to the Loan and Security Agreement
dated November 28, 2005 (as amended), and Bank of America, N.A. as administrative agent for the
Lenders.(29)

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of November 28, 2005, among Amkor Technology, Inc., Unitive,
Inc. and Unitive Electronics, Inc., as Borrowers, Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation (Western) as
Documentation Agent and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent.(21}

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of November 28, 2005 delivered by Amker Technology, Inc., Unitive, Inc,
and Unitive Electronics, Inc. to Bank of America as Administrative Agent.(21)

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of November 28, 2005, among Amkor Technology, Inc., Unitive, Inc. and
Unitive Electronics, Inc., Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent for the Senior Parties, and
Citicorp North America, Inc., as Administrative Agent for the Junior Parties and as Collateral Agent for the
Junior Parties.(21)

Syndicated Loan Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2005, among Amkor Technology Taiwan, Ltd., as
Borrower, the banks and banking institutions party thereto, Chinatrust Commercial Bank Co., L.td. and Ta
Chong Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., as Coordinating Arrangers, and Chinatrust Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.,
as Facility Agent and Security Agent.(21)

Letter of Guaranty, dated as of November 30, 2005, delivered by Amkor Technology, Inc. to Chinatrust
Commercial Bank, Ltd., as Facility Agent.(21)
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31.2
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Note Purchase Agreement between Amkor Technology, Inc. and the Investors named therein, dated
November 14, 2005.(22)

Voting Agreement by and among Amkor Technology, Inc. and the Investors named therein, dated
November 18, 20035.(22)

First Amendment to Loan and Secunity Agreement, dated as of May 5, 2006, among Amker Technology,
Inc. and its Subsidiaries party thereto, the Lenders party to the Loan and Security Agreement, and Bank of
America, N.A., as administrative agent for the Lenders.(24)

Guaranty Supplement, dated May 5, 2006, delivered by Amkor Technology, Inc.(24 )

Joinder Agreement, dated as of May 5, 2006, delivered by Amkor Technology, Inc., Guardian Assets, Inc.,
Unitive, Inc., Unitive Electronics, Inc. and the other Subsidiaries of the Company in favor of Citicorp North
America, Inc., as agent for the Secured Parties referred to therein.(24)

Limited Waiver of Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2006, among Amkor
Technology, Inc. and its Subsidiaries party thereto, the Lenders party thereto, and Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent.(25)

Mutual Release and Settlement Agreement, effective as of April 27, 2006, by and among Maxim Integrated
Products, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary Dallas Semiconductor, Inc., Sumitomo Bakelite Co., Ltd.,
Sumitomo Plastics America, Inc. and Amkor Technology, Inc., et al.(27)

Retirement Separation Agreement and Release dated December 22, 2005, between Amkor and John N.
Boruch.(22)

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Amkor Technology, Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Guidelines.(19)
Amkor Technology, Inc. Director Code of Ethics.(19)

List of subsidiaries of the Registrant. ~

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Certification of James J. Kim, Chief Executive Officer of Amkor Technology, Inc., Pursuant to Rule 13a —
14{a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Certification of Joanne Solomon, Chief Financial Officer of Amkor Technology, Inc., Pursuant to Rule
13a — 14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed October 6, 1997 (File
No. 333-37235).

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 6, 1997, as
amended on October 27, 1997 (File No. 333-37235).

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 6, 1997, as
amended on March 31, 1998 (File No. 333-37235).

{4} Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on April 8, 1998, as
amended on August 26, 1998 (File No. 333-496435).

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 17, 1999.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 15, 2001.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 14, 2001.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 14, 2002.

{(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 14, 2002.

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 27, 2003.

{(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 9, 2003.

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 3, 2003.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on July 10, 2003.
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(14) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 9, 2004.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 3, 2004.
(16) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 4, 2004.
(17) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 5, 2004.

(18) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 6, 2004.
(19) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 4, 2004.

(20) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 10, 2005.
{21} Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 2, 2005.
(22) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 16, 2006,
(23) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 31, 2006.

(24) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 11, 2006.

(25) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 29, 2006.
(26) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 8-K filed on July 7, 2006.

(27) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on October 6, 2006.
(28) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 10, 2007.

(29) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4, 2007.

(30) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 8, 2007.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed, on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. :

AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.,

By: /s/ James J. Kim

James J. Kim
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 25, 2008

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints James J. Kim and Joanne Solomon, and each of them, his attorneys-in-fact, and agents, each with the
power of substitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all
amendments to this Report on Form 10-K, and all documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority
to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully
to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and conforming all that said attorneys- -
in-fact and agents of any of them, or his or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/  James J. Kim Chief Executive Officer and Chairman February 25, 2008
James J. Kim
fs/ Joanne Solomon Corporate Vice President and Chief February 25, 2008
Joanne Solomon Financial Officer
/s/ _Roger A. Carolin Director February 25, 2008
Roger A. Carolin
/s/  Winston J. Churchill Director February 25, 2008
Winston J. Churchill '
/s/ John T. Kim Director February 25, 2008
John T. Kim
/s/  John F. Osborne Director February 25, 2008
John F. Osborne
/s/ Constantine N. Papadakis Director February 25, 2008
Constantine N. Papadakis
fs/ James W, Zug Director February 25, 2008
James W. Zug
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1900 South Price Road APR 0 g 2008

Chandler, Arizona 85286

April 7, 2008 Washington, DC 20549

To Our Stockholders:

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Amkor Technology, Inc. The Annual
Meeting will be held on Monday, May 5, 2008 at 10:00 a.m., at the Crowne Plaza Valley Forge Hotel, located at 260
Mall Blvd., King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406, telephone number (610) 265-7500.

The actions expected to be taken at the Annual Meeting are described in detail in the attached Proxy Statement
and Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

We also encourage you to read the Annual Report. It includes information about our company, as well as our
audited financial statements. A copy of our Annual Report was previously sent to you or is included with this Proxy
Statement.

Please use this opportunity to take part in the affairs of Amkor by voting on the business to come before this
meeting. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting in person, please complete, sign, date and return the
accompanying proxy in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope or submit your proxy by internet or telephone
to ensure that your shares are represented at the Annual Meeting. Returning the proxy does NOT deprive you
of your right to attend the meeting and to vote your shares in person for the matters to be acted upon at the meeting.

We look forward to seeing you at the Annual Meeting.

Sincerely,

James 1. Kim
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer




AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To be held on May 5, 2008

Dear Amkor Stockholder:

On Monday, May 5, 2008, Amkor Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation, will hold its 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders at the Crowne Plaza Valley Forge Hotel, located at 260 Mall Blvd., King of Prussia,
Pennsylvania 19406, telephone number (610) 265-7500. The meeting will begin at 10:00 a.m.

Only stockholders of record who held shares of Amkor common stock at the close of business on March 20,
2008 may vote at this meeting or any adjournments or postponements that may take place. A complete list of
stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for examination by the stockholders for any
purpose relating to the meeting at our principal executive offices at 1900 South Price Road, Chandler, Arizona for a
period of at least ten days prior to the meeting. The list also will be available at the Annual Meeting.

At the meeting stockholders will be asked to:
1. Elect the Board of Directors.
2. Ratify the appointment of our independent registered public' accounting firm for 2008.

3. Transact such other business properly presented at the meeting.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote in favor of the two proposals outlined in this proxy statement.

The approximate mailing date of this proxy statement and proxy card is April 7, 2008.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

N0 .74
Gil C. Tily :

Corporate Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

April 7, 2008
Chandler, Arizona

) YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

To assure your representation at the Annual Meeting, you are requested to complete, sign and date
the enclosed proxy as promptly as possible and return it in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope,
or submit your proxy by internet or telephone.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholders Meeting to
Be Held on May 5, 2008. The Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
and our Annual Report to Stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2007 are available at:
www.edocumentview.con/amkr




' AMKOR TECHNOLOGY, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT

INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by Amkor Technology, Inc.’s
Board of Directors. The proxies will be voted at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Monday, May 5,
2008, at 10:00 a.m., and at any adjournments or postponements that may take place.

The Annual Meeting will be held at the Crowne Plaza Valley Forge Hotel, located at 260 Mall Blvd., King of
Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406, telephone number (610) 265-7500. Our principal executive offices are located at
1900 South Price Road, Chandler, Arizona 85286, telephone number (480} 821-5000.

We intend to mail definitive copies of these proxy materials on or about April 7, 2008 to stockholders of record
who held our common stock at the close of business on March 20, 2008,

The following is important information in a question-and-answer format regarding the Annual Meeting and
this proxy statement.
Q: What may I vote on?
A: 1. The election of seven nominees to serve on our Board of Directors; and

2. The ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“‘PricewaterhouseCoopers™) as our

independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2008.

: How does the Board recommend I vote on the proposals?
A: The Board recommends a vote FOR each of the director nominees, and FOR the ratification of the
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2008.
Who is entitled to vote?

Stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 20, 2008 (the “Record Date™) are entitled to vote at
the Annual Meeting. Each stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on the
Record Date. As of the Record Date, 182,534,415 shares of Amkor’s common stock were issued and
outstanding.

> R

How,.do 1 vote?

z R

Registered holders may vote:
« In person at the Annual Meeting;

+ By mail by signing and dating each proxy card you receive and returning it in the postage-prepaid envelope;
or

+ By internet or telephone, by following the instructions on the proxy card.

If your shares are held by a bank, brokerage firm or other record holder, please refer to your proxy card or other
information provided to you for instructions on how 1o vote.

Q: How can I change my vote or revoke my proxy?
A

If you are a registered holder, you have the right to revoke your proxy and change your vote at any time before the
meeting by submitting a later-dated proxy by mail, internet or telephone or by mailing a written notice of
revocation to the attention of Amkor’s Secretary, Amkor Technology, Inc., 1900 South Price Road, Chandler,
Arizona 85286. If your shares are held by a bank, brokerage firm or other record holder, please contact that firm
or holder for instructions on how to change your vote or revoke your proxy.




Q:
A

Q:

Q

Q

What does it mean if I get more than one proxy card?

It means you hold shares registered in more than one account, Submit all proxies to ensure that all your shares
are voted.

What is a “quorum®?
3

A “quorum” is a majority of the outstanding shares. Shares may be present at the meeting or represented by
proxy. There must be a quorum for the meeting to be held and action to be validly taken, If you submit a
properly executed proxy, even if you abstain from voting, then your shares will be counted toward the presence
of a quorum. Abstentions are not counted in the taily of votes FOR or AGAINST a proposal. A withheld vote
is the same as an abstention. If a broker indicates on a proxy that it does not have discretionary authority to vote
certain shares on a particular matter (broker non-votes), those shares will not be counted as present or
represented for purposes of determining whether stockholder approval of that matter has been obtained but
will be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum.

Who can attend the Annual Meeting?

All stockholders as of the Record Date may attend. For stockholders of record, government-issued picture
identification will be required to enter the meeting. If your shares are held in street name, please bring proof of
share ownership with you to the Annual Meeting as well as your government-issued picture identification. A
copy of your brokerage account statement or an omnibus proxy (which you can get from your broker} will serve
as proof of share ownership. Individuals arriving at the meeting site will not be admitted unless we can verify
ownership as of the Record Date as described above or by some other means.

How will voting on any other business be conducted?

Although we do not know of any business to be considered at the 2008 Annual Meeting other than the
proposals described in this proxy statement, if any other business is properly presented at the Annual Meeting,
your proxy gives authority to James J. Kim, Amkor’s Chief Executive Officer, and Kenneth T. Joyce, Amkor’s
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Administrative Officer, to vote your shares on such matters at their
discretion.

How and when may I submit proposals for the 2009 Annual Meeting?

To have your proposal included in our proxy statement and form of proxy for the 2009 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, we must receive your written proposal no later than December 8, 2008. You may submit
proposals after this date for consideration at the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, but we are not required
to include any proposal submitted after this date in the proxy statement or proxy card.

If you submit a proposal for the 2009 Annual Meeting after January 7, 2009, the proxy for the 2009 Annual
Meeting may confer upon management authority to vote on your proposal at their discretion.

All proposals must, under law, be an appropriate subject for stockholder action and must be submitted in
writing to Amkor's Secretary, Amkor Technology, inc., 1900 South Price Road, Chandler, Arizona 85286.
You should also be aware of certain other requirements you must meet to have your proposal brought before
the 2009 Annual Meeting. These requirements are explained in Rule 14a-8 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

Who is soliciting proxies?

This solicitation of proxies is made by the Board of Directors. All related costs will be borne by Amkor.

We have retained the services of Georgeson Shareholder to aid in the distribution of Annual Meeting materials
to brokers, bank nominees and other institutional owners. We estimate we will pay Georgeson Shareholder a
fee of approximately $2,500 for such services,

Proxies may also be solicited by certain of Amkor’s officers and regular employees, without additional
compensation, in person or by telephone or facsimile.
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PROPOSAL ONE
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

There are seven incumbent candidates nominated for election to the Board of Directors (“Board of Directors”
or “Board”) this year. Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them for the
election of the seven nominees named below. Each nominee has consented to be named as a nominee in this proxy
statement and to serve as a director if elected. Should any nominee become unable or decline to serve as a director or
should additional persons be nominated at the meeting, the proxy holders intend to vote all proxies received by them
in such a manner as will assure the election of as many nominees identified below as possible (and, if additional
nominees have been designated by the Board to fill any vacancies, in such manner as to elect such additional
nominees). Our nominees for the election of directors include five independent directors, as defined in the
applicable rules for companies traded on Nasdaq. At the recommendation of our Nominating and Governance
Committee, the Board has selected the nominees to serve as directors for a one-year term until our next annual
meeting or until their successor is duly elected. We expect that each nominee will be able to serve as a director.

Required Vote

Directors are elected by a plurality of votes cast, so the seven candidates receiving the highest number of
affirmative votes cast will be elected as directors. Votes withheld and broker non-votes are not counted toward the
total votes cast in favor of a nominee.

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR the
election of each of the nominees for director below.
Nominees for the Board of Directors

The following table sets forth the names and the ages as of March 31, 2008 of our seven incumbent directors
who are being nominated for re-election to the Board of Directors.

Name Age Position

James L. Kim .. ... ... ... ... .. .. .. 72 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Roger A. Carolin(1)(2)(4) ........... 52  Director

Winston J. Churchill(3){(4} .. ......... 67  Director

JohnT.Kim .......... ... .. ...... 38  Director

John F. Osborne(H(2Y4) ............ 63  Director

Constantine N. Papadakis(2)(3)(4) .. ... 62  Director

James W. Zug{DY(3y4). ... ...... ... 67  Director

Notes

(1) Member of Audit Committee.
(2) Member of Compensation Committee.
(3) Member of Nominating and Governance Commitiee.

(4) Qualifies as “independent” under the definition set forth in the Nasdaq listing standards and U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) regulations, as determined by the Board of Directors.

Biographies of Nominees for the Board Of Directors

James J. Kim. James J. Kim, 72, has served as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since September
1997. Mr. Kim founded our predecessor, Amkor Electronics, Inc., in 1968 and served as its Chairman from 1978 to
April 1998. Mr. James J. Kim is the father of John T. Kim, a member of our Board.

Roger A. Carolin. Roger A. Carolin, 52, was elected to our Board of Directors in February 2006. Mr. Carolin
is currently a Venture Partner at SCP Partners, a multi-stage venture capital firm with over $800 million under
management that invests in technology-oriented companies. At SCP, Mr. Carolin works to identify attractive
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investment opportunities and assists portfolio companies in the areas of strategy development, operating man-
agement and intellectual property. Mr. Carolin co-founded CFM Technologies, Inc., a global manufacturer of
semiconductor process equipment, and served as its Chief Executive Officer for 10 years until the company was
acquired. Mr. Carolin formerly worked for Honeywell, Inc. and General Electric Co., where he developed test
equipment and advanced computer systems for on-board missile applications. Mr. Carolin holds a B.S. in Electrical
Engineering from Duke University and an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School.

Winston J. Churchill. 'Winston J. Churchill, 67, has been a director of Amkor since July 1998. Mr. Churchill
is the managing general partner of SCP Partners, a multi-stage venture capital firm with over $800 million under
management that invests in technology-oriented companies. Mr. Churchill is also Chairman of CIP Capital
Management, Inc., an SBA-licensed private equity fund. Previously, Mr. Churchill was a managing partner of
Bradford Associates, which managed private equity funds on behalf of Bessemer Securities Corporation and
Bessemer Trust Company. From 1967 to 1983, Mr. Churchill practiced law at the Philadelphia firm of Saul Ewing,
LLP, where he served as Chairman of the Banking and Financial Institutions Department, Chairman of the Finance
Committee and was a member of the Executive Committee. Mr. Churchill is a director of Griffin Land and
Nurseries, Inc., [nnovative Solutions and Support, Inc. and of various SCP portfolic companies. In addition, he
serves as a director on the boards of a number of charities and as a trustee of educational institutions including
Fordham University, Georgetown University, Immaculata University, the Gesu School and the Young Scholars
Charter School. From 1989 to 1993, Mr. Churchill served as Chairman of the Finance Committee of the
Pennsylvania Public School Employees’ Retirement System.,

John T. Kim. John T. Kim, 38, has been a director of Amkor since August 2005. Mr. Kim served in various
capacities at Amkor between 1992 and 2005, as an Amkor employee and as an employee of our predecessor, Amkor
Electronics, Inc,, including as Director of Investor Relations, Director of Corporate Development and as Director of
Procurement. Mr. Kim resigned as an Amkor employee when he was elected to our Board of Directors. Mr. John T.
Kim is the son of James J. Kim, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman.

John F. Osborne. John F. Osborne, 63, has been a director of Amkor since August 2007. Since January 1998,
Mr. Osborne has been President of Competitive Customer Support, an advisor to companies that manufacture integrated
circuits or supply materials, equipment and services to the microelectronics industry, From 1988 to 1996, Mr. Osborne
was a member of the executive staff of Larn Research, a leading equipment supplier to the integrated circuit industry. At
Lam, Mr. Osborne held the positions of Vice President of Strategic Development, Vice President of Quality and Vice
President of Customer Support. Prior to joining Lam, Mr. Osborne held management positions at both Motorola, Inc.
and Royal Philips Electronics from 1967 to 1985. Mr. Osbormne serves on the board of directors of Electroglas, Inc. and
the Strategic Advisory Board of DuPont Electronic Techinologies. Mr. Osborne holds a degree in Metallurgical
Engineering from the Colorado School of Mines.

Constantine N. Papadakis. Constantine N. Papadakis, 62, has been a director of Amkor since August 2005.
Dr. Papadakis is President of Drexel University, a position he has held since 1995. From 1986 to 1995, Dr. Papadakis
was Dean of the College of Engineering at the University of Cincinnati, and from 1984 to 1986 he was Professor and
Head of the Civil Engineering Department of Colorado State University. Prior to returning to academia,
Dr. Papadakis served as Vice President of Tetra Tech Inc., a Honeywell subsidiary, as Vice President of STS
Consultants, Ltd., and at several engineering positions with Bechtel Power Corporation. He presently serves on the
board of directors of Aqua America, CDI Corp, Mace Security-International, [nc., Met-Pro Corporation, the
Philadelphia Stock Exchange, and various charitable and civic organizations.

James W, Zug. James W, Zug, 67, has been a director of Amkor since Janunary 2003. Mr. Zug retired from
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2000 following a 36-year career at PricewaterhouseCoopers and Coopers & Lybrand, both
public accounting firms. From 1998 until his retirement, Mr. Zug was Global Leader — Global Deployment for
PricewaterhouseCoopers. From 1993 to 1998, Mr. Zug was Managing Director International for Coopers & Lybrand. He
also served as the audit partner for a number of public companies over his career. PricewaterhouseCoopers is Amkor’s
independent registered public accounting firm; however, Mr. Zug was not involved with servicing Amkor during his
tenure at PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Zug serves on the board of directors of Allianz Funds, the Brandywine Group of
mutual funds and Teleflex, Inc. Mr. Zug served on the board of directors of SPS Technologies, Inc. and Stackpole Ltd.
prior 10 the sale of both of these companies in 2003.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board and Committee Meetings

The Board of Directors held ten meetings and acted by unanimous written consent on four occasions during
2007. Each director attended at least 75 percent of all Board of Directors and applicable committee meetings.

The Board has established an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Nominating and Gov-
ernance Committee. All Committee members are appointed by the Board of Directors.

Audit Committee

We have a separately-designated Audit Committee established in accordance with Section 3(a){58)(A) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Audit Committee is comprised of Messrs. Zug, Carolin and
Osborne. Our Board of Directors has determined that each of Messrs. Zug, Carolin and Osborne meets the
independence and financial sophistication requirements set forth in the Nasdaq listing standards and SEC
regulations. In addition, the Board has determined that each of Messrs, Zug, Carolin and Osborne qualifies as
an “audit committee financial expert” as defined in SEC regulations.

Among its responsibilities, the Audit Committee:

« pre-approves all audit and non-audit services provided to Amkor by Amkor’s independent registered public
accounting firm;

» has sole authority for overseeing the work of the independent registered public accounting firm;

* reviews and provides guidance on the external audit and Amkor’s relationship with its independent
registered public accounting firm;

« reviews and discusses with management and the independent registered public accounting firm the contents
of periodic reports filed with the SEC and Amkor’s earnings releases;

» reviews and approves any related party transactions;

« discusses with management and internal audit representatives the activities, organizational structure and
qualifications of our internal audit function;

* reviews any reports by management or our internal auditors regarding the effectiveness of, or any
deficiencies in, the design or operation of internal controls and any fraud that involves management or
other employees who have a significant role in our internal controls;

» oversees compliance with SEC requirements for the disclosure of the services provided by our independent
registered public accounting firm and the Audit Committee’s members, member qualifications and activities;

s reviews any legal matters that the general counsel determines could have a significant impact on our
financial statements;

+ provides a review of our policies and practices with respect to financial risk management;
« institutes special investigations as the Audit Committee determines to be appropriate and necessary; and

« oversees procedures for the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding
accounting, internal controls or audit matters.

The Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee, a copy of which is available on
our website at hip:/fwww.amkor.com. The Audit Committee met seven times in 2007 apart from regular meetings
with the entire Board, and acted by unanimous written consent on one occasion. In executing its responsibilities,
Audit Committee members regularly communicate with our management and independent registered public
accounting firm.




Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is comprised of Dr. Papadakis and Messrs. Carolin and Osborne. The
Compensation Committee’s duties include:

+ annually reviewing and approving the compensation policy for our executive officers and directors;

* reviewing and approving the forms of compensation to be provided to our executive officers, and reviewing,
approving and making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the general compensation
goals, guidelines and bonus criteria for our employees;

* administering and interpreting the terms and conditions of all current and future equity incentive plans;

+ reviewing and making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding other plans that provide for
compensation to our employees, directors and consultants;

 reviewing and approving any material amendments to our 431(k) plan;
» preparing and providing a report for inclusion in our annual proxy statement; and
* authorizing the repurchase of shares from terminated employees.

During 2007, the Compensation Committee met ten times apart from regular meetings with the entire Board of
Directors. The Board has adopted a written charter for the Compensation Committee, a copy of which is available
on our website at htip:/Awww.amkor.com.

Nominating and Governance Committee

The Nominating and Governance Committee is comprised of Mr. Churchill, Dr. Papadakis and Mr. Zug. The
Nominating and Governance Committee, among its other duties:

*» evaluates the current composition, organization and govemance of the Board of Directors and its Com-
mittees and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors based on that evaluation;

* periodically assesses desired Board member qualifications, expertise and characteristics for potential Board
members, and evaluates and proposes nominees to the Board of Directors based on those criteria;

* develops policies and procedures regarding the review and recommendatton of nominees for director;
¢ oversees the Board of Directors’ performance evaluation process;

* evaluates and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning the appointment of directors to
Board Committees, the selection of Committee chairpersons, and the proposal of a slate of nominees for
election to the Board of Directors;

* evaluates and recommends termination of individual Board members in accordance with our Corporate
Governance Guidelines;

* periodically reviews and re-examines the Nominating and Governance Committee's Charter and proposes
changes to the Board of Directors; and

» develops and recommends Corporate Governance Guidelines for the Board of Directors, and periodically
reviews these guidelines as well as our corporate governance practices and procedures,

The Board has adopted a written charter for the Nominating and Governance Committee, which is available on
our website at attp://www.amkorcom, The Nominating and Governance Committee met ten times during 2007 apart
from regular meetings with the Board.

The Nominating and Governance Committee determines the required selection criteria and qualifications of
director nominees based upon the needs of our company at the time nominees are considered. The Nominating and
Governance Committee considers factors including character, judgment, independence, age, expertise, diversity of
experience, length of service and other commitments.




The Nominating and Governance Commitiee will consider the above factors for nominees identified by the
Nominating and Governance Committee. The Nominating and Governance Committee uses the same process for
evaluating all nominees, regardless of the original source of nomination. The Nominating and Governance
Committee does not currently use the services of any third party search firm to assist in the identification or
evaluation of Board member candidates. The Nominating and Governance Committee may, however, usc such
services in the future as it deems necessary or appropriate.

It is the policy of the Nominating and Governance Committee to consider both recommendations and
nominations from stockholders for candidates to the Board of Directors. Stockholders wishing to recommend a
candidate for consideration by the Nominating and Governance Committee for election to the Board of Directors
can do so by writing to our Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices. Stockholders shall give such
candidate’s name, home and business contact information, detailed biographical data and qualifications, infor-
mation regarding any relationships between the candidate and Amkor within the last three years, written indication
of the candidate’s willingness to serve if elected, and evidence of the nominating person’s ownership of Amkor
stock. Nominations for consideration at the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must be received by our
Corporate Secretary no later than December 8, 2008.

Director Independence

T'he Board of Directors has determined that each of Messrs. Carolin, Churchilt, Osborne, Papadakis and Zug is
independent under the Nasdaq listing standards and SEC rules. In reaching a determination that Mr. Churchill is
independent under the Nasdaq listing standards and SEC rules, the Board of Directors considered certain
relationships between entities affiliated with Mr. Churchill and entities affiliated with James J. Kim. These
relationships include transactions, investments or partnerships in which Mr. Churchill and Mr. Kim, or entities
affiliated with them, have a direct or indirect financial interest. None of these relationships involved Amkor. The
Board determined that Mr. Churchill satisfies the independence requirements set forth by both Nasdaq and the SEC.

Communications with the Board of Directors

Although we do not currently have a formal policy regarding communications with the Board of Directors,
stockholders may communicate with the Board of Directors by writing to us at Amkor Technology, Inc.,
Attn: Corporate Secretary, 1900 South Price Road, Chandler, Arizona 85286. Stockholders who would like their
submission directed to a particular Board member may so specify, and the communication will be forwarded, as
appropriate.

Corporate Governance Guidelines and Codes of Ethics

Our Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines, a Code of Business Conduct and Ethical Guidelines
which applies to all of our officers and employees worldwide, and a separate Director Code of Ethics which applies
to our directors. These documents are available on our website under the heading “Corporate Governance™ at
http:/fwww.amkor.com.

Executive Sessions

Consistent with our Corporate Governance Guidelines, the non-employee directors of the Board regularly hold
executive sessions. The Audit Committee, in accordance with its charter, meets separately with our Chief Financial
Officer throughout the year to review our financial affairs, and meets separately in sessions with the independent auditors
and internal auditors at such times the Committee deems appropriate to fulfill its responsibilities under the charter. The
Nominating and Governance and Compensation Committees also meet in executive session as deemed appropriate.

Annual Meeting Attendance

All directors are encouraged, but not required, to attend our Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Six of our
incumbent directors attended the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Related Party Transactions

As of February 29, 2008, Mr. James J. Kim and members of his immediate family and related trusts
beneficially owned approximately 44.59% of our outstanding common stock.

In November 2005, we sold $100.0 million of our 6.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2013 in a private
placement to James J. Kim, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and certain Kim family members. The full amount
of the notes remains outstanding and the aggregate amount of interest paid to Mr. Kim and his family members in
respect of these notes was $6.3 million in 2007.

We purchase leadframe inventory from Acquiek Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd. James J. Kim, our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, owns approximately 17.7% of Acqutek Semiconductor & Technology Co.,
Ltd. The purchases are arms length and on terms consistent with our non-related party vendors. During 2007,
purchases from Acqutek Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd. were $18.7 million. Amounts due to Acquiek
Semiconductor & Technology Co., Ltd, at December 31, 2007 were $1.9 million,

Mr. JooHo Kim is an employee of Amkor and a brother of Mr. James J. Kim, our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. JooHo Kim, together with his wife and children, own 96.1% of Jesung C&M, a company that
provides cafeteria services to Amkor Technology Korea, Inc. The services provided by Jesung C&M are subject to
competitive bid. During 2007, purchases from Jesung C&M were $6.2 million. Amounts due to Jesung C&M at
December 31, 2007 were $0.5 million.

Review and Approval of Related Party Transactions

We review all relationships and transactions in which we and our directors, executive officers or their
immediate family members are participants, to determine whether such persons have a direct or indirect material
interest. Management is primarily responsible for the development and implementation of processes and controls to
obtain information.from the directors and executive officers with respect to related party transactions and for then
determining, based on the facts and circumstances, whether we or a related party have a direct or indirect material
interest in the transaction. As required under SEC rules, transactions that are determined to be directly or indirectly .
material to us or a related party are disclosed in our proxy statement. In addition, pursuant to the Audit Commiitee
Charter, the Audit Committee reviews and approves any related party transaction that is required to be disclosed. In
the course of its review and approval of a disclosable related party transaction, the Audit Committee considers:

« the nature of the related party’s interest in the transaction;
« the material terms of the transaction, including, without limitation, the amount and type of transaction;
* the importance of the transaction to the related party;

+ whether the transaction would impair the judgment of a director or executive officer to act in our best
interest; and

« any other matters the committee deems appropriate.

Any member of the Audit Committee who is a related party with respect to a transaction under review may not
participate in the deliberations or vote respecting approval of the transaction, provided, however, that such director may
be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the committee that considers the transaction. -

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During 2007, the Compensation Commiitee of our Board of Directors consisted of Dr. Papadakis, Messrs. Car-
olin and Osbome and our former director Mr. Hinckley, who did not stand for re-election in August of 2007.
Mr. Osborne replaced Mr. Hinckley on the Compensation Committee in August 2007. No member of the
Compensation Committee was an officer or employee of Amkor or any of Amkor’s subsidiaries during 2007,
or had any relationship requiring disclosure under SEC regulations. None of Amkor’s Compensation Committee
members or executive officers has served on the board of directors or on the compensation committee of any other
entity one of whose executive officers served on our Board of Directors or on our Compensation Committee.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Annual Retainer and Meeting Fees

We do not compensate directors who are also employees or officers of our company for their services as
directors. During 2007, non-employee directors received an annual retainer, which is paid quarterly, and Board and
committee meeting fees. The cash compensation paid to our non-employee Board members in 2007 is set forth in
the following table.

Annual Retainer for Board Members(1) . . ... ... oo $35,000
Additional Annual Retainer for Committee Chairs;
AUdit COMMIEE © « v v e et e e et s e ettt aee et e e e asa s 10,000
Compensation COMMILIEE . . .. ..ot hti it 5,000
Nominating and Governance COMMItEE. . ... ... oot 5,000
Fee per Regularly Scheduled Board and Committee Meeting .. ........oovvnvnn. 2,000
Telephonic Board or Committee Meetings:
Up 1o 30 MINUEES(2) .. oo i ie e 500
Between 30 Minntes and one hour{2) . . .. ..o 1,000
Longer than one hour(2} ... ... ... i 2,000

Other Fees(3) .. ittt e 500 - 2,000

Notes
(1) Effective as of February 5, 2008, the annual retainer for Board members was increased to $50,000.

(2) Effective February 5, 2008, the fee for telephonic Board and committee meetings was changed to $1,000 per
meeting, without regard to the length of the meeting.

(3) During 2007, the members of the Audit Committee received a fee of $500 for review of each Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q and a fee of $2,000 for review of our Annual Report on Form 10-K. Effective February 5, 2008,
these fees have been eliminated.

In addition to the retainer and meeting fees, we also reimburse non-employee directors for travel and other
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in attending Board and Committee meetings.

Equity Compensation

Each non-employee director received, upon re-election to the Board of Directors at our 2007 Annual Meeting,
options to purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock under the terms of our 1998 Director Stock Plan, which was
initially adopted by our Board of Directors in January 1998 (the #1998 Director Stock Plan™). The director option
grants are automatic and non-discretionary. The 1998 Director Stock Plan provides for an initial grant of options to
purchase 20,000 shares of our common stock to each new non-employee director when such individual first
becomes a director. In addition, each non-employee director is automatically granted an additional option to
purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock when the director is re-elected to the Board of Directors by our
stockholders, provided that the director has served on our Board for at least six consecutive months prior to his re-
election.

Director option grants have a term of ten years and vest in three equal installments on the anniversary dates of
the date of grant. Subject to certain customary exceptions, unvested and unexercised vested options are forfeited if a
director ceases to be a member of the Board of Directors. In the event of a merger or sale of all or substantially all of
our assets, the acquiring entity or corporation may either assume all outstanding options or may substitute
equivalent options. Following an assumption or substitution, if the director is terminated, other than upon a
voluntary resignation, any assumed or substituted options will vest and become exercisable in full. If the acquiring
entity does not either assume all of the outstanding options or substitute an equivalent option, each option issued
will immediately vest and become exercisable in full. The 1998 Director Stock Plan terminated in January 2008,
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In August 2007, the Stockholders approved the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2007 Equity Plan™). The 2007
Equity Plan was effective as of January 1, 2008, and contains terms substantially similar to the 1998 Director Stock
Plan with respect to grants to non-employee directors. Future grants to non-employee directors will be granted
under the 2007 Equity Plan. In February 2008, the Board approved an increase in the annual non-discretionary grant
to non-employee directors. Effective with the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, each non-employee director
will automatically be granted an additional option to purchase 20,000 shares of our common stock when the director
is re-elected to the Board of Directors by our stockholders.

Summary Director Compensation Table for 2007

The following table shows compensation information for our non-employee directors for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Change in
Pension
Value and
Fees Non-Equity Nonqualified
Earned Incentive Deferred
or Paid Stock Option Plan Compensation All Other
Name in Cash Awards Awards(2) Compensation Earnings Compensation Total
Roger A, Carolin ... ..... $ 765001y — 52,788(3(4)(5) — — — $129,288
Winston J. Churchiil . . .. .. 78.500 —  43,104(3)(5) _ — — 121,604
Gregory K. Hinckley. .. ... 139,750(1y — — — — — 139,750
JohnT. Kim............ 54,500 —  5041003)(5) — — _ 104,910
John F. Osborne . ... ..... 36,0001y —  21,386(3) — — — 57,386
Constantine N. Papadakis .. 168,000(1) —  50,410(3)(5) — — — 218,410

James W.Zng . ......... 184,000(1) —  43,104(3)(5) — — — 227,103

Notes

(1) Includes fees that were earned during the year ended December 31, 2007, but paid in the current year as follows:
Mr. Carolin — $2,000; Mr. Osborne — $2,000; and Dr. Papadakis — $2,000. Also includes fees earned by the
directors for service on special committees of the Board during 2007 as follows: Dr. Papadakis — $90,000;
Mr, Zug — $90,000 and Mr. Hinckley — $90,000.

(2) The amounts in the Option Awards column reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement
reporting purposes for the year ended December 31, 2007, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123(R) Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123(R)”), and may include amounts
from awards granted in and prior to 2007. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of
estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. Assumptions used in the calculation of these
amounts are included in Note 2 to ouwr Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,
2007, included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2008.

(3) Under the director compensation program, non-employee directors received an annual grant of 10,000 stock
options upon re-election. For 2007, stock options were granted on August 6, 2007 with an exercise price of
$10.97, the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant. The fair value of each of these annual
director grants was $79,725 or $7.97 per share. One-third (1/3) of the options become exercisable on each of the
first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.

{4) Upon initial election to the Board, directors are granted options to purchase 20,000 shares of our common stock.
Mr. Osborne was granted, in connection with his election to our Board of Directors on August 6, 2007, options
to purchase 20,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $10.97, the closing price of our common
stock on the date of grant. The fair value of this initial director grant was $159,450, or $7.97 per share. One-third
of the options granted become exercisable on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.

(5) Outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2007 for Amkor’s directors are as follows: Mr. Churchill —
85,000; Mr. Kim — 40,000; Mr. Carolin — 40,000; Dr. Papadakis — 40,000; Mr. Osbome — 20,000, and
Mr. Zug - 63,333. None of our directors hold any other stock awards.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The name, age, position and a brief account of the business experience of our Chief Executive Officer and each
of our other executive officers as of March 1, 2008 is set forth below.

Name Age Position

James L Kim. .. ... 72 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Kenneth T. Joyce. ... ......covvninn 60 Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Administrative Officer

Joanne Solomon .. ........ ... ... 42 Corporate Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

KyuHyun Kim. . . ....... ... ... 59  President, Amkor Technology Korea and Head of Worldwide
Manufacturing Operations

James M. Fusaro . ................. 45  Corporate Vice President, Wire Bond Products

GIC.Tily ........... ...t 54  Corporate Vice President and General Counsel

James J. Kim. For a brief biography on Mr. Kim, please see “Proposal One — Election of Directors.”

Kenneth T. Joyce. Kenneth T. Joyce, 60, was appointed to the position of Chief Operating Officer in
February 2008. Mr. Joyce also serves as our Executive Vice President (a position he assumed in 1999) and Chief
Administrative Officer (a position he assumed in November 2007). Prior to his appointment as Chief Administrative
Officer, Mr. Joyce had served as Amkor’s Chief Financial Officer since July 1999. Mr. Joyce began his accounting
career in 1971 at KPMG Peat Marwick, and is a certified public accountant. Mr. Joyce earned a B.S. in Accounting
from Saint Joseph’s University and an M.B.A. in Finance from Drexel University.

Joanne Solomon. Joanne Solomon, 42, was appeinted Corporate Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
in November 2007. Prior to assuming her current position, Ms. Solomon served as our Senior Vice President of
Finance and Corporate Controller since 2006. Ms. Solomon joined Amkor in 2000 and has held a number of finance
and accounting positions, including Senior Vice President Finance and Treasurer, Vice President Finance and
Business Assurance, Vice President Financial Planning and Analysis, and Senior Director Reporting and Analysis.
Ms. Solomon also worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers for 10 years, and is a certified public accountant.
Ms. Solomon holds a Bachelor's degree in Business and Administration from Drexel University and an
M.B.A. in International Management from the Thunderbird School of Global Management.

KyuHyun Kim. KyuHyun Kim, 59, has served as Head of Amkor's Worldwide Manufacturing Operations
since 2006 and as President of Amkor Technology Korea, Inc. since 2000. Prior to joining Amkor, Mr. Kim served
in various positions at Anam Semiconductor, Inc. and its affiliates, including as President of Anam Semiconductor,
Inc., President of the Chief Executive Office of the Anam Group, and Manager of Finance and Accounting of Anam
Industrial Ltd. Mr, Kim ecarned a Bachelor of Commerce degree in International Trade from Myung-JI University.
Mr. KyuHyun Kim is not related to James J. Kim, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

James M, Fusaro. James M, Fusaro, 45, has served as our Corporate Vice President of Wire Bond Products
since February 2005. Prior to assuming his current position, Mr. Fusaro served as Amkor’s Senior Vice President
and General Manager of Amkor’s Japan operations from May 2002. Mr. Fusaro joined Amkor in 1997 and has
served as Amkor’s Vice President of Chip Scale Products and Senior Vice President of Laminate Products. Prior to
joining Amkor, Mr. Fusaro was a Senior Principle Engineer at Motorola Semiconductor Products Sector. Mr. Fusaro
also spent nine years working in the Aerospace sector, working at United Technologies, Pratt & Whitney and Allied
Signal-Garrent Auxiliary Power Division. Mr. Fusaro earned a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering at Arizona State
University and an M.S. in Mechanical Engineering from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute,

Gil C. Tily. Gil C. Tily, 54, has served as Corporate Vice President and General Counsel since he joined
Amkor in June 2007, Prior to joining Amkor, Mr. Tily was a partner in the law firm of Dechert LLP where he worked
for 28 years. Mr. Tily holds an A.B. in Politics from Princeton University and a J.D. from the University of
Pittsburgh School of Law.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The primary objectives of our compensation program are to attract personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility, to provide incentives for such persons to perform to the best of their abilities, and to promote the
success of our business. The subcontracted semiconductor packaging and test market is very competitive,
To effectively compete and succeed in this market, we need to ensure that we have key senior management
and technical personnel with the talent, leadership and commitment needed to operate our business, create new
technologies, anticipate and effectively respond to new challenges, and to make and execute difficult decisions,

These objectives guide our Chief Executive Officer as he seeks to design pay packages with an appropriate
mix of fixed and variable compensation and thereby enable Amkor to recruit and motivate key executives while
maintaining a reasonable cost structure relative to our competitors. The Compensation Committee evaloates the
compensation packages, as presented by the Chief Executive Officer, based on the foregoing objectives. The
Compensation Committee retained an outside compensation consultant to assist the Compensation Committee
in establishing competitive compensation packages for 2007. The compensation consultant reports to the
Compensation Committee and provides it with compensation and peer group data, among other data points. Our
2007 compensation program contains standard elements such as base salary, performance-based bonus
opportunities and equity awards. As part of our effort to respond as necessary and appropriate to rapid
changes within our industry, we have placed increasing emphasis on variable pay for our more senior level
executives, This practice ensures that our most senior level executives are held accountable to stockholders for
our operational and financial performance.

It is the philosophy of the Chief Executive Officer that annual equity grants are of limited usefulness as a key
element of compensation for our executives because of the highly cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry and
the volatility of our stock. As such, it is the Chief Executive Officer’s view that management and the Compensation
Committee must have the flexibility to determine the appropriate executive compensation structure, 1o allow for a
proper mix of cash, equity and other incentives, as market conditions and the cyclicality of the industry dictate over
time. As a result, the total cash compensation component (base salary plus bonus) represents a greater portion than
the equity component in our total executive compensation structure.

The Compensation Committee annually reviews and approves the total compensation for our executive
officers and recommends to the independent members of our Board of Directors the compensation policy and forms
of compensation to be received by our executive officers. In setting our executive officers’ overall compensation,
the Compensation Committee considers a variety of factors related to Amkor’s performance, including (i) gross
profit (“Gross Profit”} as reported in our consolidated financial statements in our annual report on Form 10-K,
(i1) pre-tax income before any one-time items and refinancing charges (“'Pre-Tax Income”), and (iii) individual
performance, as measured by the Compensation Committee based on a subjective review by the Chief Executive
Officer of each executive’s performance, Other considerations include Amkor’s business objectives, our fiduciary
and corporate responsibilities, competitive practices and trends, and regulatory requirements.

All members of the Compensation Committee are independent directors in accordance with Nasdag, SEC and
Internal Revenue Code rules. The Compensation Committee operates under a written charter that has been approved
by the Board of Directors.

Benchmarking

Our principal direct competitors are located outside of the United States and much of their executive
compensation data is not readily available as a source for comparative purposes. In 2007, the Compensation
Committee retained an independent compensation consultant to provide market information to the Committee in
connection with the Committee’s review of executive compensation. As part of its services, the compensation

12




consultant assisted the Committee in identifying other peer companies from our industry for 2007 and surveyed and
compiled compensation data from publicly filed documents for the following companies:

Agere Systems Inc. International Rectifier Corp. National Semiconductor Corp.
Altera Corporation Jabil Circuit Inc, Nvidia Corp.

Analog Devices KLA-Tencor Corp. Plexus Corp.

Awmnel Corp. Lam Research Corp. Sanmina-SCI Corp.
Benchmark Electronics Inc. 181 Logic Corp. Solectron Corp.

Broadcom Corp. Maxim Integrated Products Spansion Inc.

Celestica Inc. Micron Technology Inc. STATS ChipPAC Ltd.
Flextronics International Molex Inc. Xilinx Inc.

The Compensation Committee considered the data from the peer companies at a macro level as part of its
determination of whether the overall level of compensation for each of our executives was reasonable in light of
market conditions. The Compensation Committee did not use the data to establish compensation at a particular
benchmark or percentile level.

Our Compensation Program Rewards Individual and Company Performance

Our compensation program is designed to reward high levels of performance at a company and individual
level. Qur key executive incentive compensation components currently consist of cash bonuses and stock options,
both of which are designed to reward our company-wide performance and superior individual performance. In
addition, given the volatility of our industry and the impact that volatility has on our variable pay, we also strive to
provide competitive base salaries in order to ensure a baseline level of stable income, and health and welfare
benefits in order to promote the well-being of our executives.

Our Chief Executive Officer reviews the performance of each of his direct reports on an ongoing basis. Based
on this ongoing assessment of performance, our Chief Executive Officer makes recommendations to the Com-
pensation Committee regarding the compensation of executive officers. With the exception of the Korean-based
severance benefit provided to Mr. KyuHyun Kim, as described in the “Severance Benefits” section below, we have
not entered into, and generally do not enter into, individual employment, severance or change-in-control agree-
ments with any of our named executive officers. This gives us the flexibility to enforce adherence to Amkor’s
values, ethics and performance standards, as needed and appropriate, without the limitations of contractual
obligations that may detract from stockholder value.

Our compensation program is not designed to solely reward continued service. We do not maintain a pension
program for our U.S.-based executives, and all salary increases and non-benefit related compensation other than
base salary are structured in a manner that rewards performance, not length of service. We do not pay our executive
officers retention or stay bonuses.

To that end, our cash-based 2007 Executive Bonus Plan (“2007 Bonus Plan”) was designed to reward
executives based on our profitability, as measured by Gross Profit, Pre-Tax Income and individual performance, as
measured by the Compensation Committee based on a subjective review by the Chief Executive Officer of each
executive’s performance. In addition, although our current long-term incentive program consists of stock option
grants that vest over time, the intrinsic nature of a stock option is that it will only provide value to the executives to
the extent our stock price increases over the life of the stock option.

Elements of our Compensation Program

Amkor provides two main types of compensation — fixed compensation and variable compensation. Fixed
elements of compensation are not correlated directly to any measure of Amkor’s performance and include items
such as (i) base salary, (i) 401(k) matching contributions, (iii) health and welfare benefits, and (iv) limited
perquisites and supplemental benefits. Variable elements of compensation are based on performance and include
such items as (i) annual performance bonuses, (ii) special incentive bonuses, and (iii) equity awards in the form of
options to purchase shares of our common stock. We accrue an amount related to a severance benefit plan on behalf
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of KyuHyun Kim, President of Amkor Technology Korea and Head of Worldwide Manufacturing Operations, and
who is one of our named executive officers. This severance benefit is described further in the “Severance Benefits”
section below. With the exception of the foregoing, we do not have any employment, severance or change-in-control
arrangements in place with any of our named executive officers.

Base Salary and Annual Incentive Opportunities

We pay base salaries to our U.S.-based executives on a bi-weekly basis. Mr. KyuHyun Kim is paid monthly.
The primary purpose of base salaries at Amkor is to provide a stable source of income in order to attract key
executives. We also use base salary increases to reward high performing executives and to recognize increases in the
scope of an individual’s responsibilities, as applicable. We seek to set base salaries at a level that is sufficient 1o be
attractive to current and prospective executives. The primary factors we consider when setting base salaries include
the experience and expertise of the individual, the value of the position to our organization and ongoing strategy,
internal equity considerations, and the input of our Chief Executive Officer, James J. Kim. Our Chief Executive
Officer’s compensation for 2007 was determined by the Compensation Committee based on the value of Mr. Kim’s
strategic guidance and leadership of our company.

We also pay annual cash bonuses to our executives based on the executive’s performance and our annual
audited financial results. Given the need for audited financials, we pay annual cash bonuses, if any, in the year
following the year during which performance was measured. The primary purpose of the annuval cash bonus plan is
to focus the attention of key executives on our operational and financial performance. In addition, unlike stock
options, our annual cash bonus program allows us to set individual and company-wide goals that are viewed as
critical to our overall success on an annual basis. This provides us with the fiexibility to adapt our focus and goals as
business priorities and executives’ roles change over time. Bonuses are paid to executives for a given year only if the
performance goals approved by the independent members of our Board of Directors for that year are achieved.

QOur 2007 Bonus Plan provided each executive with a target bonus amount that could be earned based on
achievement relative to three goals: (i) Gross Profit (weighted at 50%), (ii) Pre-Tax Income (weighted at 20%), and
(iii) an individual performance component (weighted at 30%). The target bonus amount for each named executive
officer was approved by the Compensation Committee and was based on our forecasted operating results, the
strategic value of the position to the organization’s goals, and the Chief Executive Officer’s recommendation for the
executive officers reporting to him. The formula used to determine payments under the 2007 Bonus Plan was
approved by the Compensation Committee with the geal of aligning executive cash compensation with our
profitability and individual performance.

To that end, the 2007 Bonus Plan used the following payout formula:

* 0% of the target bonus amount if less than 80% of the corporate Gross Profit and Pre-Tax Income goals were
achieved, provided, that the 2007 Bonus Plan permits the grant of discretionary bonuses based upon
individual performance in an amount up to 15% of the target bonus amount;

» 50% of the target bonus amount if B0% of the corporate Gross Profit and Pre-Tax Income goals were
achieved (“threshold™);

* 100% of the target bonus amount if 100% of the corporate Gross Profit and Pre-Tax Income goals were
achieved (“target”); :

= 150% of the target bonus amount if 120% of the corporate Gross Profit and Pre-Tax Income goals were
achieved (“maximum™);

« the bonus amount attributable to the Gross Profit and Pre-Tax Income goals, if any, is prorated based upon
the level of actual performance achieved for each component above 80% up to the maximum (after giving
effect to the relative weight ascribed to each); and

* the bonus amount attributable to individual performance (up to 30% of the target bonus amount) is then
determined by the Chief Executive Officer and approved by the Compensation Committee in the case of all
executive officers (other than the Chief Executive Officer), and determined and approved by the Com-
pensation Committee in the case of the Chief Executive Officer.
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Following the end of 2007, the Compensation Committee compared Amkor’s actual petformance to the 2007
Bonus Plan’s performance targets for 2007 and applied the 2007 bonus formula to this actual performance.
Applying the pre-established bonus formula to this financial performance resulted in bonuses at 103% of target
levels.

For 2007, the target and actual bonus amounts paid to our named executive officers were as follows:

2007 2007

Target Bonus Actual Bonus
Ex_e_cﬂ Amount Amount(l)
JAMes 1 KM « o v oot e e e e e $1,250,000  $1,288,000
Kenneth T. JOYCE ..o oot e e 340,000 350,000
Joanne Solomon . ............. ... e e e 150,000(2) 155,000
Oleg Khaykin. . .....oorn i 550,000 567,000
KyuHyun Kim . ... e 350,000 360,000
James M. FUSaro. . . . oot it e et et et e e s 275,000 283,000

Notes

(1) Actual bonuses were paid at 103% of target amount based on attainment of the performance criteria in
accordance with the payout formula set forth above.

(2) Ms. Solomon’s target bonus amount was increased from $80,000 in connection with her appointment as an
executive officer.

Special Incentive Bonuses

From time to time, Amkor also awards special cash incentive bonuses, as deemed appropriate by the
Compensation Committee. The purpose of these payments is to recognize significant individual contributions
that would not, in the view of the Compensation Commitiee, be fully accounted for under our annual cash bonus
program, The amount of any special cash incentive award for executive officers is determined and approved by the
Compensation Committee and independent members of our Board of Directors. None of our named executive
officers received special incentive bonuses during 2007.

Long-term Incentive Compensation

Historically, Amkor has generally made stock option grants 10 executives on an annual basis with time-based
vesting requiring continued service through each vesting date, although options are not always granted each year.
The primary purpose of stock option grants at Amkor is to align all executives with each other and stockholders with
a common goal of long-term stockholder value creation. Amkor believes that stock options motivate executives by
allowing them to share in the value they create for stockholders. With the exception of a stock option grant to
Ms. Solomon in connection with her promotion to Chief Financial Officer, we did not grant any stock options to our
named executive officers in 2007. Amkor feels that stock options issued with exercise prices equal to fair market
value on the date of grant that have a time-based vesting requirement can be an effective tool because the stock
options only produce value to the extent that the employee continues to be employed by us and the stock price
increases, which in turn creates value for all stockholders.

The number of stock options granted to our executive officers, and the frequency of such option grants is
determined by the Chief Executive Officer and approved by the Compensation Committee. Although a number of
factors are considered, the number of stock options granted to our executive officers is determined on a
case-by-case, discretionary basis, rather than on a formula basis. Factors considered include the input of our
Chief Executive Officer, individual performance potential and any retention concerns. In 2006, we engaged a
compensation consulting firm to assess our stock option and equity granting procedures and practices and to make
recommendations on possible improvements. In February 2007, based on the compensation consulting firm’s
review, the Compensation Committee adopted a new Equity Award Policy which covers the procedures for approval
and granting of stock options and other equity awards to employees.
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We have also structured our compensation programs to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue
Code.

Timing of Grants

The Compensation Committee has not granted, nor does it intend in the future to grant, stock options to
executives in anticipation of the release of material nonpublic information that is likely to result in changes to the
price of our common stock, such as a significant positive or negative earnings announcement. In addition,
discretionary stock option grants may not be made during certain “black out” periods established in connection with
the public release of earnings information. Similarly, the Compensation Committee has not timed, nor does it intend
in the future to time, the release of material nonpublic information based on stock option grant dates.

Other Compensation Elements

Health and Welfare Benefits. Qur executives are cligible to participate in benefit programs that are generally
available to substantially all salaried, full-time employees, as determined by the country of their employment.

Retirement Benefits. We do not have a pension plan in place for U.S. employees or executives. We do offer a
tax-qualified 401(k) plan that, subject to Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) limits, allows executives and employees
to contribute a portion of their cash compensation on a pre-tax basis to an account that is eligible to receive matching
contributions., After one year of employment, we match employce contributions at a rate of 75% of the amount of
compensation deferred by the participant, up to 2 maximum matching contribution of $6,000 per year. The match
vests ratably over three years.

KyuHyun Kim, President of Amkor Technology Korea and our Head of Worldwide Manufacturing Oper-
ations, participates in a severance program that we provide our Korean executives. This severance program provides
executives with a one-time lump sum benefit at the time of separation, which benefit is calculated based on average
monthly salary, years of service and seniority.

Perquisites and Personal Benefits. In addition to the health and weifare benefits generally available to all
salaried, full-time employees, Amkor also provides certain named executive officers with annual medical
screening. Although they make up a small portion of total compensation for our named executive officers, the
purpose of these compensation elements is to promote the continuous well-being of our executives, and to ensure
that our most critical employees are able to devote their aitention to our ongoing success.

As is customary for senior executives in Korea, we provide KyuHyun Kim with a company-paid car.
Tax and Accounting Considerations

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code imposes limitations on the deductibility for federal income tax
purposes of compensation over $1 million paid 10 each of our five most highly paid executive officers in a taxable
year. Compensation above $i million may only be deducted if it is “performance-based compensation” within the
meaning of the Internal Revenue Code. Stock option awards generally are performance-based compensation
meeting those requirements and, as such, are fully deductible provided that they have been granted by a committee
whose members are non-employee directors. To maintain flexibility in compensating executive officers in a manner
designed to promote varying corporate goals, we have not adopted a policy requiring all compensation to be
deductible. Approximately $1.3M of the 2007 amounts paid to executive officers did not qualify as performance-
based compensation and were not deductible by us.

+

For 2008, bonuses will be paid to executive officers under the 2007 Bonus Plan approved by our stockholders
on August 6, 2007. It is our intent to structure bonus payments under this plan to be deductible under Section 162(m)
as performance-based compensation.

Amkor’s stock option practices have been impacted -by SFAS No. 123(R). Pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R),
awards are measured at their fair valuc at the date of grant with the resulting compensation expense recognized
ratably over the service period which is generally the vesting period of the award.
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Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2007. Based on the review and discussions, the Compensation
Committee recommended to the Board of Directors, and the Board has approved, that the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A.

This report is submitted by the Compensation Committee.

Constantine N. Papadakis, Chair
Roger A. Carolin
John F. Osborne

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth compensation eamned for services rendered to us and our subsidiaries during each
of the last two years by our Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officers serving as executive officers
during 2007, and our three other most highly compensated executive officers who were serving as executive officers
at the end of 2007 (collectively, our “named executive officers”):

Change in
Pension
Value and
Non-Equity Non-Qualified
Incentive Deferred
Stock Option Plan Compensation Al Other

Name and Principal Position _Pﬂ Salary(3)  Boous{3) Awards  Awards(4)(5) Compensation{6} Earnings Compensation(7) Total

James L Kim............... 2007 $991,346 § — — $284,726 $1,288,000 — $ 6,000 $2,570,072
Chief Executive Officer 2006 963,846  1,040000(8) — 257,152 — — 43,692 2,304,690
and Chairman

Kenneth T. Joyee ... ......... 2007 382,692 — —_ 113,177 350,000 — 16,236 862,105
Executive Vice President, 2006 337,692 175.000(9) — 104,450 300,000 — 28,594 945,736
Chief Operating Officer and
Chief Administrative Officer
(formerly Chief Financial
Officer)(1)

Joanne Solomon . . .. ... ... ... 2007 257692 — —_ 23,880 155,000 — 6,000 442,512
Corporate Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer(2)

Oleg Khaykin . ............. 2007 489,423 —_ — 129,807 567.000 — 6,000 1,192,230
Executive Vice President and 006 366,923 —_ — 119,628 400,000 — 35,191 921,742
Chief Operating Officer(1}

KywHyun Kim . . ... ....... .. 2007 46831410y — — 80,741 360,000 — 18,714(16)  927,765(10)
President, Amkor Technology 2006 423456(10) — — 73,129 350,000 — 21,781(10) 868,366(10)
Korea and Head of Worldwide
Manufacturing

James M. Fusaro, . .. ......... 2007 357,692 — — 100,653 283,000 - 9,720 751,066
Corporate Vice President, 2006 35538711) — — 92,673 250,000 - 61,061 759,121

Wire Bond Products

Notes
(1) Mr. Joyce was promoted to Chief Operating Officer in February 2008, succeeding Mr. Khaykin.

(2) Ms. Solomon was promoted to Corporate Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in November 2007,
succeeding Mr. Joyce.

(3) For 2008, the base salary and target bonus amounts for our named executive officers are: $1,000,000 and
$1,750,000 for Mr. James Kim; $500,000 and $500,000 for Mr. Joyce; $375,000 and $319,000 for
Ms. Solomon; $490,000 and $392,000 for Mr. KyuHyun Kim; and $400,000 and $300,000 for Mr. Fusaro.
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The amounts in the Option Awards column reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement
reporting purposes for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R),
and may include amounts from awards granted in and prior to 2006 and 2007. Pursuant to SEC rules, the
amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions,
Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 26, 2008. Sec the
Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table below for information on options granted in 2007. These amounts reflect
the accounting expense for these awards, and do not correspond to the actual value, if any, that will be
recognized by the named executive officers.

In August 2004, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved the full vesting of all
unvested outstanding employee stock options that were issued prior to July 1, 2004. As a result, the expense for
those awards has already been recognized and is not included in the table. See the Qutstanding Equity Awards
at Year End Table below for more information on outstanding stock option awards.

Represents amounts paid pursuant to the terms of the 2007 Bonus Plan, which contains both formula-based
criteria and discretionary components (that apply only if certain financial criteria are met) which are described
in more detail in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.

See the All Other Compensation Table below for additional information.

Represents the 2006 bonus approved by the Board of Directors based on the same criteria as set forth in the
2006 Bonus Plan for the other executive officers.

Represents the special cash incentive award to recognize Mr. Joyce’s contributions on key projects during
2006, such as realignment of the debt components of our capital structure through a series of complex
financings, which also resulted in a significant reduction in interest expense on a going forward basis.

The amounts have been converted from Korean Won based on the monthly average rate for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

We included $43,560 of ordinary income under the IRS rules governing the disposition of stock options.

All Other Compensation Table

All Other Compensation amounts in the Summary Comensation Table consist of the following:

Proceeds from
Amending One-Time
Cutstanding Auto Collective Insurance Executive
Auto Tax 401{k) Stock Allowance  Insurance by  Obligated by  Medical
Fringe(1) Gross-Ups(2) Match(3) Options(4) Payments(5) Cotnpany(6) Government(7} Exam(8) Total

James ). Kim. ... ... 2007 8 — 3 — §$6,000 $ — 5 — $— 8 — 5§ — $ 6,000

Kenneth T. Joyee . . .. 2007

2006 6,437 2,840 6,000 — 28,000 — —_ 415 43,692

- — 6,000 - - — — 10,236 16,236
W06 5109 2426 6,000 - 14,000 — — 1059 28,594

Joanne Selomon. . . . . 2007 — - 6,000 — — _ —_ — 6,000

Oleg Khaykin . ... .. 2007

KyuHyun Kim. . . . .. W07 726609 TWG — - — 105(9)  10.545(9) — I87HGN0)
. 2006 13429¢9) LI78(9)  — — — 97(%) 7.077(9) —  21,781(9)(10)

James M. Fusaro . ... 2007 — — 6,000

— — 6,000 - — — 6,000
2006 9,272 4,403 6,000 — 14,000 — — 1,516 35,191

g - — — - 3,720 9,720
2006 10,916 5,185 6,000 24,960 14,000 - - — 61,061

Notes

(1) Represents personal use of leased automobiles and related charges paid by us for our named executive officers

as follows: Mr. J. Kim — $5,437 for personal use and $1,000 in fuel charges; Mr. Joyce — $4,125 for personal
use and $984 in fuel charges; Mr. Khaykin — $7,750 for personal use and $1,522 in fuel charges;
Mr. Fusaro — $9,750 for personal use and $1,166 in fuel charges. For KyuHyun Kim, represents the cost
to us of the following automobile related items including repairs, fuel, tolls, parking fees and insurance
premiums, totaling $7,266 in 2007 and $13,429 in 2006,

(2) Represents consideration paid by us to the executive for taxes related to company-provided perquisites.
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(3) Represents our matching contributions to the participants’ 401(k) accounts.

(4) Represents consideration from us related to amending the exercise price of outstanding stock options to
increase the exercise price to the fair market value on the date of grant.

(5) Represents a one-time payment related to termination of the program under which certain executives had the
use of company vehicles or company-owned vehicles.

(6) Represents supplemental company-paid collective insurance premiums for a policy where Amkor is not the
beneficiary.

(7) Represents supplemental company-paid premiums for insurance for which we are not the beneficiary (as
obligated by the Korean government).

(8) Represents the cost to us of a comprehensive annual physical examination made available to our executive
officers.

(9) Converted from Korean Won based on the monthly average rate for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006.

(10) We have access to a golf club membership that is used by Mr. KyuHyun Kim and other executives to entertain
clients and for their personal use. Due to the flat fee nature of the membership and the fact that Mr. Kim is
responsible for any personal charges incurred at the club, there is no incremental cost to us related to the
personal use of the club membership and therefore no value has been ascribed to this item.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to stock option awards granted to the named
executive officers for the year ended December 31, 2007.

All Other All Other

Stock Option Grant Date
Estimated Future Payouts Estimated Future Payouts N‘:;ﬁsiyl‘ Nﬁ;ﬁ;f Eo:.&egc“is: VaPl‘zjer of
Under Non-Equity Incentive Under Equity Incentive Shares of Securities Price of  Stock and
Plan Awards Plan Avards Stock or  Underlying  Option Option
Name Grant Date Threshold Target Maxim Threshold Target Maximum Units Options(#)(1) Awards(2) Awards(3)
Joanne Sotomon . ... 11/13/07 — — — — — -_ — 50,000 $8.42 $248,790
Notes

(1) Represents the number of stock options granted to our named executive officers during our year ended
December 31, 2007. This option was granted in connection with Ms. Solomon’s promotion to Chief Financial
Officer and appointment as an executive officer. The option was granted under the 1998 Stock Plan with a term
of 10 years, subject to earlier termination upon certain events related to termination of employment. The option
vests over four years with 25% of the shares subject to the option vesting on the first anniversary of the grant
date and with 1/48th of the shares subject to the option vesting monthly thereafter. Upon a qualified retirement,
the option will continue to vest for an additional twelve (12) months following the date of retirement. The
optionee will then have thirty (30) days following such twelve (12) month period to exercise the option,
provided that, in no event shall the option be exercisable beyond the expiration date.

(2) All options were granted at fair market value (closing price for our common stock on the date of grant, as
reported by Nasdaq).

(3) The indicated present value amounts are based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model. For purposes of the
Black-Scholes model, we assumed a volatility of 69.8%, a risk-free rate of return of 3.9%, a dividend yield of
0%, and an expected life of 4.7 years. Actual gains, if any, on exercise will be dependent on a number of factors,
including our future performance and performance of our common stock, and overall market conditions as well
as the holders’ continued employment through the vesting period. As a result, the indicated present values may
vary substantially from actual realized values.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Year-End

The following table shows the number of shares covered by both exercisable and non-exercisable stock options
held by our named executive officers as of December 31, 2007. There are no other stock awards currently
outstanding and held by our named executive officers,

Equity Incentive

Plan Awards:
Number of Number of Number
Securities Securities of Securities
Underlying Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option Option
Options Options Unearned Exercise Expiration
Name Exercisable(#)(1) Unexercisable(#) Options(#) Price Date
James J.Kim . ........,..... 250,000 —_ — $10.79 21222013
250,000 _— — 12.40 6/26/2013
46,250 13,750(2) — 531 11/12/2014
. — 95,000(3) — 7.00 2/13/2016
Kenneth T. Joyee ............ 15,000 — — 11.00 5112008
8,000 — — 9.06 57712009
40,000 — — 10.79 2/4/2011
40,000 — — 10.79 4/4/2012
70,000 —_ — 10.79 212272013
100,000 — — 12.40 6/26/2013
34,687 10,313(2) —_ 5.31 11/12/2014
— 30,000(3) _ 7.00 2/13/2016
Joanne Solomon . ............ 4,000 —_ —_ 10.79 4/4/2012
5,000 — — 10.79 2/28f2011
5,000 — — 10.79 2/22/2013
7,000 — — 12.40 6/26/2013
5,000 — — 14.21 9/30/2013
4,750 1,250(5) — 5.71 10/2772014
4,000(3) —_ 7.00 2/132016
— 50,000(6) —_ 842  11/13/2017
Oleg Khaykin. . ............. 150,000 — — 9.18 5/12/2013
10,000 —_ — 12.40 6/26/2013
38,541 11,459(2) — 5.31 11/12/2014
— 35,000(3) — 7.00 2/13/2016
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Equity Incentive

Plan Awards:
Number of Number of Number
Securities Securities of Securities
Underlying Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option Option
Options Options Unearned Exercise Expiration
Name Exercisable(#)(1) Unexercisable(#) Options(#) Price Date
KyuHyun Kim .............. 50,000 — — 10.79 2/4/2011
40,000 — —_ 13.00 212212012
35,000 — — 10.79 4/4/2012
50,000 — — 12.40 6/26/2013
15,833 4,167(4) — 493  10/27/2014
—_ 25,000(3) — 7.00 2/13/2016
James M. Fusaro. . ........... 1,000 — — 11.00 5/1/2008
5,000 — — 9.06 57112009
5,000 — — 10.79 21412011
10,000 — —_ 13.00 2/22/2012
7,000 —_ — 10.79 4/4/2012
10,000 - —_ — 10.79 11/1/2012
) 8,000 — — 10.79 5/9/2013
25,000 — — 12.40 6/26/2013
23,666 8,334(5) — 571 10/27/2014
— 25,0003) — 7.00 2/13/2016

Notes

(1) During August 2004, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved the full vesting of all
unvested outstanding employee stock options that were issued prior to July 1, 2004,

{2} The option was granted on November 12, 2004 with the following veéting schedule: 25% of the options became
exercisable 12 months after the grant date with 1/48th of the options becoming exercisable each month thereafter.

(3) The option was granted on February 13, 2006 with the following vesting schedule: 100% of the options became
exercisable 24 months after the grant date.

{4) The option was granted on Qctober 27, 2004 with the following vesting schedule: 25% of the options became
exercisable 12 months after the grant date with 1/48th of the option shares becoming exercisable each month
thereafter.

(5) The option was granted on October 27, 2004 with the following vesting schedule: 25% of the option became
efdercisable 12 months after the grant date with 1/48th of the option shares becoming exercisable each month
thereafter. In exchange for cash payments of $4,680 to Ms. Solomon and $24,960 to Mr. Fusaro, these stock
opticns were amended in December 2006 to increase the exercise price from $4.93 to $5.71, the fair market
value on the date of grant.

(6) The option was granted on November 13, 2007 with the following vesting schedule: The option vests over four
years with 25% of the option becoming exercisable on the first anniversary of the grant date and 1/48th of the
shares subject to the option vesting monthly thereafier.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The foliowing table shows all stock options exercised and the value realized upon exercise by the named
executive officers during 2007. There are no stock awards currently outstanding and held by our named executive
officers.

Option Awards

Shares Acquired Value Realized
Name on Exercise(#) on Exercise

James J. Kim ... ... 250,000 $427,500




Severance Benefits

None of our U.S. executives has a pension benefit or post-retirement health coverage arrangement provided by
Amkor. KyuHyun Kim participates in a severance benefit program under which Korean executives are entitled to a
one-time lump sum benefit at the time of separation. This amount is calculated based on average monthly salary,
years of service and seniority. Under this severance benefit, Mr. KyuHyun Kim will be entitled to certain benefits
upon termination of his employment with Amkor, as follows:

Event
Involuntary
Voluntary Early Normal Not for For Cause Change-in
Compensation Component Resignation  Retirement  Retirement(1} Cause Termination Control Death Disability
Korean Severance Liability Plan. . $2,316,379 $2,316,379 $2,316,379 32,316,379 $2,316,379 $2,316,379 $2,316,379 $2,316,379
Form of Payment(2)(3). .. ... .. Lump Sum Lump Sum Lump Sum Lump Sum Lump Sum Lump Sum Lump Sum Lump Sum

Notes

(1) There is no normal retirement age for executives under the Korean Severance Liability Plan. The values
presented assume Mr, Kim’s termination of employment at December 31, 2007.

(2) Mr. Kim’s benefit is payable in the form of a lump sum which is calculated directly based on average monthly
salary, years of service and seniority on the date of separation. The lump sum is payable immediately upon
separation without any adjustment. As such, there is no conversion of an annuity to a lump sum and, thus, no
need for assumptions concerning either mortality or a discount rate.

(3) The exchange rate from Korean Won to U.S. dollars was based on the spot rate on December 31, 2007.

Post Employment Compensation

As described in Compensation Discussion and Analysis above, our named executive officers are employees at
will and do not have employment, change-in-control or severance agreements with us. The information and related
tables presented below reflect the amount of compensation that would become payable to our named executive
officers upon certain events if the named executive officer’s employment had terminated on December 31, 2007.
The figures shown are based on Amkor’s closing stock price on that date and any actual amounts paid under these
scenarios, should they occur in the future, may be different. For purposes of this section, we have excluded amounts
that would become payable under programs that are generally available to Amkor’s salaried employees (e.g., our
401(k) plan and Company-provided life insurance).

Cash Payments upon Termination of Service

Amkor does not have any executive contracts or agreements that provide for cash severance payments for
terminations of any kind for U.S.-based executives, Furthermore, there is no policy that obligates us to pay
severance under any circumstances. In the past, we have had an informal practice regarding severance payments
where employees whose service is involuntarily terminated due to a reduction in force have generally received three
weeks of base salary pay for their first year of service and one week of base salary for every year of service
thereafter. This practice and formula has been used typically for non-executive officers. For executives, our past
practice has generally ranged from providing six to twelve months of base salary and in one case, approximately
24 months. Mr. KyuHyun Kim participates in a severance benefit plan whereby he will be entitled to certain benefits
upon termination of employment with Amkor. These benefits are described under the Severance Benefits section
above. ‘

Treatment of Fquity upon Termination

Our stock incentive plans and related award agreements provide that upon termination or death, unvested
shares revert to the plans under which they were granted except upon a change in control or upon retirement for
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shares granted after April 4, 2001. The following table shows the additional vesting, if any, for unvested stock option
awards and the exercise periods for vested stock option awards, if applicable, should the following events occur.

Treatment of Qutstanding Stock Options upon Various Events

Involuntary
Voluntary Normal Not for For Cause Change in
Resignation Retirement(1)(2) Cause Termination Control Death Disability
No additional No additional No additional Ne additional  Accelerated vesting  No additional No additional
vesting; vesting; vesting; vesting; (if not assumed); vesting; vesting;
up to 3 months  up ro 12 months  up to 3 months up to 3 months up to 90 days up to 12 months  up to 12 months
10 exercise to exercise to exercise 1o exercise to exercise o exercise 10 exercise

Notes

(1Y Normal Retirement is defined as termination of service on or after the date when the sum of (i) the optionee’s
age (rounded down to the nearest whole month), plus (i) the number of years (rounded down to the nearest
whole month) that the optionee has provided services equals or is greater than seventy-five (75).

(2) Shares granted after April 4, 2001 will continue to vest for 12 months following the optionee’s retirement. The
optionee has an additional 30 days after such 12 month period to exercise the options.

Based on the treatment outlined in the preceding table, the following table shows the value attributable to the
acceleration of vesting for outstanding stock options, if applicable, under each event. The value shown is based on a
termination date of December 31, 2007 using the closing price of our common stock on that date, which was $8.53.

Gain Related to Accelerated Vesting of Outstanding Stock Options

Involuniary
Voluntary Normal Not for For Cause Change-in
Compensation Component Resignation Retirement Cause Termination Control Death Disability
James J. Kim......... — $189,625 — — $189,625 —_ —
Kenneth T. Joyce . . . . .. — 79,108 — — 79,108 — —
Joanne Solomon ... ... — 5,015 — — 9,025 — —
Oleg Khaykin ........ — 90,448 — — 90,448 — —
KyuHyun Kim. . ... ... — 53,252 —_ — 53,252 — —
James M. Fusaro ... ... — 57,051 —_ — 57,051 — —_
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our outstanding

common stock as of February 29, 2008 by:

* each person or entity who is known by us to beneficially own 5% or more of our outstanding common stock;
* each of our directors; and

« each named executive officer.

Beneficial Ownership(a)
Number of Percentage

Shares Ownership

-Name and Address (#)a) (%)
James J. Kim Family Control Group(). ... ......... ... .. ........ 87,563,175 44.59%

1900 S. Price Road, Chandler, AZ 85286 :
FMR LLC(C) . .o e e e 26,490,364 14.53

82 Devonshire Street, Boston, MA 02109
Roger A. Carolin{d) . . ...... ... .. i, 26,668 *
Winston J. Churchill(e). . . . ... .. .. e 86,201 *
James M. Fusaro(f). . . . ... ... ... .. ... 115,349 *
Kenneth T. Joyce(g) . . .. vt et et te e 362,716 *
Oleg Khaykin{h) . ...... ... 10,000 *
James J.Kim(i) ... ... o e e e 27,933,374 14.83
John T Kim() . . oo e e e e e e e 38,915,090 20.44
KyuHyun Kim(k) . .. ... ... 225,446 *
John F. Osborme . . ... i e e 3,000 *®
Constantine N. Papadakis(i) ............ ... . .. .. . . 16,668 *
Joanne Solomon(m) .. ..., .. e e 38,003 *
James W. Zug(n) . . ... e 75,101 *
All directors and named executive officers(o) ...................... 67,807,616 3438

Notes

* Represents less than 1%.

(a)

(b)

The number and percentage of shares beneficially owned is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial
ownership for any other purpose. Under this rule, beneficial ownership includes any share over which the
individual or entity has voting power or investment power. In computing the number of shares beneficially
owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, shares of our common stock subject to options
held by that person that will become exercisable on or before April 29, 2008 are deemed outstanding. Unless
otherwise indicated, each person or entity has sole voting and investment power with respect to shares shown as
beneficially owned.

Represents 27,933,374 shares held by James J. Kim of which 646,250 shares are issuable upon exercise of
stock options that will become exercisable on or before April 29, 2008, and 5,340,454 shares that are issuable
upon the conversion of convertible notes that are convertible at any time prior to the maturity date of
December 1, 2013; 23 shares held by Agnes C. Kim; 17,155,857 shares held by David D. Kim, of which
2,698,513 shares are subject to shared voting and investment power; 29,363,309 shares held by Susan Y. Kim,
of which 23,105,965 shares are subject to shared voting and investment power; 38,915,090 shares held by John
T. Kim, of which 16,668 shares are issuable upon exercise of stock options that will become exercisable on or
before April 29, 2008 and 14,457,344 shares held by the John T. Kim Trust of 12/31/87; 24,441,078 shares are
subject to shared voting and investment power and 8,010,678 of these shares are issuable upon the conversion
of convertible notes that are convertible at any time prior to the maturity date of December 1, 2013;
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14,457,344 shares held by the David D. Kim Trust of 12/31/87, 6,257,344 shares held by the Susan Y. Kim
Trust of 12/31/87; 2,733,334 shares held by the Trust U/D of Susan Y. Kim dated 4/16/98 f/b/o Alexandra
Panichello, all of which are subject to shared voting and investment power; 2,733,333 shares held by the
Trust U/D of Susan Y. Kim dated 4/16/98 f/b/o Jacqueline Panichello, all of which are subject to shared voting
and investment power; and 2,733,333 shares held by the Trust U/D of Susan Y. Kim dated 4/16/98 f/b/o Dylan
Panichello, all of which are subject to shared voting and investment power; 1,345,113 shares, held by the
Trust U/D of James J. Kim dated 10/3/94 f/b/o Jacqueline Mary Panichello; 1,345,113 shares held by the
Trust U/D of James J. Kim dated 12/24/92 fib/o Alexandra Kim Panichello; 1,345,113 shares held by the
Trust U/D of James J. Kim dated 10/15/01 f/b/o Dylan James Panichello; 1,345,113 shares held by the
Trust U/D of James J. Kim dated 10/15/01 f/b/o Allyson Lee Kim; 1,345,113 shares held by the Trust U/D of
James J. Kim dated 11/17/03 f/b/o Jason Lee Kim, of which, with respect to each of the foregoing amounts of
1,345,113 shares, 1,335,113 shares are issuable upon the conversion of convertible notes that are convertible at
any time prior to the maturity date of December 1, 2013 and all of which are subject to shared voting and
investment power; 1,335,113 shares held by the Trust U/D of James J. Kim dated 11/1 1/05 f/bfo Children of
David D. Kim, all of which are issuable upon the conversion of convertible notes that are convertible at any
time prior to the maturity date of December 1, 2013 and are subject to shared voting and investment power;
1,363,400 shares held by the James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/o Alexandra Kim Panichello and Descendants and
are subject to shared voting and investment power; 1,363,400 shares held by the James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/o
Jacqueline Mary Panichello and Descendants and are subject to shared voting and investment power;
1,363,400 shares held by the James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/o Dylan James Panichello and Descendants and
are subject to shared voting and investment power; 2,726,800 shares held by the James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/o
Descendants of John T, Kim and are subject to shared voting and investment power; and 1,363,400 shares are
held by the James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/o Descendents of David D. Kim and are subject to shared voting and
investment power.

Each of the individuals and the trusts listed above may be deemed members of a group under Section 13(d) of
the Exchange Act consisting of members of James J. Kim’s family and trusts established for the benefit of
James J. Kim’s children and grandchildren (the “James J. Kim Family”), who each exercise voting or
investment power with respect to the shares of common stock in concert with members of the James J. Kim
Family. James J. and Agnes C. Kim are husband and wife. David D. Kim, John T. Kim and Susan Y. Kim are the
children of James J. and Agnes C. Kim. Each of the David D. Kim Trust of December 31, 1987, the John T. Kim
Trust of December 31, 1987 and the Susan Y. Kim Trust of December 31, 1987 has as their sole trustee David
D. Kim, John T. Kim and Susan Y. Kim, respectively. Susan Y. Kim is the parent of Alexandra Panichello,
Jacqueline Panichello and Dylan Panichello and is the co-trustee of each of her children’s trusts along with
John T. Kim. These trusts are as follows: Trust U/D of Susan Y. Kim dated 4/16/98 f/bfo Alexandra Panichello,
Trust U/D of Susan Y. Kim dated 4/16/98 f/b/o Jacqueline Panichello, and Trust U/D of Susan Y. Kim dated 4/
16/98 f/b/o Dylan Panichello. James J. Kim has established trusts for each of the children of Susan Y. Kim,
John T, Kim, and David D. Kim as follows: Trust U/D of James J. Kim dated 10/3/94 f/b/o Jacqueline Mary
Panichello (John T. Kim and Susan Y. Kim as co-trustees), Trust U/D of James J. Kim dated 12/24/92 f/b/o
Alexandra Kim Panichello {(John T. Kim and Susan Y. Kim as co-trustees), Trust U/D of James J. Kim dated 10/
15/01 f/b/o Dylan James Panichello (John T. Kim and Susan Y. Kim as co-trustees), Trust U/D of James J. Kim
dated 10/15/01 f/b/o Allyson Lee Kim (John T. Kim and Susan Y. Kim as co-trustees), Trust U/D of James J.
Kim dated 11/17/03 f/b/o Jason Lee Kim (John T. Kim and Susan Y. Kim as co-trustees), the Trust U/D of
James J. Kim dated 11/11/05 f/b/o Children of David D. Kim (John T. Kim and David D. Kim as co-trustees),
James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/o Alexandra Kim Panichello and Descendants {(John T. Kim and Susan Y. Kim as
co-trustees), James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/fo Jacqueline Mary Panichello and Descendants (John T. Kim and
Susan Y. Kim as co-trustees), James J. Kim 2008 Trust {/b/o Dyian James Panichello and Descendants (John T.
Kim and Susan Y. Kim as co-trustees), James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/o Descendants of John T. Kim (John T. Kim
and Susan Y. Kim as co-trustees) and James J. Kim 2008 Trust f/b/o Descendants of David D. Kim (David D.
Kim, John T. Kim and Suvsan Y. Kim as co-trustees). The trustees of each trust may be deemed to be the
beneficial owners of the shares held by such trust.

The James J. Kim Family may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of 87,563,175 shares or approximately
44.59% of the outstanding shares of common stock. Each of the foregoing persons stated that the fiting of their
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beneficial ownership reporting statements shall not be construed as an admission that such person is, for the
purposes of Section 13(d) or 13(g) of the Exchange Act, the beneficial owner of the shares of common stock
reported as beneficially owned by the other such persons.

{c) Asreported by FMR LLC and Edward C. Johnson 3d, chairman of FMR LLC, on a Schedule 13G/A filed with
the SEC on February 14, 2008 FMR LLC reported that it has sole voting power with respect to 665,520 shares
and sole investment power for 26,490,364 shares. Mr. Johnson reported he has sole voting and investment
power for 26,490,364 shares.

(d) Includes 16,668 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by Mr. Carolin
on or before April 29, 2008.

(e) Includes 65,001 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by
Mr. Churchill on or before April 29, 2008.

(f) Includes 114,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by Mr. Fusaro
on or before April 29, 2008.

(g) Includes 341,437 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by Mr. Joyce
on or before April 29, 2008.

(h) Includes 10,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by Mr. Khaykin
on or before April 29, 2008,

(i) Includes 646,250 shares issuable upon the exercise of options that will become exercisable on or before
April 29, 2008 and 5,340,454 shares that are issuable upon the conversion of convertible notes that are
convertible at any time prior to the' maturity date of December 1, 2013. Does not include 23 shares owned by
Agnes C. Kim, Mr. Kim’s spouse, of which Mrs. Kim has sole voting and investment power. Mr. James J. Kim

. disclaims beneficial ownership of such 23 shares.

() Includes 16,668 shares issuable upon the exercise of options that will become exercisable on or before April 29,
2008 and 14,457,344 shares held by the John T. Kim Trust of 12/31/87, of which John T. Kim, has sole voting
and investment power, and 24,441,078 shares held by various trusts established for the children of Susan Y.
Kim, John T, Kim and David D. Kim, of which Mr. John T. Kim as co-trustee has shared voting and investment
power;, 8,010,678 of these shares are issuable upon conversion of convertible notes which are convertible at any
time prior to the maturity date of December 1, 2013. Mr. John T. Kim disclaims beneficial ownership of such
24,441,078 shares.

(k} Includes 217,500 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by Mr. KH
Kim on or before April 29, 2008.

{I) Includes 16,668 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by
Dr. Papadakis on or before April 29, 2008.

{m) Includes 35,250 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by -
Ms. Solomon on or before April 29, 2008.

(n) Includes 43,334 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable by Mr. Zug on
or before April 29, 2008.

(0) Includes 1,522,776 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that will become exercisable on or before
April 29, 2008 and 13,351,132 shares issuable upon the conversion of convertible notes that are convertible at
any time prior to the maturity date of December 1, 2013.
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SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our officers and directors, and persons who own
more than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership on Form 3 and
changes in ownership on Forms 4 or 5 with the SEC and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Such
officers, directors and ten-percent stockholders are also required by SEC rules to furnish Amkor with copies of all
forms that they file pursuant to Section 16(a).

Based solely on our review of the copies of such forms received by us, or written representations from certain
reporting persons that no other reports were required for such persons, Amkor believes that all Section 16(a) filing
requirements applicable to our officers, directors and ten-percent stockholders were complied with in a timely
fashion during 2007, with the exception one report on Form 4 for Mr. Osborne which was filed one day late.

PROPOSAL TWO

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has approved the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent
registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2008.

PricewaterhouseCoopers has served as our independent registered public accounting firm since 2000. The
Board of Directors expects that representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers will attend the Annual Meeting to make
a statement if they desire to do so, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

We are asking our stockholders to ratify the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers as our independent
registered public accounting firm. Although ratification is not required by our bylaws or otherwise, the Board
is submitting the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers to our stockholders for ratification as a matter of good
corporate practice. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee in its discretion may select a different
independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would
be in the best interests of our company and our stockholders.

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR the ratification of appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2008.
Fees Paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers

The following table shows the fees paid by us to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent registered
public accounting firm, or accrued by us for years 2007 and 2006.

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006

(In thousands)
AUAIL £EES . . o e e $3.311  $4,507
Audit-related fees() . ..o e e 49 39
B =722 1 613 620
Al OthEr £EES . . . i i e et e 2 33

TOAl . . v et e $3,975 35,199

Notes

(1) Audit-related fees consist of fees associated with employee benefit plan audits.

(2) Tax fees consist primarily of fees associated with tax compliance and consulting services.
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Policy on Audit Committee’s Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm

Our Audit Committee is required to pre-approve the audit and non-audit services performed by our inde-
pendent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in accordance with the Amkor Audit and Non-
Audit Services Pre-Approval Policy. This policy provides for pre-approval of audit, audit-related, tax services and
other services specifically described by the Audit Committee. The policy also provides for the general approval of
additional individual engagements, which, if they exceed certain pre-established thresholds, must be separately
approved by the Audit Committee.

This policy authorizes the Audit Committee to delegate to one or more of its members pre-approval authority
with respect to permitted services, provided that any such pre-approval decisions must be reported to the Audit
Committee. All of the services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers during the year ended December 31, 2007
were approved by the Audit Committee. Additionally, the Audit Committee concluded that the provision of such
services by PricewaterhouseCoopers was compatible with the maintenance of that firm’s independence in the
conduct of its auditing functions.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The role of the Audit Committee is to oversee Amkor’s accounting and financial reporting processes on behalf
of the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee is comprised solely of independent directors, as defined in the
Nasdaq listing standards and SEC regulations, and it operates under a written charter adopted by the Board of
Directors. The Audit Committee reviews and reassesses the adequacy of the Audit Committee Charter on an annual
basis.

The Audit Committee’s overall responsibility is one of oversight. Management is responsible for Amkor’s
consolidated financial statements as well as for maintaining effective internal controls over financial reporting,
disclosure controls and procedures, compliance with laws and regulations and applicable ethical business standards.
The independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for performing audits of Amkor’s consolidated
financial statement and the effectiveness of Amkor’s internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB™) and issuing reports thereon. The Audit
Committee met with the independent registered public accounting firm, with and without management present, to
discuss the results of their audits and the overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting.

In performing its oversight function, the Audit Committee:

(1) reviewed and discussed with management Amkor’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2007;

(2) discussed with Amkor’s independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be
discussed by the Statement of Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, as adopted by the PCAOB in
Rule 3200T; and

(3} received the written disclosures and the letter from Amkor’s independent registered public account-
ing firm required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, “Independence Discussions with Audit
Committees”, as adopted by the PCAOB in Rule 3600T, and has discussed with the independent registered
public accounting firm such firm's independence. The Audit Committee considered whether the provision of
non-audit services by Amkor’s independent registered public accounting firm is compatible with maintaining
the independence of the independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit Committee concluded that
the independent registered public accounting firm is independent from Amkor and their management.
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Based on all of the foregoing, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that Amkor’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 be included in Amkor’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K and filed with the SEC. The Audit Committee also selected PricewaterhouseCoopers as
Amkor’s independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2008. -

The foregoing report has been furnished by the following directors and members of the Audit Committee:

James W. Zug, Chair
Roger A. Carolin
John F. Osborne

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The information contained above under the captions “Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors” and “Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors™ shall not be deemed to be “soliciting
material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C, other than as provided therein, or to the
liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that we specifically request such
information be treated as soliciting material or specifically incorporate it by reference into a document filed under
the Securities Act of 1933 of Exchange Act of 1934, In addition, this Proxy Statement contains references to several
website addresses. The information on these websites is not part of this Proxy Statement.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 is being mailed prior to or with this
proxy statement to stockholders entitled to notice of the Annual Meeting.

WE WILL PROVIDE EACH BENEFICIAL OWNER OF OUR SECURITIES AS OF THE RECORD DATE
WITH A COPY OF THE COMPANY’S 2007 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K INCLUDING THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES THERETQ, WITHOUT CHARGE, BY FIRST CLASS MAIL,
PROMPTLY UPON RECEIPT OF A WRITTEN OR ORAL REQUEST FROM SUCH PERSON. SUCH
REQUEST SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO AMKOR’S CORPORATE SECRETARY, AMKOR TECHNOLOGY,
INC., 1900 SOUTH PRICE ROAD, CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286, TELEPHONE: (480} 821-5000.
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Electronic Voting Instructions
You can vote by Internet or telephone!
Available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week!

Instead of mailing your proxy, you may choose one of the two voting
methods outlined below to vote your proxy,

VALIDATION DETAILS ARE LOCATED BELOW IN THE TITLE BAR.

Proxies submitted by the Internet or telephone must be received by
1:00 a.m,, Central Time, on May 5, 2008.

‘ |:| Vote by Internet
+ Log on to the Internet and go to
www.envisionreports.com/amkr
+ Follow the steps outlined on the secured website.
o Vote by telephone
ﬂ « Call toll free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683} within the United

States, Canada & Puerto Rico any time on a touch tone
telephone. There is NO CHARGE to you for the call.

Using a black ink pen, mark ycur votes with an X as shown in X + Follow the instructions provided by the recorded message.
this example. Please do not write outside the designated areas.

Annual Meeting Proxy Card > [ |

W {F YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. W

-
Proposals — The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR all the nominees listed and FOR Proposal 2.
1. Election of Directors: For Withhotd For Withhold For Withhold

01 - James J. Kim 0 O 02 - Roger A. Carolin O O 03 - Winston J. Churchil O O +
04 - John T.Kim D E] 05 - Constantine N. Papadakis D D 06 - John F. Csborne D D
| 07 - James W. Zug D D

‘ For Against Abstain

2. Ratification of the appointment of our independent registered
public accounting firm for 2008, D D D

E Non-Voting Items
Change of Address — Please print new address below.

Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Below

Flease sign exactly as name(s) appears hereon. Joint owners should each sign. When signing as atiomey, executor, administrator, corporate officer, trustee, guardian, or custodian, please give
full title.

Date {mm/ddlyyyy) — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box. Signature 2 — Please keep signature within the box.
B 71AV AMKR 1 +

01CDA00IH 20VESH 017322_COMPANY_BLANKS_1_42174E3/000005/000005/i
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You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Amkor Technology, Inc. The Annual Meeting will be held on Monday,
May 5, 2008 at 10:00 a.m., at the Crowne Plaza Valley Forge Hotel, located at 260 Mall Bivd., King of Prussia, PA 19406, telephone (610) 265-7500.

To our Stockholders:

The actions expected to be taken at the Annual Meeting are described in detail in the attached Proxy Statement and Notice of Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

We also encourage you {o read the Annual Report. It includes information about our company, as well as our audited financial statements. A copy o
our Annual Report was previously sent to you or is included with this Proxy Statement.

Please use this opportunity to take part in the affairs of Amkor by voting on the business to come before this meeting. Whether or not you plan ta
attend the meeting in person, please complete, sign, date and return the accompanying proxy in the enclosed postage-paid envelope or submi
“your proxy by internet or telephone to ensure that your shares are represented at the Annual Meeting. Retuming the proxy does NOT deprive yoj
of your right to attend the meeting and to vote your shares in person for the matters acled upon at the meeting.

We look forward to seeing you at the Annual Meeting.

Sincerely,
Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholders © .
Meeting to Be Held on May 5, 2008. The Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual el
Meeting of Stockholders and our Annual Report to Stockholders for the year ended <
December 31, 2007 are available at: www.edocumentview.com/amkr. .
James J. Kim
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

W IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET QR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.

Proxy — Amkor Technology, Inc.

1900 South Price Road
Chandler, Arizona 85286

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS, MAY 5, 2008

The undersigned hereby appoints James J. Kim and Kenneth T. Joyce the proxies {each with powsr to act alone and with power of substitution) of the
undersigned to represent and vote the shares of stock which the undersigned is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Amkor Technology,
Inc. 1o be held on May 5, 2008, and at any postponement or adjournment thereof, as hereinafter specified, and in their discretion, upon such other matters
as may properly come before the meeting.

IF THIS CARD IS PROPERLY EXECUTED, SHARES WILL BE VOTED IN THE MANNER DIRECTED HEREIN BY THE UNDERSIGNED. IF NO
DIRECTION IS MADE, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR ALL NOMINEES AND FOR PROPOSAL 2.

You are encouraged to specify your choice by marking the appropriate boxes on the reverse side. On matters which you do not specify a choice,
your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommendation of Amkor's Board of Directors. Please mark, sign, date and return this proxy
promptly using the enclosed envelope.

CONTINUED AND TQ BE SIGNED ON THE REVERSE SIDE.
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